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Invisalign, Align, ClinCheck, Invisalign Assistylgsalign Teen Vivera, SmartForce, SmartTrack, PoRielges, iTero, Orthocad iCast a
Orthocad iRecord amongst others, are trademarksrimghg to Align Technology, Inc., and/or its suligs and are pending or registered in
the United States and other countries.




In addition to historical information, this annueport on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statms within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and &2&1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.s@ktatements include, among other
things, our expectations regarding the anticipat@agact of our new products and product enhancemantkiding Invisalign G3 and G4 and
SmartTrack material, will have on doctor utilizatiand our market share, our expectations regargirgduct mix and product adoption, our
expectations regarding the existence and impaseasonality, our expectations regarding the finahand strategic benefits of our iTero
scanner, our expectations regarding the continugzhasion of our international markets, including expectations that revenue will continue
to increase after we revert to a direct sales madé¢he Asia-Pacific region, the anticipated numbénew doctors trained and their impact on
volumes, the level of our operating expenses angsgmargins, and other factors beyond our contrslyell as other statements regarding oul
future operations, financial condition and prospeahd business strategies. These statements mtjrcavords such a‘expects,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates,” or other words indicating future result¥hese forward-looking statements are
subject to certain risks and uncertainties thatldatause actual results to differ materially frohose reflected in the forward-looking
statements. Factors that could cause or contriboitguch differences include, but are not limitedthose discussed in Item 2 “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition @&ekults of Operatio”, and in particular, the risks discussed belowRart I, Item 1A ‘Risk
Factors”. We undertake no obligation to revise or updtitese forward-looking statements. Given these @sid uncertainties, readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on such fodwaoking statements.
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Our Company

Align Technology, Inc (“We”, “Our”, “Align”) desigs, manufactures and markets a system of clearealiperapy, intra-oral scanners
and CAD/CAM (computer-aided design and computeecichanufacturing) digital services used in dentigirthodontics, and dental records
storage. Align Technology was founded in March7188d incorporated in Delaware in April 1997. ®arndquarters are located at
2560 Orchard Parkway, San Jose, California 951134 parr telephone number is 408-470-1000. Ourmatgonal headquarters are located in
Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

We have two operating segments: (1) Clear Aligkown as the Invisalign system; and (2) ScanneilsGD/CAM Services ("SCCS"
known as the iTero intra-oral scanner and OrthoG&brices. For the year ended December 31, 2082y @ligner revenues represent
approximately 92 percent of worldwide revenue, el8tanners and CAD/CAM Services represent the réngg8 percent of worldwide
revenues. We distribute the vast majority of awdpicts directly to our customers: orthodontistd ganeral practitioner dentists, or ("GPs")
sell as to restorative dentists, including prostmiists, periodontists, and oral surgeons.

We received the United States Food and Drug Adtnatisn (“FDA”) clearance to market the Invisaligpstem in 1998. The Invisalign
system is regulated by the FDA as a Class Il médiegice. In order to provide Invisalign treatmémtheir patients, orthodontists and GPs
must initially complete an Invisalign training ceer The Invisalign system is sold in North Ameri€arope, Asia-Pacific, Latin America and
Japan. We use a distributor model for the satmofproducts in non-core country markets in theaAZacific, Europe, the Middle East and
Africa (EMEA), and Latin America regions.

On April 29, 2011, we acquired Cadent Holdings, I{fcCadent”),a leading provider of 3D digital scanning solutidosorthodontics ar
dentistry. Since this acquisition, we manufactheeiTero digital intra-oral scanner and provideBDZCAM restorative models for use by
dental professionals and/or labs and servicesrtbodontic digital procedures. Scanners and CAIMC2ervices are sold through our direct
sales force and distribution partners.

Clear Aligner Segment
Malocclusion and Traditional Orthodontic Treatment

Malocclusion, or the misalignment of teeth, is ofi¢the most prevalent clinical dental conditiorifeeting nearly a billion people, or
approximately 50 to 75% of the population of majexveloped countries. Approximately 6.8 millioropke annually elect treatment by
orthodontists worldwide, of which approximately 2n@lion have mild to moderate malocclusion and apelicable to Invisalign treatment—
our served market.

In the United States (“U.S.”), orthodontists ands@fat malocclusion primarily with metal arch vgignd brackets, referred to as braces
and augment braces with elastics, metal bandsgleeadnd other ancillary devices as needed. QOptigailable to attempt to improve
treatment aesthetics include using ceramic, tootbred brackets or bonding brackets on the in@déngual surface, of the patient’s
teeth. The average treatment takes approximagetg 24 months to complete and requires severakhafdirect dental professional
involvement, known in the industry as “chair tima¢luding the initial
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diagnosis, creation of an appropriate treatment afed bonding of the brackets to the patient'siteed attachment of arch wires to the
brackets. Subsequent visits involve tighteningtberwise adjusting the braces approximately eseryeeks until the final visit when the
dental professional removes each bracket and @didunding agent from the patient’s teeth. Upompgi@tion of the treatment, the dental
professional may, at his or her discretion, haeepiitient use a retainer.

The Invisalign System

The Invisalign system is a proprietary method feating malocclusion based on a series of dqutescribed, custom manufactured, ¢
plastic removable orthodontic aligners. The InNggasystem offers a range of treatment optionscilized services, and proprietary software
for treatment visualization and is comprised offtiiowing phases:

Orthodontic diagnosis and transmission of treatnaath to us  The dental professional prepares and sendgasients treatment dal
package which consists of a prescription form, lgnpoyl-siloxane, or PVS impression of the relevdental arches, photographs of the patien
and, at the dental professional’s election, x-i@ythe patient’s dentition. The dental professiarzan also submit an intra-oral scan or “digital
impression” through an iTero intra-oral scannetdad of a physical PVS impression.

Preparation of 3D computer models of the patieimtisal malocclusion. Upon receipt, we use the treatment data tstooct digital
models of the patient’s dentition. Using comput@uography, known as CT scanning, we scan the B\pBeassion to develop a digital, three-
dimensional computer model of the patient’s curdmaitition. In cases where the dental professisalinits a digital impression, this step in
the process is eliminated.

Preparation of computer-simulated treatment andwg of treatment using ClinCheck softwaiMye transform this initial digital model
into a proposed custom, three-dimensional treatmlamnt, called a ClinCheck treatment plan. The Chiack plan simulates appropriate tooth
movement broken down into a series of two-weekamants, and details timing and placement of amachthents that will be used during
treatment. Attachments are tooth-colored “buttdhat are sometimes used to increase the bioméwdldarce on a specific tooth or teeth in
order to effect the desired movement. The pasedlinCheck treatment plan is then made availabtee prescribing dental professional via
the Invisalign Doctor Site which enables the deptafessional to project tooth movement with a l@feaccuracy not previously possible with
metal arch wires and brackets. By reviewing andrading the treatment simulation, the dental pradess retains control over the treatment
plan.

Construction of molds corresponding to each stefpeaitment Upon the dental professional’s approval of theCheck treatment plan,
we use the data underlying the simulation, in cociion with stereolithography technology, to constra series of molds depicting the future
position of the patient’s teeth. Each mold is@lioa of the patient’s teeth at each two-week sti#gbe simulated course of treatment.

Manufacture of aligners and shipment to the deptafessional From these molds, aligners are fabricated byspresorming polymerit
sheets over each mold. Aligners are thin, cleastjg, removable dental appliances that are custanufactured in a series to correspond to
each two-week stage of the ClinCheck animatiorigridrs are generally worn for consecutive two-wpekods which correspond to the
approved ClinCheck treatment plan. After two weekase, the patient replaces them with the neixtipahe series, advancing tooth
movement with each aligner stage. Throughoutrreat, the doctor may place attachments or use athéliaries to achieve desired tooth
movements, per the doctor’s original prescriptiad gesulting ClinCheck treatment plan.

Retention Upon completion of the treatment, the patieay be prescribed our single clear retainer produour Vivera retainer
product.

Scanners and CAD/CAM Services Segment

Although advancements have been made in matesats for taking dental impressions since their thiiction one hundred years ago,
the overall impression process has remained relgtisnchanged. Shortcomings such as voids, @i the general margin for error have
remained inherent in conventional impressions,anizsequent retakes create unnecessary cost infoeaselinical practice. Intra-oral
scanning is an emerging technology that we beheilldhave substantial impact on the future of dsinji. By enabling the dental practitione!
create a 3D image of the patient’s teeth usingnallheld intra-oral scanner inside the mouth, inti@-scanning is more efficient and precise
and more comfortable for patients, compared tartkss, discomfort, and subjective nature of takimgsital impressions. The digital model
created with an intra-oral scanner is more accuhate a physical impression and substantially redibe rate of restoration “remakes” so
patients are recalled less often and the appoirtttima for the restoration is shorter because wefeadjustments, which results in greater
overall patient satisfaction.




As the only intra-oral scanner system in the malbkested on parallel confocal imaging, the iTero i@ intra-oral scanners utilize laser
and optical scanning to capture the contours op#itent’s dentition, gingival structures and tlite.b The intra-oral scanners capture 100,000
points of laser light in perfect focus without thee of powder to coat the teeth, allowing for contd the wand and tooth. The benefit of
contact scanning for the clinician is it eliminathe challenge of hovering over the teeth at aifipatistance which can be complicated. For
the patient, they enjoy a more comfortable powdsg Experience which allows the clinician to prevadvery comfortable patient centric
experience. Within minutes, an accurate 3D digitgiression can be viewed on the screen. The gatimodel file can be used for various
procedures and services including fabrication gfsatal dental models for use by labs to creat@ratve units such as veneers, inlays, onlays
crowns, bridges and implant abutments; Invisaligital impression submission; digital records stmraorthodontic diagnosis and computer
aided placement of traditional braces; and orthtideatainers and appliances.

Both iTero and iOC intra-oral scanners consist ofabile computer unit, display screen, a control feedal and scanning wand to scan
and capture a patient’s dentition (full or partiahtal arch). System software features includéusatmap, eraser tool, edge trim tool, résle
modeling and an option to submit scans for Invigatreatment. The systems provide doctors andvé@bsan open choice to export generic
digital files of their digital impression to usettviother third party dental service providers. sTaliows the digital impression to integrate with
cone beam CT images for implant and orthodontattnent planning. OrthoCAD services are additiGeaVvices available with our
scanners. In-office training on the system antufes is provided after the unit is delivered te finactice.

Our Products and Services

Our revenues are generated from the sale of thanfiolg product offerings.

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Percentage of Revenues by Product 2012 2011 2010
Invisalign Full 61% 63% 68%
Invisalign Express/Lite 9 9 9
Invisalign Teen 12 11 14
Invisalign Assist 5 6 4
Invisalign Non-case* 5 5 5
Scanners** 4 3 —
CAD/CAM Services** 4 3 —
Total 100% 100% 10C%

* Non-case revenue includes the retainer busiresnjng revenues, and ancillary offerings under Glear Aligner product lines

**  As the acquisition of Cadent closed on April, 2911, the fiscal year 2011 percentages for Seararel CAD/CAM Services only reflect
eight months of revenues.

Clear Aligner Products

Invisalign Full. Used for a wide range of malocclusion, Invisaligil consists of the number of aligners necesgaachieve the docta’
treatment goals. For Invisalign Full, aligners ar@nufactured and then delivered to the dentakgsibnals in a single shipment. Invisalign
Full is sold in the U.S., Canada, and our inteor&l regions.

Invisalign Express (10 and 5) and Invisalign Lifelnvisalign Express, Invisalign Lite and Invisalighare lower-cost solutions for less
complex orthodontic cases, non-comprehensive teratnelapse cases, or straightening prior to rast@ or cosmetic treatments such as
veneers. Invisalign Express 10 and Invisalign Egpr5, which are sold in the U.S. and Canada,upsés 10 and 5 sets of aligners,
respectively. Invisalign Lite and Invisalign igld in our international regions, uses up to 14 aséts of aligners, respectively. For Invisaligr
Express/Lite/i7, aligners are manufactured and tfedivered to the dental professionals in a sishipment.

Invisalign Teenlnvisalign Teen includes all the features of Inligga Full, plus additional features that addressahthodontic needs of
teenage patients such as eruption compensatiosiafrée single arch replacement aligners. Thiglpct is predominantly marketed to
orthodontists who treat the vast majority of maloson in teenage patients. For Invisalign Tedignars (other than the replacement aligners
are manufactured and then delivered to the dem&gsionals in a single shipment. Invisalign Teesold in the U.S., Canada, and our
international regions.




Invisalign Assistintended for use for anterior alignment and aeithié-oriented cases Invisalign Assist offers adldapport to our
dental practitioners throughout the treatment mecmcluding progress tracking that allows thetalgorofessional to submit new impressions
every nine stages. When the progress trackingre# selected, aligners are shipped to the dpradétssional after every nine stages thereby
helping to achieve successful treatment outcoresdominantly marketed to GPs, Invisalign Assistiended to make it easier to select
appropriate cases for their experience level @ttnent approach, submit cases more efficientlyraadage appointments with suggested
tasks. Invisalign Assist is sold in the U.S. armh&da.

Retention In addition to a traditional single retainer puot we also offer Vivera retainers, where we dslifour new replacement
retainers to orthodontic patients which is intentiedeliver one year of retention. Doctors carspride Vivera retainers for their Invisalign i
their non-Invisalign patients.

Invisalign non-case revenuefvisalign non-case revenues represent retaimelugts discussed above, Invisalign training feebsales
of ancillary products, such as cleaning material atjusting tools used by dental professionalsndypitie course of treatment.

Feature Enhancement8eginning in late 2009, we began introducing enbkdrfeatures across the Invisalign system. Refeoed
Invisalign 1.5 (launched in September 2009), InigsaG3 (launched in October 2010) and Invisaligh @unched in November of 2011),
these feature enhancements are a collection afalimnovations designed to address some of th& significant treatment challenges doctor:
encounter. Features include:

» Precision Cuts, which are custom mesial andisioks used to provide anchorage for elasticsdatin cutouts to accommodate
buttons bonded to the tooth aimed to help treaéptstwith Class Il and Class Il malocclusion; and

* SmartForce features engineered to achieve morécpablé tooth movements using custom optimizecchtteents and Power Ridi

SmartTrack™ Aligner Material.In October 2012, we announced SmartTrack, the grexération of Invisalign clear aligner material.
SmartTrack is a proprietary, custom-engineered mnahthat delivers gentle, more constant force aered ideal for orthodontic tooth
movements. Conventional aligner materials relaxlasd a substantial percent of energy in the initéys of aligner wear, but SmartTrack
maintains more constant force over the two weeksalpatient wears the aligners. The flexible Sirack material also more precisely
conforms to tooth morphology, attachments, andméximal spaces to improve control of tooth movatriteroughout treatment. SmartTrack
became the new standard aligner material for Itigisalear aligner products in North America bedgmgnJanuary 21, 2013 and in February
2013 for Europe, and other international marketeretwe have obtained regulatory approval.

Scanners and CAD/CAM Services Products
Scanners

iTero Scanner On January 2013, we announced the new iTero scaystem available as a single hardware platfortm software
options for restorative or orthodontic proceduR®viously, we sold two hardware platforms, thedTecanner for GPs, prosthodontists,
periodontists, and oral surgeons and the iOC sedanerthodontists. The new iTero scanner systepfaces these two scanner platforms
which will no longer be sold after February 2018eThewly redesigned iTero scanner system mainitgimsnovative powderless technology
and features a modern design with enhanced warnckdpt a smaller, more ergonomic fit, easy-to-keghoard design and a larger working
surface. Additionally, full color model renderirgjavailable and enables clinicians to show patietife-like final model of their scanned
dentition. The new iTero delivers substantiallyueed capture time through improved optics and ecgthalgorithms while maintaining a high
standard of digital imaging accuracy, the efficient open source imaging and streamlined workfl@we will begin marketing and selling the
new iTero in North America beginning February 2@h8i soon thereafter in select international markets

Restorative software for iTer8oftware designed for GPs, prosthodontists, peritisits, and oral surgeons which includes featwes f
restorative procedures commonly performed in theictices such as veneers, inlays, onlays, crowigdges and implants The iTero restora
software provides the ability to scan quadrantsfatidrches, and allows simple powder-free captfrdigital impressions for singlenit case:
as well as more complex restorative and implamitinent plans. The iTero software also containtusike Invisalign interoperability to
support clear aligner orthodontic treatment.

Orthodontic software for iTer&oftware designed for orthodontists for digitaloets storage, orthodontic diagnosis, Invisaligritdig
impression submission, and for the fabricationrafted models and retainers. The iTero orthodaostftware digitally captures the contours of
the dentition and the gingival structures, providam accurate, powder-free digital orthodontic sognst minutes. This digital impression
procedure ensures a more comfortable patient expeiand




produces a precise scan that can be seamlesdlydted with Invisalign treatment, OrthoCAD iCastdaOrthoCAD iRecord which allows a
doctor to utilize sophisticated measurement aratritent planning tools.

CAD/CAM Services

iTero Models and DiegAn accurate physical model and dies are manufattto@sed on the digital scan and sent to the ladiyraf the
dentist’s choice for completion of the needed nedgion. The laboratory also has the option to e digital file for immediate production
of coping and full-contour restorations on thebrdeatory CAD/CAM systems. The laboratory condubtn completes the ceramic buildup or
staining and glazing and delivers the end resulpreaisely fitting restoration. iTero prostheti@v/k a near-zero remake rate.

OrthoCAD iCastiCast provides a digital alternative to traditiostdne cast models which allows for simplified ag® and digital record
retrieval. The iCast digital model contains a ABO (American Board of Orthodontics) base andvigilable from an iTero scan or from a
traditional alginate impression.

OrthoCAD iRecordiRecord provides a digital alternative to tradiabstone cast models which allows for simplifiedrage and digital
record retrieval. This simplified model without ABO base is an economical option for record rétent The iRecord is available exclusively
from an iTero scan.

Chair Side Applications

Invisalign Outcome Simulatorin January 2013, we announced the commercialadititiy of the Invisalign Outcome Simulator, ourst
Invisalign chair-side application powered by thend scanner. The interactive application provid®s @nd orthodontists an enhanced platforr
for patient eduction and is designed to increasatitnent acceptance by helping patients visualezédéémefits possible with Invisalign treatm:
As the only Invisalign chair-side intra-oral scamgiapplication on the market, the Invisalign Outec&imulator's unique dual view layout
shows a prospective patient an image of his/her @wrent dentition next to his/her simulated fipakition of how their teeth may look after
Invisalign treatment. Using a full arch Invisaligoan, the Invisalign Outcome Simulator takes arffémutes to run and may be viewed chair-
side, on the scanner, or from a computer using yAlech.com. Intuitive tools allow doctors to makaltime adjustments to individual tee
during consultations that increase patient educatial the likelihood of patient acceptance.

Proprietary software mentioned in this Annual Ré¢porForm 10-K such as ClinCheck software, thedalgn Doctor Siteand enhance
features such as Invisalign G3 and Invisalign Gaiacluded as part of the Invisalign system ancdhatesold separately nor do they contribute
as individual items of revenue.

Our iTero scanners include orthodontic softwarstaetive software, or both, and the Invisaligncnte Simulator. The orthodontic or
restorative software may also be purchased substgtier an upgrade fee. The Invisalign Outcome Bator is not available for sale
separately.

Business Strategy

Our goal is to establish Invisalign treatment a&sgtandard method for treating malocclusion arebktablish our intra-oral scanning
platform as the preferred scanning protocol fordd§ital scans, ultimately driving increased prodadoption by dental professionals. We
intend to achieve this by focusing on the followkey strategic initiatives:

1. Productinnovation and clinical effectivenc. We believe that product performance and intiomds a cornerstone to our long-term
goal to drive and sustain product adoption, whiatiudes introducing new products along with sigaifit evolution in features and
functionality.

2. Enhancing the customer experienceWe are committed to enhancing the customer expagidmwough the evolution of our customer
facing systems and programs making it easier foicastomers to adopt our products into their pcacéind increase utilization.

3. Increasing the effectiveness of our consumer deroggation and extending Invisalign brand awarenesAs an established and
known brand within the dental industry, efficientharketing to the consumer and creating demandesobour key strategic
objectives for driving long-term growth.

4. Growth of international markets We will continue to focus our efforts towatidsreasing adoption of our products by dental
professionals in our core European markets asagedixpansion into new markets.

Manufacturing and Suppliers




Our manufacturing facilities are located in JuaMexico, where we conduct our aligner fabricatidistribute and repair our scanners,
perform our CAD/CAM services, and in Or Yehudaakdrwhere we produce our handheld intra-oral sqamaad. The final assembly of our
iTero scanner is performed by a third party manufze located in Israel. Our digital planning bétinvisalign system and interpretation for
iTero restorative cases are conducted primarituatacility located in San Jose, Costa Rica. fmiation regarding risks associated with our
manufacturing process and foreign operations m&punred inltem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under lleading “Risk Factors.”

Our quality system is required to be in compliandth the Quality System regulations enforced byRlE&\, and similar regulations
enforced by other worldwide regulatory authoriti®e are certified to EN ISO 13485:2003, an intéamally recognized standard for medical
device manufacturing. We have a formal, documeqtedity system by which quality objectives areided, understood and
achieved. Systems, processes and procedures@esiemted to ensure high levels of product andieeuality. We monitor the
effectiveness of the quality system based on iatetata and direct customer feedback and strieemdinually improve our systems and
processes, taking corrective action, as needed.

Since the manufacturing process of our productgires| substantial and varied technical expertigebalieve that our manufacturing
capabilities are important to our success. Inom@roduce our highly customized, highly precisedical quality products in volume, we
have developed a number of proprietary processtseghnologies. These technologies include comgbdtwvare solutions, CT scanning,
stereolithography and automated aligner fabricatiba increase the efficiency of our manufactungingcesses, we will continue to focus our
efforts on software development and the improverérate-limiting processes, or bottlenecks. Wetitmously upgrade our proprietary,
three-dimensional treatment planning software tte@ce computer analysis of treatment data anditeceetime spent on manual and
judgmental tasks for each case, thereby increakmgfficiency of our technicians in Costa Rica.atldition, to improve the efficiency a
increase the scale of our operations, we will cargito invest in the development of automated sysfer the fabrication and packaging of
aligners.

We are highly dependent on manufacturers of speethscanning equipment, rapid prototyping machinesin and other advanced
materials for our aligners, as well as the opgdsctronic and other mechanical components of mua-ioral scanners. We maintain single
supply relationships for many of these machinesmaattrials technologies. In particular, our CTrstag and stereolithography equipment
used in our aligner manufacturing and many of tiitecal components for the optics of our intra-osalnners are provided by single
suppliers. We are also committed to purchasingfadur resin and polymer, the primary raw matsrizgded in our manufacturing process for
clear aligners, from a single source. The needptace one of our single source suppliers couldea disruption in our ability to timely
deliver certain of our products or increase cosiee Item 1A Risk Factors “We maintain single supply relationships for e@ntof our key
machines and materials technologies, and our bssiad operating results could be harmed if sujgphgstricted or ends or the price of raw
materials used in our manufacturing process incesds

Sales and Marketing

Our sales efforts are focused primarily on thedaiign system and continuing to increase adoptishugilization by orthodontists and
GPs worldwide. In North America, our direct sabeganization consists of approximately 200 peopleich includes quota carrying sales
representatives, sales management, and sales atiation. Internationally, we have approximatelyp@ople engaged in sales and sales
support for the Invisalign system. Our direct saleganization in North America is comprised of anteof territory managers and to a lesser
extent, territory specialists. These territory spksts are used to enhance coverage in largetaees, especially with our lower volume GP
customers. Due to the success of this sales coyenagel, we expect to add approximately 20 saj@esentatives in 2013, predominantly in
North America. In addition, when we transition égia-Pacific distributor to a direct sales model in M231 3, as described in the paragraph
below, we will acquire approximately 15 additiosales representatives in that region.

Currently, we have three distribution partners #&ltthe Invisalign system in smaller non-corerdopmarkets in the Asia-Pacific,
EMEA, and Latin America regions. We evaluate addiistribution partners in other non-core countgrkets on a case-by-case basis or
assess modifying our current distribution agreesiaag our international business grows. Based®udhtinued progress in the Asia-Pacific
distributor region, we expect to revert to a dirgades model in this region in the second quait@0t3 and therefore will not renew the Asia-
Pacific distribution agreement when it expires jorin2013. As a result, on May 1, 2013, four of thegest indirect country markets of
Australia, New Zealand, Hong Kong and Singaporé nilert back to a direct sales region and we béljin to recognize direct sales of
Invisalign products sold in that region at our faMerage selling price ("ASP") rather than at tisealinted average sales price under the
distribution agreement. In 2012, this distribuaecounted for approximately 3% of worldwide revesyuand we expect them to become an
even more meaningful contributor to revenue gravebinning in May 2013. In the near term, howeuee, assumption of the direct operating
costs will offset the uplift to ASPs. Although wepect volumes and revenues will increase, we maggence
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difficulties in achieving the anticipated financkanefits. The remaining eight indirect country keds in Brunei, Indonesia, Macau, Malaysia,
Philippines, South Korea, Taiwan, Thailand and et will likely continue under a distribution model

For our intra-oral scanners, we have approximaélgirect sales representatives in North Ameri©ar smaller intra-oral scanner sales
team also leverages leads generated by our Iryisaéiles and marketing resources, including custerents and industry trade-shows. We
also have distribution partners that sell our iTietca-oral scanner in North America. Effective Octobet20we terminated our agreement \
Straumann as our exclusive distribution partneiTero intra-oral scanners in Europe and our notitesxve distribution partner North
America. As a result, in the near term, we expedtave very few scanner sales internationally asweduate the most effective sales model to
re-stage growth in this market.

We market Invisalign by communicating the benaditshe Invisalign system to dental professionatsuigh our training programs, onli
and traditional mail campaigns, trade shows, tjadmals and print. We also promote the benefitegsalign through our integrated
consumer marketing platform which combines tradaigrint and broadcast media with a balanced rhpublic relations, event marketing,
and social media. The goal of this platform isaize awareness of Invisalign and Invisalign Teztha best options for a healthy, beautiful
smile among adults and teenagers. In additionconsumer marketing platform enables us to helpg@ctive patients find a great Invisalign
treatment practice that can meet their needs.infi@-oral scanners, in addition to leveraging salign customer events and industry trade-
shows to communicate the benefits of digital scagmd dental professionals, we also have trainnogams, educational websites and limited
print advertising.

We provide training, marketing and clinical supgorbrthodontists and GPs. In 2012, we had mas 84,230 active Invisalign
providers and more than 3,200 intra-oral scanrstalited based worldwide.

Research and Development

We are committed to investing in world-class tedbgy development, which we believe is critical thaeving our goal of establishing
the Invisalign system as the standard method éatitig malocclusion and our intra-oral scanningfpten as the preferred scanning protocol
for 3D digital scans. Our research and developragpénses were $42.9 million for 2012, $37.2 millior 2011, and $26.0 million for 2010.

Our research and development activities are dideiciward developing the technology innovations thatbelieve will deliver our next
generation of products and platforms. Our reseanthdevelopment activities range from accelergtimmgluct and clinical innovation, to
developing manufacturing process improvementsggearching future technologies and products.

In an effort to demonstrate Invisalign’s broad tne@nt capabilities, various clinical case studied articles have been published that
highlight the clinical applicability of Invisaligto malocclusion cases, including those of seveneptexity. We are also undertaking pre-
commercialization trial and testing as well as mglkadditional technological improvements to thedpici and manufacturing process.

Intellectual Property

We believe our intellectual property position regmets a substantial business advantage. As ofhilmre31, 2012, we had 280 issued
U.S. patents, 141 pending U.S. patent applicatiand,224 foreign issued patents, as well as 13dipgrfioreign patent applications.

We continue to pursue further intellectual propgmgtection through U.S. and foreign patent apfibees and non-disclosure
agreements. We also seek to protect our softwla@imentation and other written materials undefetigecret and copyright laws. We cannot
be certain that patents will be issued as a re$ahy patent application or that patents that Haen issued to us or that may be issued in the
future will be found to be valid and enforceable anfficient to protect our technology or producBur intellectual property rights may not be
successfully asserted in the future or may be idatdd, circumvented or challenged. In addititwe, laws of various foreign countries do not
protect our intellectual property rights to the saextent as U.S. laws. Our inability to proteat proprietary information could harm our
business. Information regarding risks associatithl failing to protect our proprietary technologydaour intellectual property rights may be
found inltem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under lleading “Risk Factors.”

Seasonal Fluctuations

General economic conditions impact our businesdiaadcial results, and we experience seasonall$reglated to our two operating
segments, customer channels and the geographimlog#hat we serve. For example, European sélewigalign treatment are often weaker
in the summer months due to our customers and plagients being on holiday. In North America, suenig typically the busiest season for
orthodontists with practices that have a high psage of adolescent and
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teenage patients as many parents want to getttfeziagers started in treatment before the staineadchool year; however, many GPs are on
vacation during this time and therefore tend tot$&aver cases. For our SCCS segment, capitapetnt sales are often stronger in the fourtt
calendar quarter. Consequently, these seasondbtieave caused and may continue to cause, flimtgdah our quarterly results, including
fluctuations in sequential revenue growth rates.

Backlog

Due to the nature of Invisalign treatment whicprisscribed by a doctor and therefore no two casealike, we maintain relatively low
levels of backlog. The period from which treatméata (or “a case”) is received until the acceptaricthe digital ClinCheck treatment plan is
dependent on the dental professional’s discretianadify, accept or cancel the treatment plan. ré@foee, we consider the case a firm order tc
manufacture aligners once the dental professicamblpproved the ClinCheck treatment plan. Oushlign backlog consists of ClinCheck
treatment plans that have been accepted but nehjmied. Because aligners are shipped shortly éifé ClinCheck treatment plan has been
accepted, we believe that backlog is not a gooitétar of future Invisalign sales. Our quartentyisalign revenues can be impacted by the
timing of the ClinCheck treatment plan acceptarazebour ability to ship those cases in the sameeuaWe define our intra-oral scanner
backlog as orders where payment is reasonablyedssind credit and financing is approved but tharseahas not yet shipped. Our intra-oral
scanner backlog as of December 31, 2012 was ne&frialat

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive market and weoenter a wide variety of competitors, includinggker companies or divisions of
larger companies with substantial sales, marketeggarch and financial capabilities. We also famapetition from early stage
companies. Although the number of competitorsesaby segment, currently our products compete tliragainst products manufactured and
distributed by various companies, both within antswle the U.S., including Danaher Corporation, Silpna Dental Systems, Inc. and
Dentsply International, Inc. Information regardimigks associated with increased competition mafpbed inltem 1Aof this Annual Report
on Form 10-K under the heading “Risk Factors.”

Key competitive factors include:
» effectiveness of treatme
s price
» software feature
» aesthetic appeal of the treatment met
* customer suppo
» customer online interfac
* brand awarenes
* innovation
» distribution network
» comfort associated with the treatment met
» oral hygiene
» ease ofuse; a

» dental professionalghair time

We believe that our products compare favorably withcompetitors’ products with respect to eacthebe factors.

Government Regulation

We believe we are in compliance with all FDA, femleand state laws and International regulatory irequents that are applicable to our
products and manufacturing operations.

uU.S.

U.S. Food and Drug Administratian In the U.S., we must comply with applicableAQuality System, dental, and medical device
regulations identified in the Code of Federal Ragjahs (CFR). Our Invisalign products and intratl@canners are classified as Class Il
medical devices. The Invisalign system has reckpremarket clearance from the FDA
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pursuant to the 510(k) pre-market notification gare, allowing us to market the Invisalign fanofyproducts in the U.S. Our intra-oral
scanners are 510(k) Exempt with Special Controtschvallows us to market this product in the U.8haut submitting a 510(k) pre-market
notification. We are subject to routine inspecsidny the FDA and state of California Food and DBugnch (FDB) for compliance with Qual
System Regulations. We maintain applicable CitsteS and Federal licenses and registrations fr edour facilities.

If the FDA determines that we do not comply witle applicable FDA regulations, it can institute idewariety of enforcement actions
against us, ranging from a public Warning Lettemimre severe sanctions, including but not limitefinancial penalties, withdrawal of our
right to market our products and/or criminal pragam.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Axft1996. Under the Health Insurance Portability and d\oatability Act of 1996, or
HIPAA, Congress mandated a package of interlockimginistrative simplification rules to establishrefiards and requirements for electronic
transmission of patient health information. Coefitlality and security of patient medical recordd ¢he circumstances under which these
records may be used and released by healthcaresprofials and their Business Associates are subjsabstantial regulations under the
HIPAA Standards for Privacy of Individually Idenéible Health Information, referred to as the Priv&tandard, and the Security Standard,
other state laws and regulations. The Privacydatahgoverns both the disclosure and the use didmoriial patient medical information, and
the Security Standard governs the technical, phisind administrative safe guards used to enkeravailability of patient records and to
protect the unauthorized release or disclosureatépt information. The Privacy and Security Stmdd apply to healthcare providers, health
insurance plans and healthcare clearinghousesrigdfto as “Covered Entities”) as well as Busiressociates who perform services for
Covered Entities and have access to protectednpaifermation. We believe we have designed oodpct and service offerings to be
compliant with the requirements of the Privacy &etturity standards under HIPAA and applicable apoading state laws and
regulations. Maintaining systems that are compheth these laws and regulations is costly anddoequire complex changes in the way we
do business or provide services to our patientdditfonally, our success may be dependent on tbeess of healthcare participants in dealing
with HIPAA requirements.

Other Federal and State Laws As a participant in the health care industvg,are subject to extensive and frequently changing
regulation under many other laws administered byegumental entities at the federal, state and llesals, some of which are, and others of
which may be, applicable to our business. We anedical device manufacturer subject to FDA regufst These regulations, among other
things, require that we maintain device and faesitregistrations and listings as well as promatepsoducts consistent with our FDA 510(k)
clearances. Furthermore, our health care serviméder customers are also subject to a wide wadétaws and regulations that could affect
the nature and scope of their relationships withluews regulating medical device manufacturersizalth care providers cover a broad array
of subjects. For example, the confidentiality afient medical information and the circumstancegeunvhich such information may be uset
us, released for inclusion in our databases, easgld by us to third parties, are subject to sotistaegulation by state governments. These
state laws and regulations govern both the disoboand the use of confidential patient medicalrimiation and are evolving rapidly. In
addition, provisions under the federal anti-kickbatatutes prohibit, among other things, payingféering to pay any remuneration in
exchange for the referral of patients to a persatigipating in, or for the order, purchase or receendation of items or services that are
subject to reimbursement by, Medicare, Medicaid @her similar federal or state health care prograMost states have also enacted illegal
remuneration laws that are similar to the federaisl These laws, which are evolving at the fedmmndlstate levels, are applicable to our
financial relationships with, and any marketingotiter promotional activities involving, our denpabfessional customers. Violations of an
these laws or regulations could subject us to eweaof civil and criminal sanctions. Furthermoveyious state laws require us to report
payments and other transfers of value made to bdergfessionals and teaching hospitals to statelatgry bodies.

Canada

In Canada, we must comply with Health Canada’s eddbevice Regulations (SOR/98-282). Our Invisakystem family of products
is classified as a Class Il medical device and wetain a Medical Device License for this produ@ur intra-oral scanners are classified as
Class | medical device in Canada.

European Union

In the European Union, the Invisalign system isutatgd as a custom device and we must comply Wwéhrequirements of the Medical
Device Directives (MDD 93/42/EEC). Also, our itinaal scanners are classified as Class | medicatee by the MDD and bear the CE mark
showing that such products adhere to the Europsguiations. Our Quality Management System is 13@85:2003 certified, which facilitates
commercialization of our products in Europe.

China
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In 2010, we received a “Registration Certificate Ngedical Device” from China’s State Food and DAgministration to market and sell
the Invisalign system family of products for thedtment of malocclusion, as a Class | medical @evicurrently, we do not sell our intra-oral
scanners in China.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had 3,176 employeekiding 2,086 in manufacturing and operations, #6&ales and marketing which
includes customer care, 234 in research and deweopand 390 in general and administrative funstion

Available Information

Our website is located atww.aligntech.comand our investor relations website is locatekttat//investor.aligntech.com The
information on or accessible through our websgasot part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. @mnual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reportsamm 8-K, our proxy statement on Schedule 14A farannual stockholders’ meeting and
amendments to such reports are available, frebarhe, on our investor relations website as sogranably practicable after we
electronically file or furnish such material withet SEC. Further, a copy of this Annual Report om#10-K is located at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, B0649. Information on the operation of the RuBleference Room can be obtained by
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintan internet site that contains reports, proxyiaformation statements and other
information regarding our filings atww.sec.qgov

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth certain informatimgarding our executive officers as of March 1,201

Name Age Position

Thomas M. Prescott 57 President and Chief Executive Officer
Kenneth B. Arola (1) 57 Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Jennifer M. Erfurth 43 Vice President, Global Human Resources
Roger E. George (1) 47 Vice President, Legal and Corporate Affairs Gen€@atlinsel
Timothy A. Mack 54 Senior Vice President, Marketing and Business Diprakent
Christopher C. Puco 52 Vice President, North American Sales
Richard Twomey 48 Vice President, International

Emory M. Wright 43 Vice President, Operations

(1) On January 30, 2013, we announced that Mr. Amés stepping down from his position as Vice Ferd, Finance and Chief Financial
Officer, effective March 4, 2013. Mr. Arola willmain an employee until June 28, 2013. As of Marc043, Mr. George will serve as Interim
Chief Financial Officer.

Thomas M. Prescoltas served as our President and Chief Executivieedfind as a member of our Board of Directorsesiarch
2002. Prior to joining us, Mr. Prescott was Prestdand Chief Executive Officer of Cardiac Pathwags., a publicly-traded medical device
company, from May 1999 until its acquisition by Bos Scientific in August 2001. Mr. Prescott thearled as a consultant for Boston
Scientific Corporation until January 2002. Priomtorking at Cardiac Pathways, Mr. Prescott heldous sales, general management and
executive roles at Nellcor Puritan Bennett, InorirApril 1994 to May 1999.

Kenneth B. Aroldas served as our Vice President of Finance anef €iancial Officer since December 2007. He jdine as Vice
President of Finance and Corporate Controller igusi 2005. Prior to joining us, Mr. Arola served fourteen years at Adaptec, Inc, an
electronic data storage equipment company, wherelievarious senior finance management positimost recently as Vice President of
Finance and Corporate Controller. His experiense iacludes positions of increasing responsibilityarious financial roles at Varian
Associates and Cooper Labs.

Jennifer M. Erfurthjoined Align as our Vice President of Global HunR@sources in October 2012. Prior to joining us, Etfurth was
senior vice president of shared services at DynloelNdnc., a manufacturer and supplier of induk#iglosives, from July 2011 to July 2012
and was vice president, human resources for Fe8aahl Corporation. From 2001 to 2010, Ms. Erfuréd positions of increasing
responsibility at Schawk, Inc., most recently azbgl senior vice president of human resourcessiipo she held from 2007 until her
departure in 2010. Earlier in her career, she seagedirector of human resources at CINTAS Corpamand World Color.
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Roger E. Georgbas served as our Vice President, Legal and Caréiffairs, General Counsel and Corporate Secredizige July
2002. Prior to joining us, Mr. George was the €Rieancial Officer, Vice President of Finance dratjal Affairs and General Counsel of
SkyStream Networks, a privately held broadbandtapnddcast network equipment company. Prior to 8ka#, Mr. George was a partner at
Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, P.C. in Palo Al@rlifornia.

Timothy A. Mackvas appointed Senior Vice President, Marketing Business Development in May 2012. He served ag¥ite
President, Business Development since our acauisiti Cadent Holdings, Inc. in April 2011. At Cadiehe was President and Chief Exect
Officer since 2009. He joined Cadent in 2005, msdhtive Vice President & General Manager wherketdhe introduction and adoption of
Cadent’s new 3D digital imaging technology into tharket. Prior to Cadent, Mr. Mack was Vice Presidand General Manager of
DENTSPLY Ceramco, a wholly-owned subsidiary of DENPLY International. Prior to DENTSPLY, Mr. Mackltie series of management
positions in the U.S. and Europe within ConsumeicEbnics and Medical Imaging Divisions at Eastr{adak Company.

Christopher C. Pucavas appointed Vice President of North America Sald3ecember 2012. He joined Align in 2006 as asdirector
and in 2008 became senior director for the Easteles area. Most recently, as vice president eksatategy, he led Align's go to market
strategy and managed the integration of the NortteAcan scanner and CAD/CAM services sales orgaaizaMr. Puco has more than 20
years of experience in the medical device industojding sales management positions in both ~ups and established corporate
environments. Prior to Align, he was with Unite@t®s Surgical Corporation, General Surgical Innownat Baxter BioSurgery and Fusion
Medical Technologies.

Richard Twomeyas served as our Vice President, Internationakditay 2010. Prior to joining us, Mr. Twomey sptrd past 13 years
in senior management positions within divisiongdatinson & Johnson, having served most recentlyessdent of DePuy, International Ltd.,
part of the DePuy Orthopaedics, a global leadénénprovision of surgical implants for orthopaedpplications, as well as diversified interests
in spinal, sports medicine and neurology sectts. Twomey also served as managing director anecitbr of marketing for Johnson &
Johnson Bone Tissue Management Group. Prior teséoh& Johnson, Mr. Twomey held various sales aatkating positions at Biomet Ltd,
Howmedica International Ltd., and Stafford Millar.

Emory M. Wrighthas served as our Vice President, Operations §lacember 2007. He has been with us since Marc@,200
predominantly in manufacturing and operations roléseviously, Mr. Wright served as Vice Presiddf@nufacturing and most recently was
General Manager of New Product Development. Roigoining us, Mr. Wright was Senior Manufacturintanager at Metrika, Inc. a medical
device manufacturer, from May 1999 to March 20860om July 1994 to May 1999, Mr. Wright served asniliger of Manufacturing and
Process Development for Metra Biosystems Inc.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We depend on the sale of the Invisalign systemtfeg vast majority of our net revenues, and any dieelin sales of Invisalign treatment
for any reason, a continued weakness in generalmmmic conditions, or a decline in average sellingges would adversely affect n
revenues, gross margin and net income.

We expect that net revenues from the sale of thisdiign system, primarily Invisalign Full and lisalign Teen, will continue to account
for the vast majority of our total net revenuestfor foreseeable future. Continued and widespresttehacceptance of Invisalign by
orthodontists, GPs and consumers is critical tofeture success. If orthodontists and GPs expegieneduction in consumer demand for
orthodontic services, if consumers prove unwilliogadopt Invisalign as rapidly as we anticipaténdhe volume that we anticipate, if
orthodontists or GPs choose to use a competitiodymt rather than Invisalign or if the averageisglprice of our product declines, our
operating results would be harmed.

Demand for our products may not increase as rapidly we anticipate due to a variety of factors inding a continued weakness in
general economic condition:

Consumer spending habits are affected by, amoreg thimgs, prevailing economic conditions, levdl@mployment, salaries and wage
rates, gas prices, consumer confidence and congqueneption of economic conditions. A general slowd in the U.S. economy and certain
international economies or an uncertain economiimols would adversely affect consumer spending tsalhich may, among other things,
result in a decrease in the number of overall albintic case starts, reduced the patient traffabeintists’ offices, reduction in consumer
spending on higher value procedures or a redustitiee demand for dental services generally, edevhach would have a material adverse
effect on our sales and operating results. Continueakness in the global economy results in a ehgihg environment for selling dental
technologies and dentists may postpone investnieetpital equipment, such as intra-oral scanneraddition, Invisalign treatment, which
currently accounts for the vast majority of our r@tenues, represents a significant change froditimaal orthodontic treatment, and custon
and consumers may be reluctant to accept it ormoafind it preferable to traditional treatment. We
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have generally received positive feedback fromaattimtists, GPs and consumers regarding Invisal@atrhent as both an alternative to brace
and as a clinical method for treatment of malodolusbut a number of dental professionals beliénat Invisalign treatment is appropriate for
only a limited percentage of their patients. Ineszamarket acceptance of all of our products veifiehd in part upon the recommendations of
dental professionals, as well as other factoraittinly effectiveness, safety, ease of use, reltgbdiesthetics, and price compared to competing
products.

The frequency of use of the Invisalign system byhmdontists or GPs may not increase at the ratetth@ anticipate or at all.

One of our key objectives is to continue to inceeasilization, or the adoption and frequency of,udfehe Invisalign system by new and
existing customers. If utilization of the Invisaligystem by our existing and newly trained orthdidtsnor GPs does not occur or does not ¢
as quickly as we anticipate, our operating resdtdd be harmed.

We may experience declines in average selling mio€our products.

In response to challenges in our business, inctuitioreased competition, we have in the past retittelist price of our products. We
also provide volume based discount programs taloators. In addition, we sell a number of prodadtdifferent list prices. If we introduce
any price reductions, or consumer rebate progrémss expand our discount programs in the futureqarticipation in these programs
increases; if our product mix shifts to lower pdgaroducts or products that have a higher percertgdeferred revenue; or if sales by our
distributors grows at a faster pace than our dselds, our average selling price would be advweefécted and our net revenues, gross margi
and net income may be reduced. Furthermore, alththegyU.S. dollar is our reporting currency, a jporof our net revenues and income are
generated in foreign currencies. Net revenues rewhie generated by subsidiaries operating outditteedJnited States are translated into
dollars using exchange rates effective during éspective period and are affected by changes image rates. As a result, negative
movements in currency exchange rates against theddllar will adversely affect our average sellprece and consequently the amount of ne
revenues and profits in our consolidated finansiatements.

As we continue to grow, we are subject to growthated risks, including risks related to capacitystraints at our existing facilities.

We are subject to growth related risks, includiagacity constraints and pressure on our interrsibsys and personnel. In order to
manage current operations and future growth effelgti we will need to continue to implement and fowe our operational, financial and
management information systems and to hire, tradtjvate, manage and retain employees. We may &leleito manage such growth
effectively. Any such failure could have a mateddlerse impact on our business, operations argpects. In addition, in order to meet the
demands from expected volumes and continued irtierrzd expansion, we opened a new manufacturinigitfeimn Juarez, Mexico at the end of
2011. We completed the transition of virtually @lir scanner distribution, repair and CAD/CAM seegdrom our New Jersey facility to this
facility in Juarez, Mexico in the third quarter2@12. In addition, in October 2012, we transitiooed intra-oral scanner research and
development and manufacturing operations in Or dahisrael into a new, larger facility in the sagitg. Expansion can inherently include
additional costs and start-up inefficiencies, al agthe inability to successfully integrate aatdial facilities or incremental capacity and to
realize anticipated synergies, economies of sqateher value. Periods of contraction or reducedsakes, or other factors affecting particular
sites, create other challenges.

Because we cannot always immediately adapt owluyatan capacity and related cost structures togimg market conditions, our
manufacturing capacity may at times exceed oisfadirt of our production requirements. In additiéproduct demand decreases or we fail to
forecast demand accurately, we could be requiredtite off inventory or record excess capacity gear, which would lower our gross margin.
Any or all of these problems could result in thed@f customers, provide an opportunity for cormgefiroducts to gain market acceptance an
otherwise harm our business and financial results.

We may never achieve the anticipated benefits fromm acquisitions which may have an adverse effeotaur business.

We acquired Cadent Holdings, Inc. in April 2011. Aéguired Cadent for their people, their technolagg their existing revenue strez
such as, OrthoCAD iRecord and OrthoCAD iCast initiold to their intra-oral scanning technology. Thiquisition is expected to strengthen
our ability to drive adoption of the Invisalign $gm by integrating Invisalign treatment more fullith mainstream tools and procedures in
doctors’ practices. In addition, we believe that tombination of the two companies will help accske the use of intra-oral scanning in the
dental industry by leveraging Align’s global safeach, extensive professional and consumer matketipabilities and large customer
base. We also expect to complete the acquisitiauofAsia-Pacific distributor in the second quadeR013. We may experience difficulties in
achieving the anticipated financial or strategindfés of these acquisitions. Potential risks idelu
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. slower adoption or lack of acceptance for irtrat scanning products in general or our chairfedéures
. our inability to increase utilization by integiray Invisalign treatment more fully with intraral scanner

. difficulty in integrating the technology, opdmts, internal accounting controls or work forceluf acquired business with our
existing business;

. diversion of management resources and focus fragoiog business matte
. retention of key employees following the acquisit
. aggressive competition from other manufactuogistra-oral scanners could lengthen the custagwaluation process and result

in price reductions and loss of sales;

. difficulty dealing with tax, employment, logis#i, and other related issues unique to interndtaperations in Israel and the Asia-
Pacific region;

. possible impairment of relationships with employaped customers as a result of the integre

. possible inconsistencies in standards, contpots;edures and policies among the acquired busiseand Align, which may make
it more difficult to implement and harmonize worldie financial reporting, accounting, billing, infoation technology and other
systems;

. a large portion of Cadent’s operations are ledan Israel, accordingly, any increase in hoggiin the Middle East involving

Israel may cause interruption or suspension ofrtass operations without warning; and

. negative impact on our results of operationsfarahcial condition from acquisition-related chesgfurther impairment of
goodwill, impairment of intangible assets and/@eismpairment charges.

If we cannot successfully integrate the acquiresinmss with our existing business, our resultspefrations and financial condition could
be adversely affected.

If we fail to sustain or increase profitability orevenue growth in future periods, the market prié@ our common stock may decline.

If we are to sustain or increase profitability iure periods, we will need to continue to increasenet revenues, while controlling our
expenses. Because our business is evolving, iitfisutt to predict our future operating resultslewels of growth, and we have in the past not
been and may in the future not be able to sustaiistorical growth rates. If we do not increasefipability or revenue growth or otherwise
meet the expectations of securities analysts @sitors, the market price of our common stock Wil decline.

Our financial results have fluctuated in the pashd may fluctuate in the future which may cause vulgy in our stock price.

Our operating results have fluctuated in the padtvae expect our future quarterly and annual opegagesults to fluctuate as we focus
increasing doctor and consumer demand for our mtsdirhese fluctuations could cause our stock paakecline or significantly
fluctuate. Some of the factors that could causeoperating results to fluctuate include:

. limited visibility into and difficulty predictig the level of activity in our customerngtactices from quarter to quart

. weakness in consumer spending as a result ofdhelslvn in the United States economy and global ecues

. changes in relationships with our distribut

. changes in the timing of receipt of case produders during a given quarter which, given oudeyitne and the delay between

case receipts and case shipments, could have aetimop which quarter revenue can be recognized;
. fluctuations in currency exchange rates againsutise dollar

. changes in product m
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. our inability to predict from period to periokdet number of trainers or the availability of dostoequired to complete intra-oral
scanner installations, which may impact the timafigvhen revenue is recognized;

. if participation in our customer rebate progranré@ases our average selling price will be adverafcted

. seasonal fluctuations in the number of doctorséirtoffices and their availability to take appognts

. success of or changes to our marketing programs fpaarter to quarte

. our reliance on our contract manufacturersfiergroduction of sub-assemblies for our irgral scanner

. timing of industry tradeshow

. changes in the timing of when revenue is recognieduding as a result of the introduction of npmeducts or promotions or a

result of changes to critical accounting estimateisew accounting pronouncements;

. changes to our effective tax rz
. unanticipated delays in production caused by ingefit capacity or availability of raw materie
. any disruptions in the manufacturing processlpiting unexpected turnover in the labor forceharintroduction of new

production processes, power outages or naturaher disasters beyond our control;
. the development and marketing of directly compatdipproducts by existing and new competit

. major changes in available technology or théguesmces of customers may cause our current pradigetngs to become less
competitive or obsolete;

. aggressive price competition from competit
. costs and expenditures in connection with litiga
. the timing of new product introductions by uslamur competitors, as well as customer order daifem anticipation of

enhancements or new products;

. disruptions to our business due to politicabremmic or other social instability, including thmpact of an epidemic any of which
results in changes in consumer spending habitsurnars unable or unwilling to visit the orthodontis general practitioners
office, as well as any impact on workforce abseasteg

. inaccurate forecasting of net revenues, produ@iahother operating costs; i
. investments in research and development to devedopproducts and enhanceme

To respond to these and other factors, we may terthke business decisions that could adversedgiadfur operating results such as
modifications to our pricing policy, business sture or operations. Most of our expenses, suchmgsayee compensation and lease payment
obligations, are relatively fixed in the short tevoreover, our expense levels are based, in parour expectations regarding future revenue
levels. As a result, if our net revenues for aipaldr period fall below our expectations, whetbaused by changes in consumer spending,
consumer preferences, weakness in the U.S. orlgdebaomies, changes in customer behavior relatedvertising and prescribing our
product, or other factors, we may be unable tosidjpending quickly enough to offset any shorifatiet revenues. Due to these and other
factors, we believe that quarter-to-quarter congoaus of our operating results may not be meaninyfll should not rely on our results for
any one quarter as an indication of our futureqremfince.

Our future success may depend on our ability to elep, successfully introduce and achieve marketemance of new products.

Our future success may depend on our ability teelgy manufacture, market, and obtain regulatopr@al or clearance of new
products. There can be no assurance that we wilbleto successfully develop, sell and achievekatacceptance of these and other new
products and applications and enhanced versioosraéxisting product or software. The extent of] sate at which, market acceptance and
penetration are achieved by future products isatfan of many variables, which include, among othéngs, our ability to:

. correctly identify customer needs and preferencespaedict future needs and preferen
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. include functionality and features that address$aruer requirement

. ensure compatibility of our computer operating sygt and hardware configurations with those of ogtamers
. allocate our research and development fundingdduymts with higher growth prospe

. anticipate and respond to our competitoies’elopment of new products and technological iations

. differentiate our offerings from our competitoodferings

. innovate and develop new technologies and appbica

. the availability of thirdearty reimbursement of procedures using our prag

. obtain adequate intellectual property rights;

. encourage customers to adopt new technolc

If we fail to accurately predict customer needs praferences or fail to produce viable technologiesmay invest heavily in research
and development of products that do not lead toifidgnt revenue. Even if we successfully innovate develop new products and produce
enhancements, we may incur substantial costs mgdsm, and our profitability may suffer. In additjeven if our new products are success
introduced, it is unlikely that they will rapidlyagn market share and acceptance primarily duectodlatively long period of time it takes to
successfully treat a patient with the Invisaligsteyn. Since it takes approximately 12 to 24 motadhseat a patient, our customers may be
unwilling to rapidly adopt our new products untiely successfully complete at least one case drraote historical clinical results are
available.

Our ability to market and sell new products may die subject to government regulation, includingrapal or clearance by the United
States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”), andeign government agencies. Any failure in our &ptlo successfully develop and
introduce or achieve market acceptance of our nedyets or enhanced versions of existing produmtiidchave a material adverse effect on
our operating results and could cause our net i@&to decline.

A disruption in the operations of our primary frelg carrier or higher shipping costs could cause adline in our net revenues or a
reduction in our earnings.

We are dependent on commercial freight carrieimamily UPS, to deliver our products to our custosndf the operations of these
carriers are disrupted for any reason, we may lélerto deliver our products to our customers timaly basis. If we cannot deliver our
products in an efficient and timely manner, ourteosers may reduce their orders from us and ouravetnues and operating profits could
materially decline. In a rising fuel cost envirormheour freight costs will increase. If freight t®snaterially increase and we are unable to pas
that increase along to our customers for any reasotherwise offset such increases in our cosiedbfevenues, our gross margin and financia
results could be adversely affected.

We are dependent on our international operationshish exposes us to foreign operational, politicat@other risks that may harm our
business.

Our key production steps are performed in operatiooated outside of the U.S. At our facility insf@ Rica, technicians use a
sophisticated, internally developed computer-madgtirogram to prepare digital treatment plans, tvhie then transmitted electronically to
Juarez, Mexico. These digital files form the badithe ClinCheck treatment plan and are used toufisature aligner molds. Our order
acquisition, aligner fabrication and shipping opierss are conducted in Juarez, Mexico. In additthe research and development efforts
conducted in our San Jose, California facility,al&o carry out research and development at locatioSan Jose, Costa Rica and Moscow,
Russia. In addition, our customer-care, accoumsivable, credit and collections and customer exagistration organizations are located at
our facility in Costa Rica. We also have operationisrael where the design and wand assemblyg-ioital scanner manufacturing and digital
modeling of our intra-oral scanners occurs. Ouangle on international operations exposes us ks dad uncertainties that may affect our
business or results of operation, including:

. difficulties in hiring and retaining employeesrgerally, as well as difficulties in hiring andagting employees with the necessary
skills to perform the more technical aspects of@perations;

. difficulties in managing international operatic

. fluctuations in currency exchange ra
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. import and export license requirements and regiris

. controlling production volume and quality of the mé&acturing proces

. political, social and economic instability, incladias a result of increased levels of violenceuardz, Mexico or the Middle Ea
. acts of terrorism and acts of w

. interruptions and limitations in telecommunicat&ervices

. product or material transportation delays orufp$ion, including as a result of health epidenn&stricting travel to and from our

international locations or as a result of naturshsiters, such as earthquakes or volcanic eruptions

. burdens of complying with a wide variety of locauantry and regional lawn
. trade restrictions and changes in tariffs;
. potential adverse tax consequen

If any of these risks materialize in the future, ee@ild experience production delays and lost caydl revenue.

A key step in our manufacturing process relies arphisticated computer technology that requires n@ghnicians to undergo a relative
long training process. If we are unable to accurtgredict our volume growth, and fail to hire a fficient number of technicians in
advance of such demand, the delivery time of ouoqiuicts could be delayed which could adversely aftag results of operations.

Training production technicians takes approximagéyto 120 days. As a result, if we are unablectueately predict our volume growth,
we may not have a sufficient number of trained méghns to deliver our products within the timefour customers expect. Such a delay
could cause us to lose existing customers ordaiktract new customers. This could cause a deiclinar net revenues and net profits and
could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our headquarters, digital dental modeling processasd other manufacturing processes are principalbcated in regions that are
subject to earthquakes and other natural disaste

Our digital dental modeling is processed in ouilitydocated in San Jose, Costa Rica. The openatieam in Costa Rica creates
ClinCheck treatment plans using sophisticated cder@oftware. In addition, our customer facing apiens are located in Costa Rica. Our
aligner molds and finished aligners are fabricétedliarez, Mexico. Both Costa Rica and Mexico aredrthquake zones and may be subject 1
other natural disasters. If there is a major eardkg or any other natural disaster in a region &/bee of these facilities is located, our abild
create ClinCheck treatment plans, respond to custamyuiries or manufacture and ship our alignexdat be compromised which could result
in our customers experiencing a significant defageiceiving their completed aligners and a decremservice levels for a period of time. In
addition, our headquarters facility is locatedhia 5an Francisco Bay Area. An earthquake or otherral disaster in this region could result in
a disruption in our operations. Any such businagsriuption could materially and adversely affagt business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Competition in the markets for our products is imse and we expect aggressive competition from @gstompetitors and other
companies that may introduce new technologies ie fiature.

Currently, our products compete directly againstpicts manufactured and distributed by various @rigs, both within and outside the
United States. Many of these manufacturers, inolgdanaher Corporation, 3M, Sirona Dental Systénts,and Dentsply International, have
substantially greater financial resources and naotufing and marketing experience than we do and mdhe future, attempt to develop an
orthodontic system similar to ours or combine t@dhgies that make our product economically unatitvac The expiration of key certain
patents commencing in 2017 owned by us may resaltiditional competition. Large consumer prodachpanies may also enter the
orthodontic supply market. Furthermore, we may famapetition in the future from new companies tal introduce new technologies. We
may be unable to compete with these competitorsoarcbr more of these competitors may render aimi@ogy obsolete or economically
unattractive. If we are unable to compete effetyivéth existing products or respond effectivelyamoy products developed by new or existing
competitors, our business could be harmed. Incdeesmpetition has resulted in the past and maférfuture result in volume discounting &
price reductions, reduced gross margins, reducafitadility and loss of
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market share, and reduce dental professionalsiteffmd commitment to expand their use of our petgjany of which could have a material
adverse effect on our net revenues, volume gravethincome (losses) and stock price. We cannotagsw that we will be able to compete
successfully against our current or future competior that competitive pressures will not haveademal adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Our information technology systems are critical twr business. System integration and implementatisgues and system security risks
could disrupt our operations, which could have a tedal adverse impact on our business and operatiegults.

We rely on the efficient and uninterrupted operatid complex information technology systems. Afbinmation technology systems are
vulnerable to damage or interruption from a varitgources. As our business has grown in sizecamplexity, the growth has placed, and
will continue to place, significant demands on mifiormation technology systems. To effectively mgaé#his growth, our information systems
and applications require an ongoing commitmenigfifcant resources to maintain, protect and ecbaxisting systems and develop new
systems to keep pace with continuing changes orrmdtion processing technology, evolving industig eegulatory standards and changing
customer preferences. If the information we relgmufo run our businesses were to be found to leimate or unreliable, if we fail to prope
maintain our information systems and data integatyif we fail to develop new capabilities to meet business needs in a timely manner, we
could have operational disruptions, have custorisgrudies, lose our ability to produce timely anduaate reports, have regulatory or other I
problems, have increases in operating and adnatiigrexpenses, lose existing customers, havedli§i in attracting new customers or in
implementing our growth strategies, or suffer othdverse consequences. In addition, experiencegutemprogrammers and hackers may be
able to penetrate our network security and misgpate our confidential information or that of tthiparties, create system disruptions or caus
shutdowns. Furthermore, sophisticated hardwareopaedating system software and applications thagiter internally develop or procure
from third parties may contain defects in desigd amanufacture, including “bugs” and other probldghet can unexpectedly interfere with the
operation of the system. The costs to eliminatalleviate security problems, viruses and bugs cbeldignificant, and the efforts to address
these problems could result in interruptions thaymave a material adverse impact on our operati@igevenues and operating results.

We are currently focused on adding more functigpatito our business enterprise systems to moreieftly integrate these systems
with our other system applications, such as custdaning and manufacturing tools, and intend toticare this effort for the foreseeable
future. System upgrades and enhancements reqgiméicant expenditures and allocation of valuabigiyee resources. Delays in integratior
or disruptions to our business from implementatibthese new or upgraded systems could have aialadverse impact on our financial
condition and operating results.

Additionally, we continuously upgrade our custorfaing software applications, specifically the @hreck and MyAligntech
software. Software applications frequently contirors or defects, especially when they are firgbduced or when new versions are
released. The discovery of a defect or error oirthempatibility with the computer operating systand hardware configurations of customers
in a new upgraded version or the failure of oumaniy information systems may result in the follogvconsequences, among others: loss of
revenue or delay in market acceptance, damagerteeputation or increased service costs, any otlwhould have a material adverse effec
our business, financial condition or results ofragiens.

Furthermore, our business requires the securentias®n of confidential information over public merks. Because of the confidential
health information we store and transmit, seclrigaches could expose us to a risk of regulatdigraditigation, possible liability and
loss. Our security measures may be inadequatest@pt security breaches, and our business opesaiiwh profitability would be adversely
affected by, among other things, loss of custoraatspotential criminal and civil sanctions if theng not prevented.

There can be no assurance that our process of wingrexisting systems, developing new systems ppar our expanding operations,
integrating new systems, protecting confidentidigrd information, and improving service levelsiwibt be delayed or that additional systems
issues will not arise in the future. Failure to quigtely protect and maintain the integrity of aubrmation systems and data may result in a
material adverse effect on our financial positi@sults of operations and cash flows.

If the security of our customer and patient infornian is compromised, patient care could suffer, ang could be liable for related
damages, and our reputation could be impaired.

We retain confidential customer and patient infaiorain our processing centers. Therefore, it isaal that our facilities and
infrastructure remain secure and that our facditied infrastructure are perceived by the markegpdend our
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customers to be secure. Despite the implementafisacurity measures, our infrastructure may beemalble to physical break-ins, computer
viruses, programming errors, attacks by third partr similar disruptive problems. If we fail to @@ur clients’ expectations regarding the
security of healthcare information, we could bélksfor damages and our reputation could be imgalreaddition, patient care could suffer,
and we could be liable if our systems fail to deficorrect information in a timely manner. Our irswce may not protect us from this risk.

Our success depends in part on our proprietary teotogy, and if we are unable to successfully enferour intellectual property rights,
our competitive position may be harmed. Litigatietaims of this type is costly and could distractrananagement and cause a decline in
our results of operations and stock price.

Our success will depend in part on our ability aimbain existing intellectual property and to obhtand maintain further intellectual
property protection for our products, both in th&land in other countries. Our inability to docsalld harm our competitive position. As of
December 31, 2012 , we had issued 280 U.S. patetitgpending U.S. patent applications, and 224darissued patents, and 134 pending
foreign patent applications.

We intend to rely on our portfolio of issued anagiag patent applications in the U.S. and in ottemtries to protect a large part of our
intellectual property and our competitive positibtawever, our currently pending or future patelmdis may not result in the issuance of
patents. Additionally, any patents issued to us bwghallenged, invalidated, held unenforceabteunivented, or may not be sufficiently
broad to prevent third parties from producing cotimgeproducts similar in design to our productsattdition, any protection afforded by
foreign patents may be more limited than that pediunder U.S. patents and intellectual propewtsg |&Ve also rely on protection of our
copyrights, trade secrets, know-how and proprieitaigrmation. We generally enter into confidentiplagreements with our employees,
consultants and our collaborative partners uponncentement of a relationship with us. However, ttesgeements may not provide
meaningful protection against the unauthorizedarstisclosure of our trade secrets or other confideinformation, and adequate remedies
may not exist if unauthorized use or disclosureanteroccur. Our inability to maintain the proprigtaature of our technology through patents,
copyrights or trade secrets would impair our cortipetadvantages and could have a material adwdfeet on our operating results, financial
condition and future growth prospects. In particuafailure to protect our proprietary rights mtigiiow competitors to copy our technology,
which could adversely affect our pricing and matedre. In addition, in an effort to protect ouellectual property we have in the past been
and may in the future be involved in litigation.eTpotential effects on our business operationdtiegdrom litigation that we may participate
in the future, whether or not ultimately determirmeaur favor or settled by us, are costly and dittee efforts and attention of our managen
and technical personnel from normal business ojpesat

Litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties aimdavorable rulings could occur. An unfavorabling could include monetary damages
or, in cases where injunctive relief is soughtjrganction prohibiting us from selling our producfmy of these results from our litigation co
adversely affect our results of operations andkspoice.

While we believe we currently have adequate intdroantrol over financial reporting, we are requiretb assess our internal control over
financial reporting on an annual basis and any futa adverse results from such assessment could téaud loss of investor confidence |
our financial reports and have an adverse effect oar stock price.

Pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 andules and regulations promulgated by the SEC, weaerquired to furnish in our
Form 10-K a report by our management regardingffeetiveness of our internal control over finahceporting. The report includes, among
other things, an assessment of the effectivenesarahternal control over financial reporting dsle end of our fiscal year, including a
statement as to whether or not our internal comvel financial reporting is effective. This asseeat must include disclosure of any material
weaknesses in our internal control over finan@glorting identified by management. While we belieue internal control over financial
reporting is currently effective, the effectivenes®ur internal controls to future periods is ®dbjto the risk that our controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, aralresult, the degree of compliance of our infezaatrol over financial reporting with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Establgshiesting and maintaining an effective systermtd#rinal control over financial reporting
requires significant resources and time commitmentthe part of our management and our financé, staly require additional staffing and
infrastructure investments, and would increasecosts of doing business. If we are unable to afisatrour internal control over financial
reporting is effective in any future period (ooifr auditors are unable to express an opinion ertfectiveness of our internal controls or
conclude that our internal controls are ineffedtivee could lose investor confidence in the accuma completeness of our financial reports,
which could have an adverse effect on our stoatepri

If our goodwill or long-lived assets become impaireve may be required to record a significant chartp earnings.
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Under Generally Accepted Accounting Principleshia United States (“U.S. GAAP”), we review our godithand asset group for
impairment when events or changes in circumstaimcksate the carrying value may not be recoverahdiitionally, goodwill is required to t
tested for impairment at least annually. The vaduat used to determine the fair values used togmsiwill and the undiscounted cash flows
used to evaluate the recoverability of the assmifgare dependent upon various assumptions amttrefllnagement’s best estimates. Chang:
in certain assumptions including revenue growthgatliscount rates, earnings multiples and futask dlows may cause a change in
circumstances indicating that the carrying valugaddwill or the asset group may be impaired. Wg bwrequired to record a significant
charge to earnings in the financial statementsxdutie period in which any impairment of goodwillasset group are determined.

During the third quarter of 2012, we determined thdficient indicators of potential impairment stad to require an interim goodwill
impairment analysis for our Scanner and CAD/CAMV&®SS reporting unit. As a result, we performedadill impairment test as of
September 30, 2012 for our Scanner and CAD/CAM iSesweporting unit and concluded that the goodwithin this reporting unit was
impaired. Based on our step one analysis, we cdadlthat the implied fair value of goodwill was stamtially lower than the carrying value
the goodwill for the SCCS reporting unit. We reamdh preliminary goodwill impairment charge durthg third quarter of 2012 of $24.7
million and an additional $11.9 million during tfeurth quarter of 2012, representing a changetimase, for a total impairment charge of
$36.6 million . None of the goodwill impairment ega was deductible for tax purposes. As of Decerihe012, the remaining amount of
goodwill associated with our SCCS reporting unii40.7 million .

If we lose our key personnel or are unable to atttand retain key personnel, we may be unable togue business opportunities or
develop our products.

We are highly dependent on the key employees irclinical engineering, technology development, safieining and marketing
personnel and management teams. The loss of thieesprovided by those individuals may signifidamtelay or prevent the achievement of
our product development and other business obgstimid could harm our business. Our future suvedissso depend on our ability to
identify, recruit, train and retain additional gifiad personnel, including orthodontists. Few odbntists are accustomed to working in a
manufacturing environment since they are genetediped to work in private practices, universitiesl other research institutions. Thus, we
may be unable to attract and retain personnel tivé#tadvanced qualifications necessary for the éurtlevelopment of our
business. Furthermore, we may not be successfataiming our key personnel or their services.dfave unable to attract and retain key
personnel, our business could be materially harméshad two executive departures in fiscal 2012vaadecently announced the departure o
our Chief Financial Officer effective March 4, 20Mhile we have since hired replacements for tHE22fepartures and are currently
conducting a search for a new CFO, there is alwiakof uncertainty and instability relating to aaility to find highly qualified successors
for certain executive positions and to transitioa tluties and responsibilities of any departingdeagcutive in an orderly manner. In addition,
our ability to recognize revenue on the directsalleour intra-oral scanners depends in part upmrability to schedule and staff trainings. The
loss of the services provided by these individaalsur ability to timely hire such personnel infitiént numbers based on our volume growth,
may harm our business. If we are unable to retairtrainers or replace such individuals with pessbaving equivalent technical expertise anc
qualifications, or if we are unable to successfirtill such technical expertise in newly hiredgmnnel or accurately predict the number of
such personnel needed, our net revenues could tegiatig harmed.

If we infringe the patents or proprietary rights afther parties or are subject to a patent infringemt claim, our ability to grow our
business may be severely limited.

Extensive litigation over patents and other intelial property rights is common in the medical devindustry. We have been sued for
infringement of third party’s patents in the past ave may be the subject of patent or other litigin the future. From time to time, we have
received and may in the future receive letters fthiml parties drawing our attention to their pateghts. While we do not believe that we
infringe upon any valid and enforceable rights tieate been brought to our attention, there mayttoer anore pertinent rights of which we are
presently unaware. The defense and prosecutianteifdactual property suits, interference proceesliagd related legal and administrative
proceedings could result in substantial expenses @nd significant diversion of effort by our tedah and management personnel. An adverse
determination of any litigation or interference geeding to which we may become a party could stbto significant liabilities. An adverse
determination of this nature could also put oueptt at risk of being invalidated or interpretedoaly or require us to seek licenses from
third parties. Licenses may not be available onroencially reasonable terms or at all, in which a@yenr business would be materially
adversely affected.

We maintain single supply relationships for certaagf our key machines and materials technologiesdawur business and operating
results could be harmed if supply is restrictedends or the price of raw materials used in our mdaaturing process increases.
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We are highly dependent on manufacturers of speethscanning equipment, rapid prototyping machinesin and other advanced
materials, as well as the optics, electronic ahémimechanical components of our intra-oral scanie maintain single supply relationships
for many of these machines and materials technedodm particular, our CT scanning and stereolitaply equipment used in our aligner
manufacturing and many of the critical componeatstie optics of our scanners are provided by sisgppliers. We are also committed to
purchasing all of our resin and polymer, the priynam materials used in our manufacturing processlear aligners, from a single source. If
these or other suppliers encounter financial, dpegar other difficulties or if our relationshipitiv them changes, we might not be able to
quickly establish or qualify replacement sourcesugiply and could face production interruptiondage and inefficiencies. In addition,
technology changes by our vendors could disrupgscto required manufacturing capacity or requipeasive, time consuming development
efforts to adapt and integrate new equipment ocgsses. Our growth may exceed the capacity of on®me of these manufacturers to
produce the needed equipment and materials ircgirifiquantities to support our growth. Conversiglygrder to secure supplies for product
of products, we sometimes enter into reamcelable purchase commitments with vendors, wtichd impact our ability to adjust our invent
to reflect declining market demands. If demandofiar products is less than we expect, we may expeziadditional excess and obsolete
inventories and be forced to incur additional cleargnd our profitability may suffer. In the evehtechnology changes, delivery delays, or
shortages of or increases in price for these iteansbusiness and growth prospects may be harmed.

We depend on a single contract manufacturer and pligr of parts used in our iTero scanner and anysdilption in this relationship may
cause us to fail to meet the demands of our custsrend damage our customer relationships.

We rely on a third party manufacturer in Israeh$semble our iTero scanner. As a result, if thisl gharty manufacturer fails to deliver
components or if we lose its services, we may lablento deliver our products in a timely manner andbusiness may be harmed. Any
difficulties encountered by the third party mantfmer with respect to hiring personnel, and maiitej acceptable manufacturing standards,
controls, procedures and policies could disruptadaility to deliver our products in a timely mannEmnding a substitute manufacturer may be
expensive, time-consuming or impossible and coesdilt in a significant interruption in the supplyonir intra-oral scanning products. Any
failure by our contract manufacturer that resuitdelays in our fulfilment of customer orders ntause us to lose revenues and suffer damag
to our customer relationships.

We primarily rely on our direct sales force to sellir products, and any failure to maintain our diot sales force could harm our
business.

Our ability to sell our products and generate reresmprimarily depends upon our direct sales foritleinvour North American and
international markets. As of December 31, 20&2r North American sales organization consisfeapproximately 200 people. Internationa
we had approximately 80 people engaged in salesalad support as of December 31, 2012 . We dbawa any long-term employment
contracts with the members of our direct salesefoftie loss of the services provided by these keygmnel may harm our business. If we are
unable to retain our direct sales force personnegglace them with individuals of equivalent teiclahexpertise and qualifications, or if we are
unable to successfully instill such technical experor if we fail to establish strong relationshigith our customers within a relatively short
period of time, our net revenues and our abilityn@intain market share could be materially harnredddition, due to our large and
fragmented customer base, we may not be able taderall of our customers with product support inaiagely upon the launch of a new
product. As a result, adoption of new products byaustomers may be slower than anticipated an@lbility to grow market share and
increase our net revenues may be harmed.

If our distributor relationships are not successfubur ability to market and sell our products woulte harmed and our financial
performance will be adversely affecte

We depend on relationships with distributors fa tharketing and sales of our products in variowggaphic regions, and we have a
limited ability to influence their efforts. Relyingn distributors for our sales and marketing cdwddn our business for various reasons,
including:

. agreements with distributors may terminate preneffudue to disagreements or may result in litigatietween the partne
. we may not be able to renew existing distributaeagents on acceptable ter

. our distributors may not devote sufficient resosrttethe sale of produc

. our distributors may be unsuccessful in marketingproducts
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. our existing relationships with distributors nagclude us from entering into additional futureaagements with other
distributors; and

. we may not be able to negotiate future distribagneements on acceptable te

Complying with regulations enforced by the FDA amther regulatory authorities is an expensive anthg-consuming process, and any
failure to comply could result in substantial pertads.

Our products are medical devices and are subjesttemsive regulation in the U.S. and internatipn&DA regulations are wide ranging
and govern, among other things:

. product design, development, manufacturing anéhtg
. product labeling

. product storag

. premmarket clearance or approy

. advertising and promotion; a

. product sales and distributic

Our failure to comply with applicable regulatorgtgrements could result in enforcement action leyRBDA or state agencies, which v
include any of the following sanctions:

. warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent desm@ed civil penaltie

. repair, replacement, refunds, recall or seizureunfproducts

. operating restrictions or partial suspension altslhutdown of productio

. refusing our requests for 510(k) clearance errparket approval of new products, new intended,usemodifications to existing
products;

. withdrawing clearance or praarket approvals that have already been grantel

. criminal prosecutiol

If any of these events were to occur, they coultnhaur business. We must comply with facility régition and product listing
requirements of the FDA and adhere to applicablaliyuSystem regulations. The FDA enforces its Qua&ystem regulations through
periodic unannounced inspections. Our failure ke tsatisfactory corrective action in response tadrerse inspection or the failure to comply
with applicable manufacturing regulations couldufem enforcement action, and we may be requicefind alternative manufacturers, which
could be a long and costly process. Any FDA enfioreet action could have a material adverse effectson

Before we can sell a new medical device in the lhBSmarket a new use of or claim for an existingdoict we must obtain FDA
clearance or approval, unless an exemption apgietining regulatory clearances or approvals @a kengthy and time-consuming
process. Even though the devices we market haaénelot the necessary clearances from the FDA, welrmaynable to maintain such
clearances in the future. Furthermore, we may lablerto obtain the necessary clearances for newelkethat we intend to market in the
future. Our inability to maintain or obtain reguat clearances or approvals could materially hanmbusiness.

If compliance with healthcare regulations becomeasstly and difficult for our customers or for us, wmay not be able to grow our
business.

Participants in the healthcare industry are sultfeektensive and frequently changing regulatiamden numerous laws administered by
governmental entities at the federal, state andl levels, some of which are, and others of whicly ime, applicable to our business. In
response to perceived increases in health cars icostcent years, Congress recently passed rezaktireform legislation that President Ob:
signed into law in March 2010. The enacted legishatontains many provisions designed to genehstedvenues necessary to fund the
coverage expansions. The most relevant of thesasfwos are those that impose fees or taxes oaindrealth-related industries, including
medical device manufacturers. Beginning in 2018henedical device manufacturer will have to payacise tax in an amount equal to 2.3
percent of the price for which
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such manufacturer sells its medical devices irltl& This tax applies to all medical devices, idahg our products, which could have a
material, negative impact on our results of operetiand our cash flows.

Furthermore, our healthcare provider customersisesubject to a wide variety of laws and regataithat could affect the nature and
scope of their relationships with us. The healtbcaarket itself is highly regulated and subjeathianging political, economic and regulatory
influences. Regulations implemented pursuant tdaith Insurance Portability and Accountabilityt&IPAA), including regulations
affecting the security and privacy of patient heedire information held by healthcare providers thiedl business associates may require us to
make significant and unplanned enhancements offatdtapplications or services, result in delaysaorcellations of orders, or result in the
revocation of endorsement of our products and sesvby healthcare participants. The effect of HIF#®& newly enforced regulations on our
business is difficult to predict, and there cambessurance that we will adequately address thiadss risks created by HIPAA and its
implementation or that we will be able to take atege of any resulting business opportunities.

Extensive and changing government regulation of thealthcare industry may be expensive to complyhveihd exposes us to the risk of
substantial government penaltie

In addition to medical device laws and regulationgnerous state and federal healthcare-relatedriegudate our business, covering
areas such as:

. storage, transmission and disclosure of medicaltinétion and healthcare recol

. prohibitions against the offer, payment or rptef remuneration to induce referrals to entipesviding healthcare services or
goods or to induce the order, purchase or recomatimdof our products; and

. the marketing and advertising of our prodt

Complying with these laws and regulations coulekgensive and time-consuming, and could increasemerating costs or reduce or
eliminate certain of our sales and marketing ati¢igior our revenues.

We face risks related to our international salesciuding the need to obtain necessary foreign regtalry clearance or approvals.

Outside of North America, we currently sell our gwots in Europe, Asi&acific, Latin America and the Middle East and reapand int
other countries from time to time. For sales of praducts outside the U.S., we are subject to oreégulatory requirements that vary widely
from country to country. The time required to obtaelearances or approvals required by other casimay be longer than that required for
FDA clearance or approval, and requirements foh sypprovals may differ from FDA requirements. Weyrha unable to obtain regulatory
approvals in one or more of the other countriestiich we do business or in which we may do businesise future. We may also incur
significant costs in attempting to obtain and maimforeign regulatory approvals. If we experiedetays in receipt of approvals to market our
products outside of the U.S., or if we fail to neecthese approvals, we may be unable to markepmgucts or enhancements in international
markets in a timely manner, if at all.

Our business exposes us to potential product lidpitlaims, and we may incur substantial expensewé are subject to product liability
claims or litigation.

Medical devices involve an inherent risk of prodiigility claims and associated adverse publiditie may be held liable if any product
we develop or any product that uses or incorporatgof our technologies causes injury or is otligevifound unsuitable. Although we intend
to continue to maintain product liability insurapeelequate insurance may not be available on addegerms, if at all, and may not provide
adequate coverage against potential liabilitiepr@duct liability claim, regardless of its merit@rentual outcome, could result in significant
legal defense costs. These costs would have theteff increasing our expenses and diverting managés attention away from the operation
of our business, and could harm our business.

Historically, the market price for our common stodias been volatile.

The market price of our common stock could be siliewide price fluctuations in response to vasifactors, many of which are
beyond our control. The factors include:

. quarterly variations in our results of operationd &quidity;
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. changes in recommendations by the investment contynomin their estimates of our net revenues agrafing result:

. speculation in the press or investment communiticeming our business and results of operal

. strategic actions by our competitors, such as maunouncements or acquisitic

. announcements of technological innovations or nesdyicts by us, our customers or competitors
. general economic market conditic

In addition, the stock market in general, and tlzeket for technology and medical device compamigsarticular, have experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations that haverofieen unrelated to or disproportionate to theatimg performance of those
companies. These broad market and industry famassseriously harm the market price of our commtonks regardless of our operating
performance. Historically, class action litigatigroften brought against an issuing company follmyperiods of volatility in the market price
of a company'’s securities.

Future sales of significant amounts of our commotosk may depress our stock price.

A large percentage of our outstanding common siclarrently owned by a small number of significatttckholders. These stockhold
have sold in the past, and may sell in the futlarge amounts of common stock over relatively shertods of time. Sales of substantial
amounts of our common stock in the public markebbyexisting stockholders may adversely affectritagket price of our common
stock. Such sales could create public perceptiadiffi€ulties or problems with our business and ndapress our stock price.

Changes in, or interpretations of, accounting rulesmd regulations, could result in unfavorable accoting charges.

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsimiormity with U.S. GAAP. These principles ardgt to interpretation by the
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") anduarbodies formed to interpret and create apprpaiecounting policies. A change in
these policies can have a significant effect onreported results and may even retroactively affeetiously reported transactions. Our
accounting policies that recently have been or bwgffected by changes in the accounting rulessfellows:

. revenue recognition; a
. leases

If we fail to manage our exposure to global finaratiand securities market risk successfully, our epeng results and financial
statements could be materially impacte

The primary objective of most of our investmeni\atiés is to preserve principal. To achieve thigeative, a majority of our marketable
investments are investment grade, liquid, shorttixed-income securities and money market instmisidenominated in U.S. dollars. If the
carrying value of our investments exceeds theviaine, and the decline in fair value is deemedetother-than-temporary, we will be required
to write down the value of our investments, whiolild materially harm our results of operations indncial condition. Moreover, the
performance of certain securities in our investnpantfolio correlates with the credit conditiontbe U.S. financial sector. In an current
unstable credit environment, we might incur sigifit realized, unrealized or impairment lossescatem with these investments.

We have adopted a shareholders rights’ plan to lithie possibility that we are acquired, which mayan that a transaction that
shareholders are in favor of or are benefited by ynae preventec

Our board of directors has the authority to isguéou5,000,000 shares of preferred stock and terchée the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions of such shares witlemyt further vote or action by our shareholdersdate, our board of directors has designated
200,000 shares as Series A participating prefesteck in connection with our shareholder rightsimlThe issuance of preferred stock under
certain circumstances could have the effect ofyiledpor preventing an acquisition of Align or othése adversely affecting the rights of the
holders of our stock. The shareholder rights’ ptaay have the effect of rendering more difficuldiscouraging an acquisition of our company
which is deemed undesirable by our board of dirsctbhe shareholder rights’ plan may cause subatatilution to a person or group
attempting to acquire us on terms or in a manneapproved by our board of directors, except purst@man offer conditioned on the negati
purchase or redemption of the rights issued urideshareholder rights’ plan.

Our effective tax rate may vary significantly fromeriod to period.
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Various internal and external factors may have fable or unfavorable effects on our future effextiax rate. These factors include, but
are not limited to, changes in tax laws, regulatiand/or rates, non-deductible goodwill impairmgeaksnging interpretations of existing tax
laws or regulations, changes in the relative priipas of revenues and income before taxes in thiewsjurisdictions in which we operate that
have differing statutory tax rates, the future Iexa# tax benefits of stock option deductions tielgto incentive stock options and employee
stock purchase plans, settlement of income taxguatid changes in overall levels of pretax eamiBgiring 2012, we incurred$86.6 million
impairment of goodwill which was not deductible fax purposes.

In June 2009, the Costa Rica Ministry of Foreigadg, an agency of the Government of Costa Ricateplaa twelve year extension of
the tax incentives which were previously grante@d002. Under these incentives, all of the incomeeasm in Costa Rica during these twelve
year incentive periods is subject to reduced raft€Xsta Rica income tax. The incentive tax ratélsexpire in various years beginning
2017. The Costa Rica corporate income tax ratewbatd apply, absent the incentives, is 30% for2®s a result of these incentives, income
taxes were reduced by $21.8 million in 2012. Ineorid receive the benefit of the incentives, we trhire specified numbers of employees and
maintain minimum levels of fixed asset investmenCosta Rica. If we do not fulfill these conditidies any reason, our incentive could lapse
and our income in Costa Rica would be subjectxattan at higher rates, which could have a negathgact on our operating results. Our
subsidiary in Israel is under audit by the localaathority for calendar years 2006 through 2011.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We occupy several facilities with a total officedamanufacturing area of over 750,000 square feletasfied and owned properties. At
December 31, 2012 , the significant facilities weceupied as follows:

Location Use Segment Expiration of lease
San Jose, California Leased office for headquarters, research & Clear Aligner and  September 2017
development, administrative personnel SCCS
San Jose, Costa Rica Leased office for administrative personnel, Clear Aligner and  September 2013
manufacturing personnel, and customer care SCCS
Juarez, Mexico Purchased manufacturing and office facility fo ~ Clear Aligner and N/A
manufacturing and administrative personnel SCCS
Juarez, Mexico Leased manufacturing and office for manufacturingClear Aligner and July 2013
and administrative personnel SCCS
Or Yehuda, Israel Leased manufacturing and office for SCCS October 2017

manufacturing, administrative personnel, anc
research and development

We believe that our existing facilities are adeguatmeet current requirements and that additionaubstitute space will be available as
needed to accommodate any expansion of operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Securities Class Action Lawsuit
On November 28, 2012, plaintiff City of Dearbornigfeis Act 345 Police & Fire Retirement System filethwsuit against Align,

Thomas M. Prescott (“Mr. Prescott”), Align's Presitiand Chief Executive Officer, and Kenneth B.larMr. Arola”), Align's Vice
President, Finance and Chief Financial Officethim United States District Court for the Northeristbct of California on behalf of a purport
class of purchasers of our common stock betweeit 2pr2012 and October 17, 2012 ( the "SecuritieBon™). The complaint alleges that
Align, Mr. Prescott and Mr. Arola violated Sectit@(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 anteR0Ob-5 promulgated thereunder, and
that Mr. Prescott and Mr. Arola violated Sectior{&0of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Speadif/, the complaint alleges that during
the purported class period our reported incomeeandings were materially overstated because dfiadao timely write down goodwill
related to the April 29, 2011 acquisition of Caddotdings, Inc., and that defendants made allegidiée statements concerning our forecasts
The complaint seeks monetary damages in an uriiggeamount, costs and attorney's fees. The hgarirthe motion for
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appointment of lead plaintiff is currently schedilifer May 30th, 2013. Align intends to vigorouslgfdnd itself against these allegations.
Align is currently unable to predict the outcomeldé complaint and therefore cannot determindikedihood of loss nor estimate a range of
possible loss.

Shareholder Derivative Lawsuit

On February 1, 2013, plaintiff Gary Udis filed aasbholder derivative lawsuit against several oA officers and directors in the
Superior Court of California, County of Santa Clarhe allegations in the complaint are similaritose presented in the Securities Action, but
the complaint asserts various state law causestiohaincluding claims of breach of fiduciary dutynjust enrichment, and insider trading,
among others. The complaint seeks unspecified desnaig behalf of Align, which is named solely as imahdefendant against whom no
recovery is sought. The complaint also seeks aeratilecting Align to reform and improve its corpte governance and internal procedures,
and seeks restitution in an unspecified amountscasd attorney's fees. Align intends to vigorgpulgfend itself against these allegations.
Align is currently unable to predict the outcomeldé complaint and therefore cannot determindikedihood of loss nor estimate a range of
possible losses.

In addition, in the course of Align's operationdigA is involved in a variety of claims, suits, #stigations, and proceedings, includ
actions with respect to intellectual property clajpatent infringement claims, government invesitga, labor and employment claims, bre
of contract claims, tax, and other matters. Regasdbf the outcome, these proceedings can hawdvansa impact on us because of defense
costs, diversion of management resources, and fattiars. Although the results of complex legalge@dings are difficult to predict and
Align's view of these matters may change in tharigs litigation and events related thereto unfalidin currently does not believe that these
matters, individually or in the aggregate, will maally affect Align's financial position, result$ operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol “ALGN.” The followingttle sets forth the range
of high and low per share sales prices as repéoteghch period indicated:

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2012:

Fourth quarter $ 39.3¢ % 23.4¢
Third quarter $ 39.8. % 30.0z
Second quarter $ 35.1t % 26.0¢
First quarter $ 28.6¢ $ 22.3¢
Year Ended December 31, 2011:

Fourth quarter $ 25.5¢ % 14.2¢
Third quarter $ 24.0¢ $ 14.6¢
Second quarter $ 25.9¢ % 20.41
First quarter $ 219 $ 19.1¢(

On February 22, 2013, the closing price of our camrstock on the NASDAQ Global Market was $31.88g&re. As of January 31,
2013 there were approximately 127 holders of reof@ur common stock. Because the majority ofshares of outstanding common stock
are held by brokers and other institutions on Hedfatockholders, we are unable to estimate tked toumber of stockholders represented by
these record holders.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock. We currently intend to retaiy future earnings to fund the
development and growth of our business and domatipate paying any cash dividends in the forebkefuture.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Following is a summary of stock repurchases forttinee months ended December 31, 2012 (1):

Total Number of Approximate Dollar Value
Total Number of Shares Repurchased as of Shares that May
Shares Average Price Paid Part of Publicly Yet Be Repurchased Under
Period Repurchased per Share Announced Program the Program
October 1, 2012 through October 31, 201. 286,93 $ 26.9¢ 286,93 $ 124,710,78
November 1, 2012 through November 30,
2012 1,127,970 $ 26.3( 1,127,970 $ 95,052,51

On October 27, 2011, we announced that our BoaRirettors approved a stock repurchase progranmupntgo which we may
repurchase up to $150.0 million of common stockrcRases under the stock repurchase program menatie from time to time in the open
market. During the fourth quarter of 2012, we repased approximately 1.4 million shares of commstock at an average price of
approximately $26.41 per share for an aggregatehpise price of approximately $37.4 million incluglicommissions. The common stock
repurchases reduced additional paid-in capitalgpraimately $12.6 million and increased accumulateficit by $24.8 million. All
repurchased shares were retired.

(1) All shares were repurchased pursuant to tidighy announced repurchase program described abeedid not repurchase any shares
in December 2012.

Performance Graph

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary ig e@hour previous or future filings with the SE®e tfollowing information relating to
the price performance of our common stock shallmotdeemed “filed” with the SEC or “Soliciting Matal” under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, or subject to Regulatibhdr 14C, or to liabilities o
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Section 18 of the Exchange Act except to the ewtespecifically request that such information feated as soliciting material or to the extent
we specifically incorporate this information byeeénce.

The graph below matches our cumulative 5-year stateholder return on common stock with the cutiveldotal returns of the
NASDAQ Composite index, and the S&P 1500 Compdsiealth Care Equipment & Supplies index. The grapbkis the performance of a
$100 investment in our common stock, in the peeugyrand the index (with the reinvestment of alidiénds) from 12/31/2007 to
12/31/2012.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Align Technology, Inc., the NASDAQ Compoditelex
and the S&P 1500 Composite Health Care Equipmegtgplies
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth the selected comsaid financial data for each of the years in iheyear period ended December 31,
2012 . The selected consolidated financial dabalshbe read in conjunction with the ConsolidatéthRcial Statements and accompanying
notes andManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of OperationaNe have derived the statement of
operations data for the years ended December 32,2011 and 2010 and the balance sheet datalzecember 31, 2012 and 2011 from the
consolidated audited financial statements inclugledwhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. $teement of operations data for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 and thecbadheet data as of December 31, 2010, 2009 &&iv@fre derived from th
consolidated audited financial statements thahaténcluded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except per share data)
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Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenues(1) $ 560,04. $ 479,74 $ 387,12t $ 312,33 $ 303,97¢
Gross profit(2) $ 416,38( $ 361,28 $ 303,41° $ 233,49. $ 225,12¢
Income (loss) from operations(3) 85,59; 90,36( 102,73: (34,017 15,51«
Other income (expense), net (1,29¢) (419 (733) 11¢ 1,56z
Net income (loss) before provision for (benefitnfioincome taxes(3) 84,29¢ 89,94 102,00: (33,899 17,07¢
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 25,60¢ 23,22°¢ 27,75( (2,629 (62,91
Net income (loss)(3) $ 5869 $ 66,71¢ $ 74,25! $ (31,269 $ 79,98
Net income (loss) per share
Basic $ 077 % 0.8¢ $ 098¢ $ (049 $ 1.2
Diluted $ 071 $ 0.8: $ 09t $ (049 $ 1.1¢
Shares used in computing net income (loss) peeshar
Basic 80,52¢ 77,98¢ 75,82t 69,09 66,81:
Diluted 83,04( 80,29¢ 78,08( 69,094 68,06+

December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital(4) $ 326,75¢ $ 236,69¢ $ 29563 $ 180,05¢ $ 117,33
Total assets 756,31: 649,26 476,94: 355,24( 279,34:
Total long-term liabilities 19,22« 10,36¢ 6,22: 961 22¢
Stockholders’ equity $ 581,31 $ 490,78: $ 377,74 $ 273,03t $ 218,54
(1) Net revenues for the year ended December 311, Rzlude eight months of revenues from our Scemaerd CAD/CAM Services

segment of approximately $28.0 million as a restitiur acquisition of Cadent on April 29, 2011. tKevenues for the year ended
December 31, 2010 includes a $14.3 million reledg®eviously deferred revenue for Invisalign Teeplacement aligners.

(2) Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 28&Rided acquisition and integration related cos®%0a2 million, amortization ¢
intangible assets of $0.9 million, and exit co$t$@5 million. Gross profit for the year ended Betber 31, 2011 included acquisition and
integration related costs of $0.4 million, amottiaa of intangible assets of $0.7 million, and edsts of $0.8 million. For years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, gross profit includedrazation of prepaid royalties of $0.8 millionca#6.2 million, respectively, related to 1
litigation settlement with Ormco. In addition, ZDgross profit also included the $14.3 million exe of previously deferred revenue for
Invisalign Teen replacement aligners.

3) Income (loss) from operations, net income (ldegore provision for (benefit from) income taxaad net income (loss) included:
o $14.3 million release of previously deferred revefardnvisalign Teen replacement aligners in 2

o $36.6 million of goodwill impairment, $1.3 milliioacquisition and integration related costs, $4il8am of amortization of
intangible assets, and $0.8 million of exit coat2012.

o $10.0 million acquisition and integration relatasbts, $3.2 million of amortization of intangildssets, and exit costs of $1.1
million in 2011.

o $0.8 million and $6.2 million of amortization pfepaid royalties related to the litigation settirnwith Ormco in 2010 and
2009, respectively.

o $4.5 million related to the class action litigatisettlement with Leiszler in 201

o $8.7 million benefit related to an insurancelseient over a disputed coverage under our geriatality umbrella that was not
previously reimbursed by our insurer related to@mthoClear litigation in 2010.

o Litigation settlement charge of $69.7 million reldtto Ormco in 200¢
o Restructuring charges of $1.3 million and $6.2 ignillin 2009 and 2008, respectivel
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o $64.6 million benefit to income taxes as a resfithe release of a tax valuation allowance ontrabeur deferred tax assets in

2008.
4 Working capital is calculated as the differebetween total current assets and total currebilitias.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations shoulddsdrtogether with “Selected
Consolidated Financial Data” and our consolidatedricial statements and related notes includedvakses in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

Overview

Align Technology, Inc. is a global medical deviaergpany that pioneered the invisible orthodonticsketawith the introduction of the
Invisalign system in 1999. Today, we are focused@signing, manufacturing and marketing innovatigehnology-rich products to help
dental professionals achieve the clinical reshiky texpect and deliver effective, convenient cgtialge dental treatment options to their
patients. Align Technology was founded in March7189d is headquartered in San Jose, Californiaafiibes worldwide. Our international
headquarters are located in Amsterdam, the NetidslaVe have two operating segments: (1) Cleamgligknown as the Invisalign system;
and (2) Scanner and CAD/CAM Services ("SCCS"), kn@s the iTero intra-oral scanners and OrthoCADices.

We received FDA clearance in 1998 and began astrd@mmercial sales of Invisalign to U.S. orthodkiatin 1999 followed by U.S
General Practitioner Dentists (GPs) in 2002. Okerrtext decade, we introduced Invisalign to theoean market and Japan, added
distribution partners in Asia-Pacific, Latin Ameaicand EMEA, and introduced a full range of treattaptions including Invisalign Express
10, Invisalign Teen, Invisalign Assist, and Viveetainers. By 2011, we launched Invisalign G3 andsklign G4, which includes significant
new aligner and software features across all Ifigisgroducts that make it easier for doctors te inwisalign on more complex cases, and
introduced Invisalign to the People’s Republic difiri&. Most recently, we launched SmartTrack, the generation of Invisalign clear aligner
material which became the new standard alignernafer Invisalign clear aligner products in Nortmerica and Europe beginning January
21, 2013 and for other international markets wiwegehave received regulatory approval in the fitsrter of 2013.

In 2011, we acquired Cadent Holdings, Inc., a leggiirovider of 3D digital scanning solutions fottmdontics and dentistry, and makers
of the iTero intra-oral scanner and OrthoCAD sergidNe believe that the combination of Align’s &atlent’s technologies and capabilities
creates greater growth opportunities for Align byging innovative new Invisalign treatment toatscustomers and by extending the value of
intra-oral scanning in dental practices. Intra-@@dnners provide a dental “chair-side” platformégocessing valuable digital diagnosis and
treatment tools, with potential for enhancing aacyrof records, treatment efficiency, and the dveeatient experience. We believe there are
numerous benefits for customers and the opporttoigccelerate the adoption of Invisalign througfierioperability with our intra-oral
scanners. The use of digital technologies suchAd3/CAM for restorative dentistry or in-office restdgions has been growing rapidly and intrg
oral scanning is a critical part of enabling these digital technologies and procedures in dentattices. Since the acquisition, we have
launched significant product options and softwareamcements to the scanner product line. In lat®2 20e commercially launched the
Invisalign Outcome Simulator, the first Invisalighair-side application powered by the iTero scanfike interactive application provides
dentists and orthodontists an enhanced platforrpdtient education and is designed to increasénierd acceptance by helping patients
visualize the benefits possible with Invisaligreirment. The new iTero scanner was available infiNamerica beginning in February 2013 ¢
will be available soon thereafter in select intéioreal markets as a single hardware platform witttivgare options for restorative or orthodontic
procedures.

The Invisalign system is offered in more than 46rtdes and has been used to treat more than #ibmpatients. Our iTero intra-oral
scanner is available in over 25 countries and plediental professionals with an open choice to sigithl impressions to any laboratopgse:
CAD/CAM system or to any of the more than 1,800tdkelabs worldwide.

Our goal is to establish the Invisalign systemhasstandard method for treating malocclusion arestablish our intra-oral scanning
platform as the preferred scanning protocol fordd@ital scans, ultimately driving increased prodadoption by dental professionals. We
intend to achieve this by focusing on the key efyitinitiatives set forth in thBusiness Strateggection in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In addition to the successful execution of our bess strategy, there are a number of other faatioich may affect our results in 2013
and beyond, which are described below:
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Product innovation and clinical effectivene. We recently announced the introduction of SmatKr a proprietary, custom
engineered, aligner material, designed to deliesitlg, more constant force to improve control athomovements with Invisalic
clear aligner treatment, will build on the successhave seen with Invisalign G3/G4 and encourage gveater confidence and
adoption in our customers’ practices. Althoughititeoduction of SmartTrack will result in higherstaf goods sold and
reduction in gross margins in our clear alignemsegt due to higher material costs, we believe thesgvations are important
contributors to increase utilization across oumeteds worldwide. Additionally, we recently introceetthe new iTero scanner,
which is a single hardware platform with softwapions for restorative or orthodontic proceduresjdalign interoperability, as
well as the Invisalign Outcome Simulator, our fithir-side application powered by our iTero scanvée believe that over the
long-term these types of product and clinical iret@ns will increase adoption of Invisalign andrigeese sales of our intra-oral
scanners. However, it is difficult to predict tlee of adoption which may vary by region and channe

Invisalign Utilization rates Our goal is to establish Invisalign as the treatnod choice for treating malocclusion ultimately
driving increased product adoption and frequencysef by dental professionals, or utilization. Ouarderly utilization rates for
the previous 11 quarters are as follows:

Invisalign Utilization Rates™
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Total utilization in the fourth quarter of 2012 deased slightly to 4.1 cases per doctor compardd?teases in the third quarter
driven primarily by the decrease in utilization dyyr North American Orthodontic customers from .73 cases per doctor as
well as expansion of our submitting Internationadtomers. This decrease by our North American @dhtic customers reflects
a decline in the number of teaged cases shipped as teen case starts are ddvenfaurth quarter following the seasonally bu
summer months. Although we expect that over thg-tenm our utilization rates will gradually improwee expect that period
over period comparisons of our utilization rate8 fkictuate.

Number of new Invisalign doctors traine We continue to expand our Invisalign customer lasmugh training new doctors. In
2012, Invisalign growth was driven primarily by tbentinued expansion of our customer base as weetta total of 6,845 new
orthodontists and GPs in North America and intéonatly. We expect to train approximately 7,220 tos in 2013.
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International Clear AlignerWe will continue to focus our efforts towards inaseng adoption of our products by dental
professionals in our core European markets asageatixpansion into new markets. On a year overhasis, international volume
increased 23%, driven primarily by growth in ouredt business in Europe as well as by continueshgtperformance by our
distribution partners. Although sales through astribution partners represented 8% of total worttwcase shipments in 2012,
sales through our distributors, particularly ourtper covering the Asia-Pacific region, continuedjtow at a faster rate than
direct sales in other international geographicamgiand we expect this trend to continue in the tezen. Based on the continued
progress in the Asia-Pacific region, we expecetgert to a direct sales model in this region beigipim the second quarter of
2013. Therefore, we will not renew our distributigreement when it expires in April 2013. As a ligsun May 1, 2013, four of
the largest indirect country markets of AustraNaew Zealand, Hong Kong and Singapore will revedik@® a direct sales region
and we will begin to recognize direct sales of &align products sold in that region at our full i@ge selling price ("ASP") rather
than at the discounted average sales price undetistribution agreement. In 2012, this distrimiccounted for approximately
3% of worldwide revenues, and we expect them tofmecan even more meaningful contributor to revegrogvth beginning in
May 2013. In the near term, however, the assumptidhe direct operating costs will offset the tid ASPs. Although we
expect volumes and revenues will increase, we mpgreence difficulties in achieving the anticipafethncial benefits. We
expect the remaining eight indirect country marlketBrunei, Indonesia, Macau, Malaysia, Philippingeuth Korea, Taiwan,
Thailand and Vietnam as well as the EMEA and Latinerica regions will continue under a distributiorodel.

Increased Sales Force CoveraOur direct sales organization in North Americadsprised of a team of territory managers and
to a lesser extent, territory specialists. Thes#dey specialists are used to enhance coveratgder territories, especially with
our lower volume GP customers. Due to the succesdgsosales coverage model, in 2013 we expectitbagproximately 20 sales
representatives in 2013, predominantly in North Aoz In addition, when we transition our Asia-Riaadistributor to a direct
sales model in May 2013, we will acquire approxiehatl5 additional sales representatives in thabreg

Vivera Retainer Shipment Consolidation in North Aoze In the first quarter of 2013, we began consolidatifivera retainer
product shipments into one shipment per year rdttar four shipments per year as had been ourigeaéts a result, our first
quarter results will reflect approximately $4 nati benefit to revenue associated with our Viverapct as we will recognize
nine additional months of the subscription reveimuthe first quarter instead of recognizing it tdyaevery quarter for one year.
addition, we will also begin to reduce freight @as we make this change.

International Scanner and CAD/CAM Servicln October 2012, we reached a mutual agreementitairiate the exclusive
distribution arrangement with Straumann for iTerwad-oral scanners in Europe, as well as the naiusive distribution
agreement for iTero intra-oral scanners in Northedica effective December 31, 2012. The global maiderestorative dentistry
is far more fragmented and complex than orthodemtith hundreds of thousands of labs, suppliensege dentists and
specialists. In Europe, adoption of digital restiortechnology has been slowed due to challengamnomic conditions and
reluctance to invest in capital equipment. In vigvthese conditions, we expect to have very fewseasales internationally in
the near term as we determine the most effectiwetavae-stage growth in this market. Our direcesahodel remains unchanged
in North America where most of the scanner and G2M services revenue is generated.

Increase in Invisalign Selling Pric. In recent years, we have significantly increasedstment in research and development
resulting in product innovations, such as Invisalig3, Invisalign G4 and SmartTrack clear aligneterial. We have also
continued to increase our consumer advertisingdipgrio drive more patient demand. In addition,ibemg January 1, 2013, the
Federal Government imposed a new excise tax onagaledievice manufacturers, and Invisalign cleamadig are considered a
taxable medical device. As a result of this newaasd our continued investments in research anda@vent and consumer
advertising, we increased our Invisalign pricingdagding $26.00 to $50.00 per case compared to gAdes, effective January 1,
2013. For 2013, we expect that the impact on oarage sales price from this price increase wilbfiget somewhat by an
expected increases in our rebate program due tarti@pated increase in utilization by our customécreased volume from o
lower price products, including Invisalign Exprésand Invisalign i7, as well as slightly higher evé&l costs for the SmartTrack
clear aligner material. The prices for Invisaligeen, Invisalign retainers, and Vivera retainers rgiinain unchanged.

2013 Operating expensad/e expect operating expenses to increase in 20hpaeed to 2012 due to the increase in North
American sales force coverage, the acquisitiomefdirect sales force in Asia-Pacific, and theusidn
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of the medical device excise tax, which was enaictedlaw as part of the comprehensive healthogfierm legislation in March
2010.

. Balance sheet reclassificatic. Subsequent to our Results of Operations and Eiab@onditions on Form 8-K filed with the SEC
on January 30, 2013, we have made a $3.2 milliciassification of deferred revenues, which is arsteym liability to long-term
deferred revenues which is included in other lcgrgrtliabilities in our consolidated balance sheespnted in this Form 10-K.
This reclassification was not considered to be niatand did not have an impact to our consolidatatement of cash flows or
operations for 2012.

. Foreign exchange rate Although the U.S. dollar is our reporting currepayportion of our net revenues and income are
generated in foreign currencies. Net revenues rewhie generated by subsidiaries operating outditteed).S. are translated ir
U.S. dollars using exchange rates effective dutfiegrespective period and as a result are affdgtathanges in exchange
rates. We have generally accepted the exposurechapge rate movements without using derivativarfaial instruments to
manage this risk. Therefore, both positive and tieganovements in currency exchange rates agdirst/tS. dollar will continue
to affect the reported amount of net revenues aoanne in our consolidated financial statements.

Results of Operations

Net revenues by Reportable Segment Comparison feeirs Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

We group our operations into two reportable segmetiear Aligner segment and Scanners and CAD/CAiSes segment.

. Our Clear Aligner segment consists of our InNggasystem which includes Invisalign Full, Expréste, Teen, Assist, Vivera
retainers, along with our training and ancillarggucts for treating malocclusion.

. Our Scanners and CAD/CAM Services segment ctensfsntra-oral scanning systems and additionalises available with the
intra-oral scanners that provide digital alternagito the traditional cast models. This segmemadss our iTero scanner and
OrthoCAD services.

The below represents net revenues for our Clegna&li segment by region, channel, and product an&canner and CAD/CAM
Services segment by region and product for thesyeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 as fo{lawsillions):
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Years Ended December 31,

Net % Net %
Clear Aligner 2012 Change Change 2011 Change Change 2010
Region and Channel
North America
Ortho $ 172t $ 25.C 16.€% $ 147f $ 30.1 25.% $ 117«
GP 188.¢ 20.7 12.:% 167.¢ 22.¢ 15.7% 145.1
Total North America 361.1 457 14.5% 315. 52.¢ 20.2% 262.5
International 124.¢ 13.2 11.¢% 111.¢ 21.4 23.8% 90.1
Invisalign Teen deferred rever
release — — N/A — (14.9 N/A 14.5
Invisalign non-case revenues 30.7 6.C 24.2% 247 4.t 22.%% 20.2
Total (1) $ 516.6 $ 65.( 144% $ 451¢ $ 64.5 16.7% $  387.1
Product
Invisalign Full $ 3386 $ 36.3 12(% $ 302.¢ $ 37.t 14.2% $  264.¢
Invisalign Express/Lite 51.k 8.¢ 20.£% 42.¢€ 8.C 23.1% 34.€
Invisalign Teen(2) 67.1 12.€ 23.1% 54.k 1.7 3.2% 52.¢
Invisalign Assist 28.7 3 4.7% 27.4 12.7 86.4% 14.5
Invisalign non-case revenues 30.7 5.¢ 23.8% 24.¢ 4.€ 22.8% 20.2
Total $ 516 $ 65.( 144% $ 451¢ $ 64.t 16.% $  387.1
Scanners and CAD/CAM Services (3):
Region
North America $ 42z % 18.2 75.8% $ 240 $ 24.C N/A  $ —
International 1.2 (2.9 (70.0)% 4.1 4.1 N/A —
Total $ 434 % 15.: 54.% $ 28.1 $ 28.1 NA  $ =
Product
Scanners $ 20.C $ 6.7 504% $ 13 % 13.2 N/A  $ —
CAD/CAM Services 23.2 8.€ 58.1% 14.¢ 14.¢ N/A —
Total $ 434 % 15.: 54.% $ 28.1 $ 28.1 NA  $ =
Total Revenue $ 560 $ 80: 16.1% $ 4797 $  92¢ N/A  $ 387.1

(1) In the fourth quarter of 2012, we identifiedemor that the actual case refinement usage rasdawer than our estimate and, as a result,
we recorded a net revenue release of $4.9 milliemipusly deferred for case refinement of which2®illion was a correction of an error of
which $4.5 million relates to the first three qeastfor the fiscal year 2012 and $0.7 million reato the fiscal year 2011. The adjustment wa
not material to any quarter within 2012. The nebam of $4.9 million is not material to the resudfsoperations for twelve months ended
December 31, 2012.

(2 Net revenues for the year ended December 31 @@ludes a $14.3 million release of revenue mnesly deferred for Invisalign Teen
replacement aligners. Excluding the $14.3 milionthe Invisalign Teen replacement aligners, teecgntage change from 2010 to 2011 was
approximately 41.6%.

(3) As the acquisition of Cadent closed on April 2011, the year ended December 31, 2011 balanc&canners and CAD/CAM Services
only reflect eight months of revenues.

Clear Aligner Case Volume by Channel and Product

Case volume data which represents Invisalign daipenents by channel and product, for the years@igeember 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010 as follows (in thousands):
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Years Ended December 31,

Net % Net %

Region and Channel 2012 Change Change 2011 Change Change 2010
North America:

Ortho 137.( 21.€ 18.7% 115.¢ 25.1 27.8% 90.2

GP 139.7 16.5 13.8% 123.2 14.1 12.9% 109.1
Total North American Invisalign 276.% 38.1 16.(% 238.¢ 39.2 19.7% 199.
International Invisalign 86.¢ 16.C 22.€% 70.¢ 9.3 15.1% 61.5
Total Invisalign case volume 363.t 54.1 17.5% 309.¢ 48.5 18.€% 260.¢
Product
Invisalign Full 235.( 28.7 13.% 206.: 26.€ 14.8% 179.7
Invisalign Express/Lite 58.7 14.t 32.8% 44.7 6.8 18.2% 37.4
Invisalign Teen 48.: 10.2 27.1% 38.C 9.3 32.4% 28.7
Invisalign Assist 21.t 0.€ 2.S% 20.¢ 5.8 38.4% 15.1
Total Invisalign case volume 363.t 54.1 17.5% 309.¢ 48.5 18.€% 260.¢

Fiscal Year 2012 compared to Fiscal Year 2011

Total net revenues increased $80.3 million in 20déarily as a result of volume growth of 17.5%asy all regions and customer
channels in our Clear Aligner segment and the sioluof a full year of Scanner and CAD/CAM Servi¢(8€CS) segment activity in 2012
compared to eight months in 2011.

Clear Aligner

Revenue from our Clear Aligner segment, increaseti4b4% due to increased case volumes acrossoalupts partially offset by lower
ASP. Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2012ewetermined that the actual case refinement usagevas lower than our estimate and, as
result, Invisalign revenue includes the releas®4o® million of revenue previously deferred for easfinement (refer to Item 8 on this Form
10-K for further discussion).

North American revenue growth of 14.5% was drivgrinzreased volumes of 16% in the Ortho Channel@Rdthannels due to higher
utilization and an increased number of doctors stilmg cases. ASP's were slightly lower due to éased discounting from our volume rebate
program and a product mix shift towards our lowecqd products.

International revenue growth of 11.9% was mainlg ttuvolume increases of 22.6% across all produitéet by lower ASP's due to
higher discounts, unfavorable foreign exchangesratel a product mix shift towards distributor salad lower priced products.

Invisalign non-case revenues, consisting of trgrées and sales of ancillary products, were high2012 compared to 2011 primarily
due to increased sales of our Vivera product aaiditrg.

Scanner and CAD/CAM Services

Revenue from our Scanner and CAD/CAM Services saegneensisting of scanner and CAD/CAM servicesréased by $15.3 million
as a result of $18.2 million increase in North Aicarrevenue related to higher scanner volume frdull gear of activity in 2012 compared to
eight months in 2011. This is partially offset b$29 million decrease in international revenue wuewer scanner volume as a result of the
termination of our exclusive distribution agreemerth Straumann for iTero intra-oral scanners. Tihancial results of Cadent have been
included in this segment since the acquisition datépril 29, 2011.

Fiscal Year 2011 compared to Fiscal Year 2010

Total net revenues increased $92.6 million in 284 A result of worldwide volume growth across asitomer channels and the inclusion
of our Scanner and CAD/CAM Services segment.

Geographically, both North America and Internatimeaenue increased by $102.3 million due to a®%8growth in case volume,
favorable foreign exchange rates, and the inclusfaright months of Scanner and CAD/CAM Servicecrases.
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Invisalign case volume growth was driven by botlpiaved utilization and an increase in the numbetamftors submitting cases.

Revenue from our Clear Aligner segment, consistihgur Invisalign products, increased by 16.7% assalt of additional case volumes
across all products. The most significant volumee@etage increases were in the Invisalign Teenfasist products. Although Invisalign Te
case volume increased 32.4%, revenue for Invisdlegn was comparable to the prior year primarilyase of the $14.3 million release of
deferred revenue in 2010. Invisalign Assist revegnasvth was comprised of both an increase in caiane and additional revenue being
recognized as each batch is shipped over the cofiteeatment instead of deferring until the fibakch shipment. Additionally, Invisalign non-
case revenues, consisting of training fees and sdlancillary products, were higher in 2011 corepailo 2010 primarily due to increased sales
of our Vivera product.

Since date of the acquisition until the end of2bé1 fiscal year end, the Scanner and CAD/CAM ses/segment generated $28.1
million of revenue from sales of iTero and iOC swars and OrthoCad Services.

Cost of net revenues and gross profit (in millions)

Years Ended December 31,

2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
Clear Aligner
Cost of revenues $ 110 $ 135 % 971 % 134 % 83.7
% of net segment revenues 21.%% 21.5% 21.6%
Gross profit $ 406.C % 51 $ 3547 % 51z $ 303.¢
Gross margin % 78.€% 78.5% 78.2%
Scanners and CAD/CAM Setvices (1)
Cost of revenues $ 33.C % 11.€ $ 212 % 214 $ —
% of net segment revenues 75.% 76.2% —
Gross profit $ 104 % 38 % 6.5 $ 6.5 $ —
Gross margin % 24.1% 23.1% —
Total cost of revenues $ 143¢ $ 251 $ 118t  $ 34t $ 83.7
% of net revenues 25.7% 24. 1% 21.6%
Gross profit $ 416.. % 55.2 % 361 $ 57.¢ $ 303.2
Gross margin % 74.2% 75.2% 78.4%

(1) The Scanners and CAD/CAM services segment weeted as a result of our acquisition of CaderApril 29, 2011 and the financial
results for that segment reflect the activity siticat date.

Cost of net revenues for our Clear Aligner and S@e€tides salaries for staff involved in the protilut process, the cost of materials,
packaging, shipping costs, depreciation on capiaipment used in the production process, amoigizatf acquired intangible assets from
Cadent, training costs and stock-based compensatjpense.

Fiscal Year 2012 compared to Fiscal Year 2011

Clear Aligner

Gross margin remained fairly consistent 2012 coegbém 2011 largely benefiting from higher salesimwé that resulted in a decrease in
cost per case offset by lower ASPs.

Scanner and CAD/CAM Services

Gross margin improved slightly in 2012 compare@@a&1 primarily resulting from lower acquisitiontégration, and exit costs partially
offset by lower ASPs from our scanners as wellighdr training costs.

Fiscal Year 2011 compared to Fiscal Year 2010
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Gross margin decreased in 2011 compared to 20ftagly due to the acquisition of our Scanner andDI@AM Services segment from
Cadent, which carries a lower margin at approxitge&8.5% compared to 78.5% for our Clear Alignegraent. Compared to 2010, our 2011
Clear Aligner gross margin remained flat due tdkigcost per case resulting from higher materiatcwhich was partially offset by higher
case volumes. We also incurred amortization aesised to the acquired technology from Cadenfpptaximately $0.7 million and exit costs
related to the consolidation of our New Jersey afpens of approximately $0.8 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011.

Sales and marketing (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
Sales and marketing $ 152.C $ 9.8 ¢ 142  $ 282 % 114.(
% of net revenues 27.1% 29.6% 29.5%

Sales and marketing expense includes sales fortenarketing compensation (including travel-relatedts), media and advertising,
clinical education, expenses for trade shows addsiny events, product marketing and stock-basetpeosation expense.

Sales and marketing expense increased in 2012 cethpa2011 due primarily due to higher payroll gagroll-related costs of
approximately $5.0 million which was largely attrthble to the inclusion of Cadent's headcountHerfull twelve months of 2012 as compa
to only eight months in 2011. We also incurred Bigtosts related to advertising and industry evehépproximately $4.4 million.

Sales and marketing expense increased in 2011 cethta2010 due to compensation costs of approrim&t5.2 million that were
related to an increase in headcount as well amthgsion of Cadent sales and marketing personadtitionally, we incurred higher clinical
education costs primarily related to our internagidaunch of Invisalign G3, media and advertisialgted target TV advertising, and travel-
related costs of approximately $9.2 million.

General and administrative (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
General and administrative $ 95.¢ % 6.6 $ 89.2 $ 244 % 64.¢
% of net revenues 17.1% 18.6% 16.7%

General and administrative expense includes salfaiteadministrative personnel, outside consulfagiices, legal expenses and stock-
based compensation expense.

General and administrative expense for 2012 ineccasmpared to 2011 largely due to higher legalcamsulting fees of approximately
$10.8 million related to ongoing litigation. We alsicurred higher facility related expenses of agpnately $2.5 million as a result of the
inclusion of Cadent's operations for a full twelaenths in 2012 compared to only eight months du2@gl. Our payroll and payroll-related
expenses were also higher by $2.1 million mainlg thuour annual compensation adjustments and aease in headcount. These costs were
partially offset by lower consulting, accountingddaegal fees of approximately $7.4 million that eelirectly related to the acquisition of
Cadent in 2011 and lower amortization expense pfapmately $2.1 million related to our non-compatgeements which were fully
amortized in 2011.

General and administrative expense for 2011 ineceaempared to 2010 primarily due to compensatimtscof approximately $12.3
million resulting from compensation and relateddféa and increased in headcount due to the Cadmptisition. We also incurred higher
consulting, accounting, legal, and travel costapgroximately $11.2 million which was primarily agtd to the acquisition and integration of
Cadent into our business operations.

Research and development (in millions):
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Years Ended December 31,
2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
Research and development $ 42¢ % 57 $ 372 % 112 $ 26.C
% of net revenues 7.7% 7.71% 6.7%

Research and development expense includes thenpetselated costs and outside consulting expessssciated with the research and
development of new products and enhancements s$tirexiproducts, corporate allocations, facility dadility related costs, conducting clinical
and pre-commercialization trials and testing andlstbased compensation expense.

Research and development expense increased incd@dared to 2011 primarily due to payroll and pdyedated costs of
approximately $5.5 million which was largely attribd to the inclusion of Cadent's headcount foftheéwelve months of 2012 compared to

only eight months in 2011.

Research and development expense increased inc@@idared to 2010 primarily due to higher compensatbsts of approximately $¢
million as a result of increased headcount dubégdadent acquisition. In addition, we paid $2illion related to the Cadent Joint
Development agreement that we entered into in Jgr@1 1 before the completion of the acquisitiopril 2011. We also incurred higher
travel and outside service costs of approximatéht $nillion.

Impairment of goodwill (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,
2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
Impairment of goodwill $ 36.6 % 36.6 $ — 3 — $ =
% of net revenues 6.5% —% —%

During the third quarter of 2012, we determined tha goodwill for our SCCS reporting unit shouleltested for impairment between
annual tests since an event occurred or circumasatcitanged that would more likely than not redheeir value of our SCCS reporting unit
below its carrying amount. As a result of our asaywe recorded a preliminary goodwill impairmeharge during the third quarter of 201z
$24.7 million and an additional $11.9 million dugithe fourth quarter of 2012, representing a chamgstimate upon finalizing our 2013
annual budget process, for a total impairment ahafdb36.6 million. None of the goodwill impairment charge was deithleefor tax purpose:
and there was no additional impairment that redlt@m our annual goodwill impairment test durithg fourth quarter of 2012. Refer to Not
for details of the impairment analysis.

Litigation settlement costs (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,
2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
Litigation settlement costs $ — % — % —  $ 45 $ 4.t

On October 19, 2010, we entered into a memorandumaerstanding to resolve a complaint filed by Daiszler. As a result, we
recorded a total litigation settlement charge ab$4illion in 2010 for settlement costs. There weoditigation settlement costs in 2012 and

2011.

Insurance settlement (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,
2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
Insurance settlement $ — $ — $ — % 87 % (8.7)
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In June 2010, we received an $8.7 million insurasetdement over a disputed coverage under ourrgklebility umbrella that was not
previously reimbursed by our insurer related to@mthoClear litigation. There were no insuranctlements in 2012 or 2011.

Amortization of acquired intangible assets (in nidhs):

Years Ended December 31,
2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
Amortization of acquired intangible assets $ 3 $ 11 $ 24 $ 24 % —

Amortization of acquired intangible assets incrddae2012 compared to 2011 reflecting a full twetwenths of amortization expense for
2012 related to the Cadent acquisition in April 2@bmpared to only eight months in 2011.

Amortization of acquired intangibles for 2011 wapreoximately $2.4 million which were related todeanarks and customer
relationships that were acquired as part of thee@adcquisition in 2011.

Interest income and other expense, net (in milligns

Years Ended December 31,

2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
Interest income $ 0.8 $ 02 $ 0.€ $ — 3 0.€
Other expense, net (2.7 (1.2 (1.0 0.3 1.3
Total interest income and other expense, net $ 13 $ 0.9 % 0.9 $ 023 $ (0.7

Interest income and other expense, net, incluggast income earned on cash balances, interestsxp@reign currency translation
gains and losses and other miscellaneous charges.

Interest income in 2012 was largely consistent @@h1. Other expense, net increased in 2012 comipar2011 by $1.1 million
reflecting increase in foreign exchange lossesngu2i12.

Interest income in 2011 was consistent with 2008her expense, net decreased in 2011 compared. ®0$0.3 million reflecting
increase in foreign exchange gain during 2011.

Provision for income taxes (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2012 Change 2011 Change 2010
Provision for income taxes $ 25€6 % 24 $ 232z % 4.6) $ 27.¢
Effective tax rates 30.2% 25.8% 27.2%

The effective tax rate was 30.4%, 25.8%, and 27i8%scal years 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectivElyr effective tax rates in these
fiscal years differ from the statutory federal immtax rate of 35% due to certain foreign earnipgsyarily from Costa Rica, which are subj
to a lower tax rate, and foreign tax credits, pditioffset by state income tax expense, the tgaich of certain stock-based compensation
charges and, in fiscal year 2012, impairment ofdyath which is not deductible for tax purposes.

As of December 31, 2012, approximately $109.2 onllof undistributed earnings from non-U.S. operatibeld by our foreign
subsidiaries are designated as permanently reedesttside the U.S. Accordingly, no additional UrfBome taxes or additional foreign
withholding taxes have been provided thereon. iDd@tetion of the amount of unrecognized deferreditbility related to these earnings is
not practicable.

We assess the likelihood that we will be able twver our deferred tax assets. Should there bargehin our ability to recover our
deferred tax assets, our tax provision would ineeaa the period in which we determine that it mrenlikely than not that we cannot recover
our deferred tax assets. We consider all availebidence, both positive and negative, includinganisal levels of income, expectations and
risks associated with estimates of future taxafdeme and ongoing prudent and
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feasible tax planning strategies in assessingéked for a valuation allowance. If it is not moieely than not that we expect to recover our
deferred tax assets, we will increase our provisioriaxes by recording a valuation allowance agfaine deferred tax assets that we estimate
will not ultimately be recoverable. The availablesjiive evidence at December 31, 2012 includeahcstl operating profits and a projection
future income. As of December 31, 2012, we hadlaati@n allowance of approximately $27.1 milliomostly related to foreign net operating
loss carryforward deferred tax assets because met#orecast sufficient future foreign source imeoto realize these deferred tax

assets. These net operating loss carryforwardsegillt in an income tax benefit if and when wedalade it is more likely than not that the
related deferred tax assets will be realized atespaint in the future.

At December 31, 2012, we had federal net operabisg carryforwards of approximately $78.7 milliowhich, if not used, will begin to
expire in 2026. These net operating loss carrydods are subject to an annual limitation underiateRevenue Code § 382, but are expectec
to be fully realized. Furthermore, we have Catifarnet operating loss carryforwards of approxitya$®2.1 million , which, if not used, will
begin to expire in 2013. At December 31, 2012 had research credit carryforwards of approximasely) million for federal purposes and
$3.4 million for California state tax purposes.ntt utilized, the federal credit carryforwardsMaiégin to expire in 2021. The California state
credit can be carried forward indefinitely.

On January 2, 2013, President Obama signed intéHawmerican Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012, whichulbretroactively extend the
federal research tax credit for two years througleddnber 31, 2013. As a result, we expect to regdadorable benefit of approximately $0.5
million during the first quarter of 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We fund our operations from product sales and tbegeds from the sale of our common stock. Asexddnber 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, we had the following cash and cash equivajemtd short-term and long-term investments (inshads):

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents $ 306,38t $ 240,67 $ 294,66
Short-term investments 28,48t 7,39¢ 8,61°¢
Long-term investments 21,25 — 9,08¢
Total $ 356,120 $ 248,07C $ 312,36¢

Cash flowqin thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net cash flow provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 133,77¢  $ 130,46¢ $ 129,52¢
Investing activities (78,300 (211,609 (15,920
Financing activities 10,20¢ 27,24 14,701
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and gashatents 28 (93 (139
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ 65,71. $ (53,989 $ 128,17

As of December 31, 2012 , we had $356.1 millionash, cash equivalents, and marketable securifiash equivalents and marketable
securities are comprised of money market fundshégialy liquid debt instruments which include corate bonds, U.S. dollar denominated
foreign corporate bonds, and U.S. government agbanys.

As of December 31, 2012 , approximately $135.liamlbf cash was held by our foreign subsidiaridg have not provided additional
U.S. income taxes or additional foreign withholdiages on approximately $109.2 million of undistitibd foreign subsidiary earnings that are
intended to be permanently reinvested outside ti$e $105.4 million of the total undistributed farpiearnings relate to Costa Rica. In the
event such earnings are repatriated to the U.&egdimings would be subject to additional U.S. imedaxes reduced by any foreign taxes paid

Operating Activities
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For the year ended December 31, 2012 , cash flaws dperations of $133.8 million resulted primafilgm our net income of
approximately $58.7 million million as well as tfdlowing:
Non-cash activities
* Impairment of goodwill related to our SCCS repagtimit was $36.6 millio
» Stockbased compensation was $21.5 million related teequity incentive compensation granted to emplo;
» Depreciation and amortization were $17.8 milliolared to our fixed assets and acquired intangibéeta
» Deferred taxes were $17.8 million primarily duehie utilization of deferred tax ass
» Excess tax benefit from our shdrased payments were $17.2 milli

»  Other noncash activities were $2.0 millic

Changes in working capital

» Accounts receivable increased by $9.1 millioe ttuthe increase in revenues during 2012, redumimgash inflow from
operating activities.

* Inventories increased by $5.7 million which vpaignarily due to increased production volumes for imtra-oral scanner products
for the move to our new facility in Israel as weadl procuring the new SmartTrack material for oaachligners, increasing our
cash outflow from operating activities.

* Prepaid expenses and other assets increasechifBo® primarily due to the timing of software&nse and insurance policy
renewals, increasing our cash outflow from openretio

» Accrued and other long-term liabilities increcidy $2.9 million primarily due to higher deferrek liabilities, decreasing our
cash outflow from operations.

» Deferred revenue increased by $12.4 million prify due to higher sales with deferred revenuepoments in 2012, increasing
our cash inflow from operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, cash flaws @perations of $130.5 million resulted primafiigm our net income of
approximately $66.7 million and the following reaso
Non-cash activities
» Stockbased compensation of $19.1 milli

«  Other non-cash activities including depreciationd amortization, deferred taxes, provision fantitbul accounts, amortization of
intangible assets, benefits from tax provisiondor share-based payments, and loss on the retititisgposal of our fixed assets
of $12.0 million.

Changes in working capital

» Accrued and other long-term liabilities increcidy $37.1 million primarily due to the an increa$eompensation and related
employee benefits, income tax payable and othessald marketing costs, decreasing our cash oufiftow operations.

» Deferred revenue increased by $16.3 million prify due to higher sales with deferred revenuepoments in 2011, increasing
our cash inflow from operations.

» Accounts receivable increased by $21.7 milliae tb the increase in revenues during 2011, redwmim cash inflow from
operating activities.

e Other working capital comprising of inventorigsepaid expenses and other assets, and accoyatdg@aesulted in a net
decrease of $0.8 million, increasing our cash mfloom operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, cash flaws fiperations of $129.5 million resulted primafiigm our net income of
approximately $74.3 million and the following reaso

Non-cash activities

» Deferred taxes increased by $17.3 million primadilie to the utilization of our deferred tax as:
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»  Other non-cash activities including depreciation amortization, stock-based compensation, pmvier doubtful accounts,
benefits from tax provision for our share-basednpats, and loss on the retirement/disposal of imadfassets resulted in a net
increase of $27.4 million.

Changes in working capital

» Accounts receivable increased by $12.2 milliae tb the increase in revenues during 2010, redwmim cash inflow from
operating activities.

» Accrued and other long-term liabilities increddy $19.7 million primarily due to the Leiszleask action settlement and an
increase of our income tax payable and other saldsnarketing costs, decreasing our cash outflom foperations.

» Deferred revenue increased by $2.2 million prinyatile to higher sales with deferred revenue compsria 2010, increasing o
cash inflow from operations.

»  Other working capital comprising of inventorigsepaid expenses and other assets, and accoyatidg@aesulted in a net
decrease of $0.9 million, increasing our cash imff/m operations.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $78.3oniffor the year ended December 31, 2012, primadinsisted of our purchase of
marketable securities of $67.5 million and propery equipment purchases of $38.3 million. Thestsowvere partially offset by net
maturities of marketable securities of $25.2 millend the release of $2.5 million of funds relatednclaimed merger consideration for the
acquisition of Cadent on April 29, 2011.

Net cash used in investing activities was $211l6anifor the year ended December 31, 2011, pritp&onsisted of our cash paid for
acquisition of Cadent of approximately $187.6 noilliand approximately $30.4 million of property,ileand equipment purchases. We also
had restricted cash of approximately $4.0 milliamat primarily represents funds we hold as unclaimmerger consideration related to the
acquisition of Cadent on April 29, 2011. Theseseogere partially offset by net maturities of maset#e securities and the proceeds from the
sale of equipment of approximately $10.4 million.

Net cash used in investing activities was $15.%9oniffor the year ended December 31, 2010, primadinsisted of approximately $36.4
million for purchases of marketable securities praperty and equipment which was partially offsgtlet maturities of our marketable
securities of $20.6 million. Although we believer@urrent investment portfolio has very littlekrisf impairment, we cannot predict future
market conditions or market liquidity and can po®/no assurance that our investment portfolio igithain unimpaired.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $Ifilion for the year ended December 31, 2012 tespfrom approximately $42.3
million in proceeds from the issuance of our comratutk and approximately $17.2 million from excessbenefit from our share-based
compensation arrangements. These proceeds weialparffset by approximately $47.2 million commatock repurchases and $2.1 million
of taxes paid for our employees’ vesting of regtdcstock units.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $2iiltion for the year ended December 31, 2011 prilpaesulting from approximately
$25.5 million in proceeds from the issuance of @mmon stock and approximately $11.4 million froxeess tax benefit from our shadvasec
arrangements. These proceeds were partially difsapproximately $7.8 million common stock repasbs and $2.0 million of taxes paid for
our employees’ vesting of restricted stock units.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $Idillion for the year ended December 31, 2010 prilpaesulting from approximately
$11.8 million in proceeds from the issuance of@mmon stock and approximately $4.0 million frontess tax benefit from our share-based
arrangements. These proceeds were partially difsapproximately $1.0 million of taxes paid for@mployees’ vesting of restricted stock
units.

Net proceeds from the issuance of our common stleked to the exercise of employee stock opti@ve istorically been a significant
component of our liquidity. However, in 2006, weglan granting restricted stock units (“RSUs”) whighlike stock options, do not generate
cash from exercises. As a result, we will likegngrate less cash from the proceeds of the saleraommon stock in future periods. In
addition, because RSUs are taxable to the indilsduben they vest, the number of shares we isseadb of our executive officers will be net
of applicable withholding taxes which will be pdig us on their behalf. During 2012, 2011, and 2@d® paid $2.1 million, $1.9 million, and
$1.1 million of taxes related to RSUs that vestedrd) the period for executive officers, respedtive
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Stock Repurchase

On October 27, 2011, we announced that our BoaRirettors approved a stock repurchase progranupatgo which we may
repurchase up to $150.0 million of common stockrcRases under the stock repurchase program minadle from time to time in the open
market. During 2012, we repurchased approximdtélymillion shares of common stock at an averagemf $27.28 per share for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $47.Romiincluding commissions. The common stock repases reduced additional paid-in
capital by approximately $15.4 million and increAsecumulated deficit by $31.8 million . All rephased shares were retired. As of
December 31, 2012 , there remains $95.1 millioreamdr existing stock repurchase authorization.

Contractual Obligations/Off Balance Sheet Arrangemts

The impact that our contractual obligations as e€&nber 31, 2012 are expected to have on our iiguidd cash flows in future periods
is as follows (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-2 3-5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Operating lease obligations $ 25,71¢  $ 7,28¢ % 11,42: $ 7,008 $ —

Our contractual obligations table above excludggs@pmately $20.6 million of non-current uncert&x benefits which are included in
other long-term obligations and deferred tax assetsur balance sheet as of December 31, 2012hafe not included this amount because
we cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate degpthe timing of settlements with taxing authiest if any.

We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as defiriRelgulation S-K Item 303(a) (4) as of DecembrZ012.

We believe that our current cash and cash equitsaserd marketable debt securities combined withpositive cash flows from
operations will be sufficient to fund our operaidor at least the next 12 months. If we are unéblgenerate adequate operating cash flows,
we may need to seek additional sources of capitaligh equity or debt financing, collaborative trey arrangements with other companies,
bank financing and other sources in order to realizr objectives and to continue our operationser& can be no assurance that we will be
able to obtain additional debt or equity financorgterms acceptable to us, or at all. If adeqfiatds are not available, we may need to make
business decisions that could adversely affecbparating results such as modifications to ouripgipolicy, business structure or
operations. Accordingly, the failure to obtainfgiént funds on acceptable terms when needed doale a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial ¢amdi

Indemnification Provisions

In the normal course of business to facilitate geantions in our services and products, we indenuafain parties: customers, vendors,
lessors, and other parties with respect to centaitiers, including, but not limited to, servicedbtprovided by us and intellectual property
infringement claims made by third parties. In aiddit we have entered into indemnification agreesevith our directors and certain of our
officers that will require us, among other thingsindemnify them against certain liabilities timady arise by reason of their status or service ¢
directors or officers. Several of these agreemlantsthe time within which an indemnification ctaican be made and the amount of the clain

It is not possible to make a reasonable estimatieeofaximum potential amount under these indenatifin agreements due to the
unique facts and circumstances involved in eactiqodarr agreement. Additionally, we have a limitgdtory of prior indemnification claims
and the payments we have made under such agreehasetsiot had a material adverse effect on ouitsestioperations, cash flows, or
financial position. However, to the extent thatidahdemnification claims arise in the future, ftegpayments by us could be significant and
could have a material adverse effect on our restiligperations or cash flows in a particular peridg of December 31, 2012, we did not have
any material indemnification claims that were ptaleaor reasonably possible.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management’s discussion and analysis of our fir@rmzndition and results of operations is basedupo consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordeititaccounting principles generally accepted m thnited States of America. The
preparation of financial statements requires mamagé to make estimates and judgments that affeateghorted amounts of assets and
liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosatrd® date of the financial statements. We etaloar estimates on an on-going basis,
including those related to revenue recognitionglsteased compensation,
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goodwill and finitelived assets and related impairment, and incomesta¥Ve use authoritative pronouncements, histagiqaerience and oth
assumptions as the basis for making estimatesuafhctsults could differ from those estimates.

We believe the following critical accounting polisiand estimates affect our more significant judgsesed in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue according to the accountiigdpgae for multiple-deliverable revenue arrangeméntAccounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) 2009-13Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements-a conges the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FBXp
Emerging Issues Task For.

Multiple-Element Arrangements (“MEAs”Arrangements with customers may include multiplévdeables, including any combination
of products/equipment, services and extended waeganThe deliverables included in the MEAs angasated into more than one unit of
accounting when (i) the delivered product/equipniexs value to the customer on a stand-alone lzawis(ji) delivery of the undelivered
service element(s) is probable and substantialguincontrol. Arrangement consideration is théocalted to each unit, delivered or
undelivered, based on the relative selling prié&SP"”) of each unit of accounting based first ondegrspecific objective evidence (“VSOET)
it exists second on third-party evidence (“TPE")} iéxists and on estimated selling price (“ESPT)either VSOE or TPE exist.

 VSOE - In most instances, products are soldragglg in stand-alone arrangements. Serviceslapesald separately through
renewals of contracts with varying periods. Weedweine VSOE based on its pricing and discountiragtices for the specific
product or service when sold separately, consigegaographical, customer, and other economic oketiag variables, as well .
renewal rates or stand-alone prices for the seplEment(s).

e TPE - If we cannot establish VSOE of sellingprfor a specific product or service included imwaitiple-element arrangement,
we use thirdparty evidence of selling price. We determine TREda on sales of comparable amount of similar mtsdar servic
offered by multiple third parties considering thegdee of customization and similarity of producservice sold.

» ESP - The estimated selling price represents e pt which we would sell a product or servici Vfiere sold on a stand-alone
basis. When VSOE does not exist for all elememtsgetermine ESP for the arrangement element laseaédles, cost and margin
analysis, as well as other inputs based on itsngripractices. Adjustments for other market andh@any-specific factors are
made as deemed necessary in determining.ESP

We estimate and record a provision for amountstiated losses on sales, if any, in the perioti sates occur. We have not recorded
any estimated losses for the periods presenteavidiins for discounts and rebates to customerprangded for in the same period that the
related product sales are recorded based uponib&tdiscounts and rebates.

Clear Aligner

We enter into arrangements (“treatment plans”) ithatlve multiple future product deliverables. Fotample, included in the price of
Invisalign Full, Invisalign Teen and Invisalign Asis we offer optional case refinement, which fnéshing tool used to adjust a patient's teeth
to the desired final position. Case refinement ito@lected by the dental professional at any toreng treatment however it is generally
ordered in the last stages of orthodontic treatmémtisalign Teen also includes up to six optiorggdlacement aligners in the price of the
product and may be ordered at any time througheatrment.

We use VSOE adjusted by estimated usage ratesi$errefinements and replacement aligners to deterthé relative selling price. In
the absence of VSOE, we determine our best estioiiatelling price, as if it is sold on a stand-adrasis, and take into consideration our
pricing and discounting strategies, market condgjas well as historical price. We regularly eswviour estimates of selling price and main
internal controls over the establishment and updbtkese estimates.

We determined that our treatment plans, excepsatign Assist with progress tracking, are compriskthree possible deliverables that
represent separate units of accounting: singlelledtaligners, case refinement and replacementeaigniVe allocate revenue for each
treatment plan based on each unit's relative ggfiiite and recognize the revenue upon the deliekeach unit in the treatment plan.

For Invisalign Assist with the progress trackingtfee, aligners and services are provided to théatiprofessional every nine stages (“a
batch”). Beginning January 1, 2011, we were ableliably estimate the number of batches whicheapected to be shipped for each case
based upon our historical experience. The amallisated to this deliverable are
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recognized on a prorated basis as each batchpigeshiPrior to January 1, 2011, revenue was defeien the first batch shipment and was
recognized upon the final batch shipment. The \éwvetainer includes four shipments per year, andmege is recognized ratably as each
shipment occurs. In the first quarter of 2013, wik lyegin to consolidate Vivera Retainer produdpsients down to one shipment per year,
compared to the current process of four shipmesmtygar.

Prior to January 1, 2011, we used VSOE as faireveduallocate revenue to the case refinement goldaement aligner deliverables. We
deferred the fair value of case refinement andaghent aligner deliverables based on estimatagbustes and recognized the residual
revenue upon initial batch shipment. The deferesgnue was subsequently recognized as the refimteand replacement aligners were
shipped.

Scanners and CAD/CAM Services

We recognize revenues from the sales of iTero @@intra-oral scanners and CAD/CAM services. CABKCservices include
scanning services, extended warranty for the iotedscanners, a range of iTero restorative ses\acel OrthoCAD services such as OrthoC
iCast, OrthoCAD iQ, and OrthoCAD iRecord. We s$efta-oral scanners and services through both mactsales force and distribution
partners. The intraral scanner sales price includes one year of wirrand for additional fees, the customer maycela unlimited scannir
service agreement over a fixed period of time aercted warranty periods. Revenue, net of relasmbdnts and allowances, is recognized
when products or equipment have been shipped]ladtand on-site training completed, when persuwasividence of the arrangement exists,
the price is fixed or determinable, collectabilgyreasonably assured, title and risk of loss le&sed to customers based on the shipping term
no significant obligations remain, and allowanaasdiscounts, returns, and customer incentiveseareliably estimated. Discounts are
deducted from revenue at the time of sale or wherdiscount is offered, whichever is later and frages or training is included as a
deliverable in the multiple-element arrangemenéssment. Returns of products, excluding warraglpted returns, are infrequent and
insignificant.

ServicesService revenue, including iTero restorative am@athoCAD services are recognized upon deliveryatably over the contra
term as the specified services are performed.

Extended WarrantiedNe offer customers an option to purchase extendedanties on certain products. We recognize negem these
extended warranty contracts ratably over the [ffthe contract. The costs associated with thesendred warranty contracts are recognized
when incurred.

When intra-oral scanners are sold with either dimited scanning service agreement and/or extemgedanty, we allocate revenue
based on each element's relative selling price.e8tienate the selling price of each element, @sgfsold on a stand-alone basis, taking into
consideration historical prices as well as ouripg@and discounting strategies. We will continoedview our estimates as we continue to
integrate Cadent into our business.

Revenues for unlimited scanning service agreenarmsextended warranty are recognized ratably dnveseérvice periods. If a customer
selects a pay per use basis for scanning serece tiee revenue is recognized as the service vsderh.

For direct sales and sales to certain distribuintsg-oral scanner revenue is recognized oncénthee-oral scanner has been installed anc
on-site training is completed. For other distrdystwho provide installation and training to thetcumer, we recognize scanner revenue when
the intra-oral scanner is shipped to the distribagsuming all of the other revenue recognitioteda have been met.

Stock-based Compensation Expense

We recognize stock-based compensation cost forthnlse shares ultimately expected to vest on ahbtriine basis over the requisite
service period of the award. We estimate theviae of stock options using a Black-Scholes vadmaand Monte Carlo simulation model,
which requires the input of highly subjective asgtions, including the option’s expected term amtktprice volatility. In addition, judgment
is required in estimating the number of stock-bamedrds that are expected to be forfeited. Fanfes are estimated based on historical
experience at the time of grant and revised, iEssary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitdifer from those estimates. The assumption
used in calculating the fair value of share-basgdrent awards represent management’s best estjrbatabhese estimates involve inherent
uncertainties and the application of managemeuatigient. As a result, if factors change and wedifferent assumptions, our stock-based
compensation expense could be materially diffeiretite future.

Gooduwill and finite-lived acquired intangible asset

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pad over the fair value of tangible and ideabfe intangible net assets acquired in
business combinations and is allocated to the tieygounits based on relative synergies generated.

46




Our intangible assets primarily consist of intafgidssets acquired as part of the Cadent acquisifibese assets are amortized using tt
straightline method over their estimated useful lives of tmfifteen years, reflecting the period in whibk economic benefits of the assets
expected to be realized.

Impairment of goodwill, finite-lived acquired intagible assets and long-lived assets
Goodwill

We evaluate goodwill for impairment at least anhuat whenever an event occurs or circumstancesgasthat would more likely than
not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit belsxcarrying amount. The allocation of goodwdllthe respective reporting unit are based on
relative synergies generated as a result of anisiiqgn. The impairment test for goodwill is a tvetep process. Step one consists of a
comparison of the fair value of a reporting uniadimgt its carrying amount, including the goodwilbaated to each reporting unit. We
determine the fair value of our reporting unitsdzhen the present value of estimated future castsfunder the income approach of the
reporting units as well as various price or markattiples applied to the reporting unit's operatiagults along with the appropriate control
premium under the marketing approach, both of whighclassified as level 3 within the fair valuerarchy (as described in Note 2 in our
consolidated financial statements). If the cagy@mount of the reporting unit is in excess ofais value, step two requires the comparison of
the implied fair value of the reporting unit’'s gaaitl against the carrying amount of the reportingtis goodwill. Any excess of the carrying
value of the reporting unit's goodwill over the iligg fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill iscorded as an impairment loss.

Interim Testing

We test our goodwill balances for impairment antyuath November 30th or more frequently if indicat@re present or circumstances
change that suggest an impairment may exist. Duhiedghird quarter of 2012, we determined thatgbedwill for our SCCS reporting unit
should be tested for impairment between annual immeant tests since an event occurred or circumstnbanged that would more likely than
not reduce the fair value of our SCCS reportind balow its carrying amount. These indicators ideld the termination of an exclusive
distribution arrangement with Straumann for iTertva-oral scanners in Europe, as well as the textioin of their non-exclusive distribution
arrangement for iTero intraral scanners in North America, together with madanditions and business trends within the SC@8rtang unit.
While we continue to expect revenue growth in 0GCS business, our expectations for future growth@ofitability rates projected for the
SCCS reporting unit are lower than our previousrestes primarily driven by overall lower than expetfinancial results.

As a result, we performed step one analysis foISSELES reporting unit, which consists of a comparigbthe fair value of the SCCS
reporting unit against its carrying amount, inchglthe goodwill allocated to it. In deriving therfaalue of the SCCS reporting unit, we utili:
a combination of both the income and market apgroatich are classified as level 3 within the fatue hierarchy. The income approach
provides an estimate of fair value based on disisaliexpected future cash flows. The market apprpaavides an estimate of fair value using
various prices or market multiples applied to thearting unit's operating results and then apglieappropriate control premium in order to
reconcile to our market capitalization. As a resfilbur step one analysis, we concluded that theszédue of the SCCS reporting unit was less
than its carrying value, therefore, we proceedguerform step two of the goodwill impairment an&ys

Step two of the goodwill impairment analysis measuhe impairment charge by allocating the repgntnit's fair value to all of the
assets and liabilities of the reporting unit inypdthetical analysis that calculates the impliadvalue of goodwill in the same manner as if the
reporting unit was being acquired in a businesshioation. This allocation process was performed éml the purposes of measuring the
goodwill impairment, and not to adjust the carryirdues of the recognized tangible assets anditiabi Any excess of the carrying value of
the reporting unit's goodwill over the implied faalue of the reporting unit's goodwill is recordesian impairment loss. Based on our anal
the implied fair value of goodwill was substantidtbwer than the carrying value of the goodwill tbe SCCS reporting unit. We recorded a
preliminary goodwill impairment charge during thérd quarter of 2012 of $24.7 million and an aduil $11.9 million during the fourth
quarter of 2012, representing a change in estioqate finalizing our 2013 annual budget processaftotal impairment charge of $36.6
million . None of the goodwill impairment charge sséeductible for tax purposes.

Annual Impairment Test
In addition to our interim goodwill testing for 08CCS reporting unit, we also performed our angoaldwill impairment test for both
our reporting units, Clear Aligner and SCCS, on é&laber 30th, in accordance with our accounting polit step one, we compare the carn

value of our reporting units to the estimated failue as determined by both the income and maggbaches. For our Clear Aligner reporting
unit, we determined that the estimated fair valgaiBcantly exceeded its carrying value and therefwas not at risk for impairment.
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For our SCCS reporting unit, we concluded thatcdmying value of this reporting unit exceedecegimated fair value, therefore, we
proceeded to step two of the goodwill impairmeralgsis. As a result, we performed step two of thedwvill impairment analysis to quantify
the amount of impairment, if any, based on ourysiglas of November 30, 2012. In this step, thienesed fair value of the entire SCCS
reporting unit was allocated to all of the asseis leabilities in a hypothetical analysis that edéded the implied fair value of goodwill in the
same manner as if the reporting unit was beingieadjin a business combination. The allocation pssovas performed only for purposes of
measuring the goodwill impairment, and not to aidjns carrying values of recognized tangible asselisbilities. Accordingly, we did not
record any impairment charge under our step twtyaisaas the implied fair value of the allocateddwill exceeded the carrying value as of
November 30, 2012 by approximatl0% . A change in any one of the key assumptiomeasribed below would result in an additional
impairment:

» A l1l.9percentage point decrease to the discount ratetasbatermine the fair value of our Customer relahip intangible ass

e A 12 percentage point increase in the costsippart new customers which is factored in theaiue of our Customer relationship
intangible asset.

» A one percentage point decrease in the terngiralth rate assumption in the discounted cash fftavdel used in the income
approach.

In conjunction with our goodwill impairment testewested for recoverability of the SCCS asset gincdipding the carrying value of the
intangible assets and concluded the asset grolymling the intangible assets was not impaired &sraéned by the undiscounted cash flow
the asset group under the long-lived asset impaitg@dance. As such, no writedown of the intangddsets were recorded as of November
30th or during 2012.

Although no impairment existed for the intangibésets, because the carrying value of intangibletsigscluded in step one of the
goodwill impairment test are significantly highbah the hypothetical fair value of the reportingt'anntangible assets used in step two of the
goodwill impairment test, the SCCS reporting unit eontinue to fail step one of the goodwill impaient test. We have determined that, for
the foreseeable reporting periods, the SCCS regputiit will continue to fail step one of the goaliwnpairment test but may pass step two.

In fiscal years 2011 and 2010 we performed the aingoodwill impairment testing during the fourthegter for our reporting unit(s) and
found no impairment as the fair value of our rejpgrunit(s) was significantly in excess of the garg value.

Finite-lived intangible assets and long-lived asset

We evaluate long-lived assets (including finitestivintangible assets) for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of a long-liveget may not be recoverable. An asset or assep gga@onsidered impaired if its carrying
amount exceeds the future undiscounted net casfs tioe asset or asset group is expected to gendfabe asset or asset group is consider
be impaired, the impairment to be recognized isutated as the amount by which the carrying amofitite asset or asset group exceeds its
fair market value. There were no asset impairmeuatsg 2012, 2011 or 2010.

Accounting for Income Taxes

We make certain estimates and judgments in det@rgiincome tax expense for financial statement pseg. These estimates and
judgments occur in the calculation of certain tageds and liabilities, which arise from differenaethe timing of recognition of revenue a
expense for tax and financial statement purposes.

As part of the process of preparing our Consoldi&i@ancial Statements, we are required to estimaténcome taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which we operate. This procesimes us estimating our current tax exposure uttdeapplicable tax laws and asses:
temporary differences resulting from differing tmaant of items for tax and accounting purposesseéltifferences result in deferred tax asset
and liabilities, which are included in our Consalied Balance Sheets.

We account for uncertain tax issues pursuant tiocaithtive guidance based on a two-step approackctugnize and measure uncertain
tax positions taken or expected to be taken ixagturn. The first step is to determine if the gigiof available evidence indicates that it is
more likely than not that the tax position will Bestained on audit, including resolution
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of any related appeals or litigation processes.SHwnd step is to measure the tax benefit aathedt amount that is more than 50% likely to
be realized upon ultimate settlement. We adjugtrues for our uncertain tax positions due to chagdgcts and circumstances, such as the
closing of a tax audit, or refinement of estimafigsthe extent that the final outcome of these englis different than the amounts recorded,
such differences will impact our tax provision iar&onsolidated Statements of Operations in thisgén which such determination is made.

We assess the likelihood that we will be able tmver our deferred tax assets. Should there barmgehin our ability to recover our
deferred tax assets, our tax provision would ireedn the period in which we determine that it mrenlikely than not that we cannot recover
our deferred tax assets. We consider all availabigence, both positive and negative, includingadhnisal levels of income, expectations and
risks associated with estimates of future taxaideme and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planstiragegies in assessing the need for a
valuation allowance. If it is not more likely thant that we will recover our deferred tax assetswill increase our provision for taxes by
recording a valuation allowance against the defeta® assets that we estimate will not ultimatedyrécoverable. The available positive
evidence at December 31, 2012 included historipalating profits and a projection of future incosudficient to realize most of our remaining
deferred tax assets. As of December 31, 2012,dtamasidered more likely than not that our defetaadassets would be realized with the
exception of certain foreign loss carryovers asavweunable to forecast sufficient future profitsealize the deferred tax assets.

Accounting guidance for stodkased compensation prohibits recognition of a defieincome tax asset for excess tax benefits dawtk
option exercises that have not yet been realizegighh a reduction in income taxes payable. Suckaognized deferred tax benefits totaled
$23.0 million as of December 31, 2012 and will beaunted for as a credit to additional paid-in tapif and when realized through a
reduction in income taxes payable. We follow thel#éav ordering method to determine when exces®éanefits have been realized and
consider only the direct impacts of awards whenudating the amount of windfalls or shortfalls.

U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxe®eissed with the repatriation of earnings of foregubsidiaries were not provided for
on a cumulative total of $109.2 million of undibuited earnings for certain foreign subsidiariesfdbe end of the year ended December 31,
2012. We intend to reinvest these earnings indefinin our foreign subsidiaries. If these earningse distributed to the United States in the
form of dividends or otherwise, or if the shareshaf relevant foreign subsidiaries were sold oentlise transferred, we would be subject to
additional U.S. income taxes subject to an adjustrfeg foreign tax credit, and foreign withholditaxes. Determination of the amount of
unrecognized deferred income tax liability relatedhese earnings is not practicable.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

SeeNote 1* Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in tietes to our Consolidated Financial Statemémtsem 8for a full
description of recent accounting pronouncementsuding the expected dates of adoption and estuineffects on results of operations and
financial condition, which is incorporated herein.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal course of business, we are expostata@n currency exchange rate and interest isks that could impact our financial
position and results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk

Changes in interest rates could impact our antiegpaterest income on our cash equivalents anestnvents in marketable
securities. Our cash equivalents and investrrastéixed-rate short-term and long-term securiti€é$xed-rate securities may have their fair
market value adversely impacted due to a risetarést rates, and as a result, our future investmeame may fall short of expectations du
changes in interest rates or we may suffer logspsincipal if forced to sell securities which haleclined in market value due to changes in
interest rates. As of December 31, 2012 , we hadoapmately $49.7 million invested in available-fgaile marketable securities. An immediate
10% change in interest rates would not have a mahtaiverse impact on our future operating resais cash flows.

We do not have interest bearing liabilities as eEBmber 31, 2012 and therefore, we are not sulgjesks from immediate interest rate
increases.

Currency Rate Risk

We operate in North America, Europe, Asia-Pacfifiosta Rica and Israel . As a result of our intéomatl business activities, our
financial results could be affected by factors saslthanges in foreign currency exchange ratesasroenic conditions in foreign markets, and
there is no assurance that exchange rate fluctsatidl not harm our business in the
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future. We sell our products in the local curiefar the respective countries. This provides som@ral hedging because most of the
subsidiaries’ operating expenses are denominatdetinlocal currencies as discussed further beRegardless of this natural hedging, our
results of operations may be adversely impactethégxchange rate fluctuation. Although we will tone to monitor our exposure to
currency fluctuations, and, where appropriate, osg/financial hedging techniques in the future toimmize the effect of these fluctuations, we
are not currently engaged in any financial hedgiagsactions. The impact of an aggregate chah@@9% in foreign currency exchange rates
relative to the U.S. dollar on our results of opierss and financial position could be material.

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPL EMENTARY DATA

Quarterly Results of Operations

Three Months Ended
2012 2011

31-Dec 30-Sep 30-Jun 31-Mar 31-Dec 30-Sep 30-Jun 31-Mar

(in thousands, except per share data )
(unaudited )

Net revenues(1) $ 142,84 *$ 136,49t $ 14562 $ 13507¢ $ 128,900 $ 12589 $ 120,08 $ 104,85¢
Gross profit(2) 106,47 100,35( 108,80 100,76 95,55( 92,37( 91,13; 82,22¢
Income from operations(3) 17,07: 4,507 36,01: 28,00¢ 26,43( 26,31: 16,59t 21,02¢
Net income (loss)(3) 9,55¢ (359 28,49: 20,98¢ 20,44¢ 19,26+ 11,162 15,84:
Net income per share:

Basic $ 01z $ (0.00 $ 03 % 0.2¢ % 0.2¢ % 028 $ 014 $ 0.21
Diluted $ 01: $ (0.00 $ 03¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2 $ 024 $ 014 $ 0.2C

Shares used in computing net
income per share:

Basic 81,04 81,431 80,38 79,23t 78,731 78,45¢ 77,88¢ 76,844
Diluted 82,98 81,431 82,95/ 81,85¢ 80,84¢ 80,26¢ 80,32: 79,36

* In the fourth quarter of 2012, we identified amae that the actual case refinement usage ratdowas than our estimate and, as a result, we
recorded a net revenue release of $4.9 millioniptesly deferred for case refinement of which $5ilftiom was a correction of an error of
which $4.5 million relates to the first three qeastfor the fiscal year 2012 and $0.7 million redato the fiscal year 2011. The adjustment was
not material to any quarter within 2012. The nebant of $4.9 million is not material to the reswfsoperations for twelve months ended
December 31, 2012.

(1) Net revenues for the quarters ended June 2011ei@bpt 2011 and December 2011 include revenuesdtmracanners ar
CAD/CAM services business of approximately $6.4lioril, $11.6 million, and $10.0 million, respectiyehs a result of our
acquisition of Cadent on April 29, 2011. Net newes for the quarter ended June 2010 included & $dilion release of previously
deferred revenue for Invisalign Teen replacemdghats.

(2) Gross profit for the quarter ended March 2DBitluded acquisition and integration related co$t$0.1 million, amortization of
intangible assets of $0.3 million, and exit cogt$@3 million. Gross profit for the quarter endithe 2012 included acquisition and
integration related costs of $0.1 million, amorti@a of intangible assets of $0.2 million, and esasts of $0.1 million. Gross profit f
the quarter ended September 2012 included acquisitid integration related costs of $0.1 milliomoatization of intangible assets of
$0.2 million, and exit costs of $0.1 million. Grqa®fit for the quarter ended December 2012 amatitin of intangible assets of $0.2
million. Gross profit for the quarter ended Juné&2ihcluded acquisition and integration relatedso$ $0.1 million and amortization
of intangible assets of $0.2 million. Gross prédir the quarter ended September 2011 includedisitign and integration related
costs of $0.2 million, amortization of intangiblesats of $0.3 million and exit costs of $0.2 miilio Gross profit for the quarter ended
December 2011 included acquisition and integratédated costs of $0.1 million, amortization of imgéble assets of $0.3 million, and
exit costs of $0.6 million.

) Income (loss) from operations and net income (lowsyided

* $14.3 million release of previously deferred revefardnvisalign Teen replacement aligners for geiaended June 20:

« Acquisition and integration related costs of@illion for the quarter ended March 2012, $0.3iam for the quarter ended
June 2012, and $0.2 million for the quarter endept&nber 2012,
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Acquisition and integration related costs ofSpillion for the quarter ended March 2011, $5.%9ior for the quarter ended
June 2011, $1.5 million for the quarter ended Sept 2011 and $1.1 million for the quarter endedddeber 2011.

Amortization of intangible assets of $1.1 milliar the quarter ended March 2012, $1.1 million Fa juarter ended June 20
$1.0 million for the quarter ended September 2012 $1.0 million for the quarter ended December 2011

Amortization of intangible assets of $0.8 mitlifor the quarter ended June 2011, $1.1 milliortfierquarter ended September
2011 and $1.3 million for the quarter ended Decen2bé 1.

Exit costs of $0.5 million for the quarter endddrch 2012, $0.2 million for the quarter endedel@2012, and $0.1 million for
the quarter ended September 2012.

Exit costs of $0.2 million for the quarter endeg®enber 2011 and $0.8 million for the quarter enbedember 201

Impairment of goodwill of $24.7 million for thguarter ended September 2012 and $11.9 milliothioquarter ended
December 2012.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING

Management of Align is responsible for establishangl maintaining adequate internal control ovearfirial reporting as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exgleafsct of 1934. Our internal control over finaadagieporting is designed by, or under
supervision of, our CEO and CFO, and effected keytibard of directors, management and other perstmpeovide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdithe preparation of financial statements for exakpurposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Internal corakar financial reporting includes those policied @nocedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflecttthasactions and dispositions of the
assets of Align;

» provide reasonable assurance that transactienrgeorded as necessary to permit preparatiomafidial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, #vad receipts and expenditures of Align are beimglenonly in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of Alamd

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preveatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of Align's assets
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. In addition,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contrdy become inadequate because of chang
conditions and that the degree of compliance wighpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our ahtawntrol over financial reporting as of DecemBg&y 2012 . In making this
assessment, management used the criteria setrfdrtternal Control-Integrated Framework issuedhmsy Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on its assessment and those criteria, maeagéms concluded that, as of December 31, 20@Rinternal control over financial
reporting was effective based on criteria in In&@ontrol - Integrated Framework issued by the COS

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2012 has beditealiby PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, an independent registered public accounting,fas stated in their report which is includedeiher

/s/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 1, 2013

/'s/  KENNETH B. AROLA

Kenneth B. Arola
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

March 1, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Aliggchnology, Inc. and subsidiaries:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the index appearing under Item 15{a){fesent fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Align Technglpmc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 20iPRecember 31, 2011 , and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for eacthefthree years in the period ended December 32, in0donformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Ameridaaddition, in our opinion, the financial statent schedule listed in the index appearing
under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all materéspects, the information set forth therein whesad in conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements. Also in ounigm, the Company maintained, in all material exgp, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 , basedriteria established internal Control—Integrated Framewoi&sued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimis@COSO). The Company’s management is resplenibthese financial statements
and financial statement schedule, for maintainiffigcéve internal control over financial reportiagd for its assessment of the effectiveness ©
internal control over financial reporting, includedthe accompanying Report of Management on liade@ontrol over Financial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on th@sencial statements, on the financial statemeheduale, and on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our inéégd audits. We conducted our audits in accamlarith the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United State$hose standards require that we plan and perfioeraudits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeat$e® of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Ourtgudfithe financial statements included examinorga test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andfisanmt estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement@méstion. Our audit of internal control over fieéal reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financigloging, assessing the risk that a material weakagssts, and testing and evaluating the dt
and operating effectiveness of internal controkldasn the assessed risk. Our audits also inclpdgdrming such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Vievbahat our audits provide a reasonable basiedbopinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control overdirtial reporting includes those policies and pracesithat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financatkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeipnrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and(iiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iiz statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP

San Jose, California
March 1, 2013

54




ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net revenues $ 560,04: $ 479,74: % 387,12¢
Cost of revenues 143,65: 118,45¢ 83,70¢
Gross profit 416,38¢ 361,28: 303,41
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 152,04: 142,17- 114,01:
General and administrative 95,84( 89,15: 64,79(
Research and development 42,86¢ 37,154 25,99°
Impairment of goodwiill 36,59 — —
Litigation settlement costs — — 4,54¢
Insurance settlement — — (8,66¢)
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 3,45¢ 2,44: —
Total operating expenses 330,79¢ 270,92: 200,68:
Income from operations 85,59: 90,36( 102,73«
Interest income 757 552 55E
Other expense, net (2,059 (977) (1,28¢)
Net income before provision for income taxes 84,29¢ 89,94 102,00:
Provision for income taxes 25,60¢ 23,22¢ 27,75(
Net income $ 58,69: $ 66,71¢ $ 74,25
Net income per share:
Basic $ 0.7 % 0.8¢ $ 0.9¢
Diluted $ 071 $ 0.8% $ 0.9t
Shares used in computing net income per share:
Basic 80,52¢ 77,98¢ 75,82!
Diluted 83,04( 80,29« 78,08(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net income $ 58,69. $ 66,71t $ 74,25
Net change in cumulative translation adjustment 12¢ 10 (19
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on availablsdte securities,
net of tax 28 (99) (302
Other comprehensive income (losses) 157 (89) (321)
Comprehensive income $ 58,84¢ $ 66,62¢ $ 73,93:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31,

2012 2011
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 306,38t $ 240,67!
Restricted cash 1,57¢ 4,02¢
Marketable securities, short-term 28,48t 7,39¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts and returns of $2,484 and $780,
respectively 98,99: 91,53°
Inventories 15,12 9,40:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 35,23: 31,78:
Total current assets 485,79: 384,81t
Marketable securities, long-term 21,25: —
Property, plant and equipment, net 79,19: 53,96
Goodwill 99,23¢ 135,38:
Intangible assets, net 45,77 50,02:
Deferred tax assets 21,60¢ 22,33)
Other assets 3,45¢ 2,741
Total assets $ 756,31. $ 649,26:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 19,54¢ $ 19,26¢
Accrued liabilities 74,24 76,60(
Deferred revenues 61,97t 52,25:
Total current liabilities 155,77: 148,11
Other long-term liabilities 19,22 10,36¢
Total liabilities 174,99! 158,48:
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 7 and 9)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value (5,000 shart®ezed; none issued) — —
Common stock, $0.0001 par value (200,000 sharéwmapned; 80,611 and 78,776 issued and
outstanding in 2012 and 2011, respectively) 8 8
Additional paid-in capital 670,73: 607,24(
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 203 4€
Accumulated deficit (89,62¢) (116,51
Total stockholders’ equity 581,31 490,78:
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 756,31: $ 649,26:-

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and @01
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other
Paid in Comprehensive Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
Balances at December 31, 2009 74,56¢ $ 7 $ 525,070 $ 458 $ (252,49) $ 273,03
Net income — — — — 74,25! 74,25
Net change in unrealized gain from available-fde sa
securities — — — (19 — (19
Net change in cumulative translation adjustment — — — (302) — (302)
Comprehensive net loss 73,93:
Issuance of common stock relating to employee gquit
compensation plans 1,82 1 11,82: — — 11,82:
Tax withholdings related to net share settlemefts o
restricted stock units — (2,080 — — (1,080
Excess tax provision from share based payment
arrangements — — 3,96¢ — — 3,96¢
Stock based compensation — — 16,07: — — 16,07:
Balances at December 31, 2010 76,39( 8 555,85 134 (178,249 377,74
Net income — — — — 66,71¢ 66,71¢
Net change in unrealized loss from available-fée sa
securities — — — 1C — 10
Net change in cumulative translation adjustment — — (98 — (98)
Comprehensive net income 66,62¢
Issuance of common stock relating to employee gq
compensation plans 2,70¢ — 25,50: — — 25,50
Tax withholdings related to net share settlemefits o
restricted stock units — (1,899 — — (1,899
Common stock repurchased and retired (322) — (2,777 — (4,987 (7,759
Excess tax benefit from share based payment
arrangements — — 11,39 — — 11,39
Stock based compensation — — 19,16" — — 19,16¢
Balances at December 31, 2011 78,77¢ 8 607,24( 46 (116,51 490,78:
Net income — — — — 58,69: 58,69:
Net change in unrealized loss from available-fée sa
securities — — — 28 — 28
Net change in cumulative translation adjustment — — 12¢ — 12¢
Comprehensive net income 58,84¢
Issuance of common stock relating to employee gq
compensation plans 3,56¢ — 42,32% — — 42,32%
Tax withholdings related to net share settlemefits o
restricted stock units — (2,106 — — (2,106
Common stock repurchased and retired (1,730 — (15,399 — (31,80¢) (47,207
Excess tax benefit from share based payment
arrangements — — 17,18 — — 17,18
Stock based compensation — — 21,48: — — 21,48:
Balances at December 31, 2012 80,61: $ 8 $ 670,73: $ 20 $ (89,62() $ 581,31

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottbeasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Deferred taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation
Amortization of intangibles
Amortization of prepaid royalties
Excess tax benefit from share-based payment amaens
Impairment of goodwiill
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding tifeces of business combinations:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued and other long-term liabilities
Deferred revenues
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition, net of cash acquired
Restricted cash
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of marketable securities
Maturities of marketable securities
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Other assets
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Common stock repurchase
Excess tax provision benefit from share-based payareangements
Employees’ taxes paid upon the vesting of restlisteck units
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on castcasid equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
$ 5869 $ 66,71 $ 74,25
17,78: 5,84z 17,30°
13,44( 12,11: 11,38¢
21,48: 19,16¢ 16,07:
4,371 5,36¢ 2,80(
— — 827
(17,18 (11,39)) (3,96%)
36,59 — —
1,98¢ 11¢€ 25€
(9,139) (21,699 (12,18
(5,715 (4,05¢) (508)
(3,859 (2,681) (1,217)
(6) 7,53t 2,61¢
2,94¢ 37,108 19,70¢
12,38¢ 16,33+ 2,18(
133,77¢ 130,46¢ 129,52
— (187,58%) —
2,471 (4,026) _
(38,33 (30,409 (18,03;)
(67,517) — (18,33
25,19¢ 10,317 20,59(
(125) — (14E)
(78,300) (211,60¢) (15,920)
42,32; 25,50" 11,82:
(47,209 (7,754 —
17,18 11,39: 3,96¢
(2,106) (1,897) (1,080)
10,20¢ 27,24 14,70°
28 (93) (139
65,71 (53,989 128,17
240,67 294,66 166,48°
$ 306,38 $ 240,670 $ 294,66

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business Description

Align Technology, Inc. (“We”, “Our”, or “Align”) wa incorporated in April 1997 in Delaware and focusa designing, manufacturing
and marketing innovative, technology-rich produotselp dental professionals achieve the cliniealits they expect and deliver effective,
convenient cutting-edge dental treatment optiortheédr patients. We are headquartered in San Gaddornia with offices worldwide. Our
international headquarters are located in AmsterdaenNetherlands. We have two operating segméhjt§ilear Aligner, known as the
Invisalign system, and (2) Scanners and CAD/CAM/Bes ("SCCS"), known as the iTero intra-oral searand OrthoCAD services.

Basis of presentation and preparation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Align and our wholly-owned subsidiargter elimination of intercompany
transactions and balances. Certain amounts widlvienues and cost of revenues in prior periods heea reclassified to conform with the
current period presentation. These reclassificatitad no impact on previously reported gross poofitnancial position.

In connection with the preparation of the consdéddinancial statements, we evaluated events gulesé to the balance sheet date
through the financial statement issuance date atetmined that all material transactions have lbeeorded and disclosed properly.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
(“U.S.”) requires our management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the amounts reportdteiconsolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could diffaterially from those estimates. On an ongoingshag evaluate our estimates, including
those related to the fair values of financial instents, intangible assets and goodwill, usefukliokintangible assets and property and
equipment, stock-based compensation, revenue rigimgrincome taxes, and contingent liabilities,arg others. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumgtihat are believed to be reasonable, the resfulibich form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assetsiahilities.

Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of our cash, accounts reckdyabcounts payable and other current liabiliéipgroximate their fair value.
We measure our cash equivalents, marketable sesyudand our Israeli severance fund at fair valleair value is the price that would be
received from selling an asset or paid to transfibility in an orderly transaction between manbarticipants at the measurement date. Fair

value is estimated by applying the following hietar, which prioritizes the inputs used to measanevalue into three levels and bases the
categorization within the hierarchy upon the lowesel of input that is available and significaotthe fair value measurement:

Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities.

Level 2—Observable inputs other than quoted prices indudé_evel 1, such as quoted prices for similaetssr liabilities in active
markets; quoted prices for identical or similaredsr liabilities in markets that are not actigepther inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for subiathnthe full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3— Inputs that are generally unobservable and tyipiceflect management’s estimate of assumptioas tarket participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Cash and cash equivalents

We consider currency on hand, demand deposits,dapesits, and all highly liquid investments withaiginal maturity othree month
or less at the date of purchase to be cash andegasvalents. Cash and cash equivalents are hefdrious financial institutions in the U.S.
and internationally.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Restricted cash

Our restricted cash balances as of December 32, 20d 2011 were approximately $1.6 million and $4illion , respectively, which al
primarily unclaimed merger consideration relatethmacquisition of Cadent Holdings, Inc. ("Cadgioti April 29, 2011.

Marketable securities

We invest primarily in money market funds, U.S. gmment agencies, U.S. dollar dominated foreigpa@te bonds and domestic
corporate bonds.

Marketable securities are classified as availabteséle and are carried at fair value. Marketablaurities classified as current assets
have maturities of less than one year. Unrealggeds or losses on such securities are includeddéamulated other comprehensive income
(loss) in stockholders’ equity. Realized gains brsdes from maturities of all such securitiesreported in earnings and computed using the
specific identification cost method. Realized gain losses and charges for other-than-temporaiynés in value, if any, on available-for-sale
securities are reported in other income (expers@)arred. We periodically evaluate these investis for other-than-temporary impairment.

Foreign currency

For our international subsidiaries where the Udllad is the functional currency, we analyze oraanual basis or more often if
necessary, if a significant change in facts anclanstances indicate that the primary economic noyrédas changed. Adjustments from
translating certain European, Asia-Pacific, anddbsubsidiaries’ financial statements from thalaurrency to the U.S. dollar are recorded a:
a separate component of accumulated other commeancome (loss), net in the stockholders’ egségtion of the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. This foreign currency translation adjustmeflects the translation of the balance sheptebd end exchange rates, and the income
statement at an average exchange rate in effeictdilve period. As of December 31, 2012, we had #tlllion in accumulated other
comprehensive income, net related to the translatiour foreign subsidiariefinancial statements. As of December 31. 2011,doreurrenc
translation adjustment in accumulated other cormgnsive income, net related to the translation offoreign subsidiariedinancial statement
were not material.

Our other international entities operate in a W@&lar functional currency environment, and therefahe foreign currency assets and
liabilities are remeasured into the U.S. dollacatrent exchange rates except for non-monetarysaaad liabilities which are remeasured at
historical exchange rates. Revenues and expensegmaerally remeasured at an average exchangim ieffect during each period. Gains or
losses from foreign currency remeasurement aredecl in other income (expense). For the year eBadegmber 31, 2012 and 2011 foreign
currency gains were not significant, and for tharyended December 31, 2010, we incurred a gaif.6f@illion , which was included in other
income (expense).

Certain risks and uncertainties

Our operating results depend to a significant eb@erour ability to market and develop our producE$e life cycles of our products are
difficult to estimate due, in part, to the effe€fature product enhancements and competition. ifability to successfully develop and market
our products as a result of competition or othetdies would have a material adverse effect on agimess, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our cash and investments are held primarily byfinancial institutions. Financial instruments whigttentially expose us to
concentrations of credit risk consist primarilycaish equivalents, marketable securities and acsoaceivable. We invest excess cash
primarily in money market funds of major finandiastitutions, U.S. government agencies, U.S. dataninated foreign corporate bonds and
domestic corporate bonds. If the carrying valuewfinvestments exceeds the fair value, and thingein fair value is deemed to be other-
than-temporary, we will be required to write dowe t/alue of our investments, which could materiblym our results of operations and
financial condition. Moreover, the performanceceftain securities in our investment portfolio etates with the credit condition of the U.S.
economy. We provide credit to customers in thenadrcourse of business. Collateral is not requioeéccounts receivable, but ongoing
evaluations of customers’ credit worthiness arégoered. We maintain reserves for potential cretises and such losses have been within
management’s expectations. No individual custoacepunted for 10% or more of our accounts receé&vabDecember 31, 2012 and 2011, or
net revenues in 2012, 2011, and 2010.
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In the U.S., the Food and Drug Administration (“FDfegulates the design, manufacture, distributfme;clinical and clinical study,
clearance and approval of medical devices. Predieteloped by us may require approvals or cleagafiom the FDA or other international
regulatory agencies prior to commercialized salHsere can be no assurance that our productsegiive any of the required approvals or
clearances. If we were denied approval or clearansuch approval was delayed, it may have a mhsatverse impact on us.

We have manufacturing operations located outsidéJtls. We currently rely on our manufacturing licin Costa Rica to prepare
digital treatment plans using a sophisticated rivey developed computer-modeling program. Initaold, we manufacture our clear aligners
and distribute our intra-oral scanners at our itydih Juarez, Mexico and we produce our handhetthser wand in Or Yehuda, Israel. Our
reliance on international operations exposes usl&ted risks and uncertainties, including difftees in staffing and managing international
operations such as hiring and retaining qualifiecspnnel; controlling production volume and quatifymanufacture; political, social and
economic instability, particularly as a result nfieased levels of violence in Juarez, Mexicoyriofgions and limitations in telecommunicat
services; product and material transportation detaydisruption; trade restrictions and changeariffs; import and export license
requirements and restrictions; fluctuations in iigmecurrency exchange rates; and potential adviarseonsequences. If any of these risks
materialize, our international manufacturing opereg, as well as our operating results, may be bdrm

We purchase certain inventory from sole suppliérdditionally, we rely on a limited number of hardwe manufacturers. The inability
any supplier or manufacturer to fulfill our suppgguirements could materially and adversely impactfuture operating results.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragnlith cost computed using standard cost (whpgr@ximates actual cost) and actual
cost on a first-in-first-out or average basis. &sand obsolete inventories are determined ptyr@sed on future demand forecasts, and
write-downs of excess and obsolete inventoriesererded as a component of cost of revenues.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at histbeost less accumulated depreciation and amtidizaDepreciation and amortization
are computed using the straight-line method overestimated useful lives of the assets, genettalgetto five years. We amortize leasehold
improvements over the shorter of the remainingdeasm of up to five years or the estimated udafes of the assets. We depreciate building:
over periods up to 20 years. Land is not depregidg@enstruction in progress is related to the goesbn or development of property
(including land) and equipment that have not yetrbglaced in service for their intended use. Ugale or retirement, the asset’s cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed framgéneral ledger and any related gains or lossa®#ected in operating
expenses. Maintenance and repairs are expensecLiagd.

Goodwill and finite-lived acquired intangible asset

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase paa over the fair value of tangible and ideabfe intangible net assets acquired in
business combinations and is allocated to the otispereporting units based on relative synergiemsegated.

Our intangible assets primarily consist of intafgidssets acquired as part of the Cadent acquisifibese assets are amortized using tr
straight-line method over their estimated useftddiof one to fifteegears, reflecting the period in which the econobeoefits of the assets i
expected to be realized.

Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets

We evaluate goodwill for impairment at least anhyuat whenever an event occurs or circumstancesgathat would more likely than
not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit belsxcarrying amount. The allocation of goodwdllthe respective reporting units is based on
the relative synergies generated as a result atquisition.

The impairment test for goodwill is a two-step @ss. Step one consists of a comparison of thedhie of a reporting unit against its
carrying amount, including the goodwill allocatedeiach reporting unit. We determine the fair valtieur reporting units based on the preser
value of estimated future cash flows as well agouarprice or market multiples applied to the réjporunit's operating results along with the
appropriate control premium, which are classifiedesvel 3 within the fair value hierarchy (as dés=d in Note 2). If the carrying amount of
the reporting unit is in excess of its fair valagsp two
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requires the comparison of the implied fair valfighe reporting unit’'s goodwill against the carnyiamount of the reporting unit's
goodwill. Any excess of the carrying value of teeorting unit's goodwill over the implied fair wad of the reporting unit's goodwill is
recorded as an impairment loss.

We evaluate long-lived assets (including finiteetivintangible assets) for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of a long-livedet may not be recoverable. An asset or assep gse@onsidered impaired if its carrying
amount exceeds the future undiscounted net caafs tite asset or asset group is expected to gendfate asset or asset group is consider
be impaired, the impairment to be recognized isutated as the amount by which the carrying amotitiie asset or asset group exceeds its
fair market value. There were no asset impairmeéuatsig 2012, 2011 or 2010.

Development costs for internal use software

Costs relating to internal use software are acaulfdr in accordance with the provisions of accmgnfor the costs of computer softw:
developed or obtained for internal use. Capitdligeftware costs are amortized over the estimagetiillife of threeyears. Development co:
for internal use software for 2012, 2011, and 2@&@e not material.

Product Warranty
Clear Aligner

We warrant our Invisalign products against matetétkcts until the Invisalign case is complete. &erue for warranty costs in cost of
revenues upon shipment of products. The amouat@iued estimated warranty costs is primarily bagedistorical experience as to product
failures as well as current information on replaeattosts. Actual warranty costs could differ matly from the estimated amounts. We
regularly review the accrued balances and updatethalances based on historical warranty cosidreActual warranty costs incurred have
not materially differed from those accrued.

Scanners and CAD/CAM Services

We warrant our intra-oral scanners for a periodre# year, which include materials and labor. W for these warranty costs based
on average historical repair costs. An extendedlamty may be purchased for additional fees.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsciastomers that are not able to make payments. aifedically review these
allowances, including an analysis of the customeagment history and information regarding the @ors’ creditworthiness. Actual write-
offs have not materially differed from the estinthidlowance.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue according to the accountiigpgae for multiple-deliverable revenue arrangeméniAccounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) 2009-13Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements-a consems the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FBXS
Emerging Issues Task For.

Multiple-Element Arrangements (“MEAs”Arrangements with customers may include multipliéveeables, including any combination
of products/equipment, services and extended w@eganThe deliverables included in the MEAs angasated into more than one unit of
accounting when (i) the delivered product/equipniexs value to the customer on a stand-alone lzasig(ii) delivery of the undelivered
service element(s) is probable and substantialguincontrol. Arrangement consideration is thdocalted to each unit, delivered or
undelivered, based on the relative selling pri¢&SP") of each unit of accounting based first ondagrspecific objective evidence (“VSOET)
it exists second on third-party evidence (“TPE"} iéxists and on estimated selling price (“ESPT)aither VSOE or TPE exist.

 VSOE - In most instances, products are soldragglg in stand-alone arrangements. Serviceslapesald separately through
renewals of contracts with varying periods. Weedwrine VSOE based on its pricing and discountiragtices for the specific
product or service when sold separately, consigegaographical, customer, and other economic oketiag variables, as well .
renewal rates or stand-alone prices for the seplement(s).

e TPE - If we cannot establish VSOE of sellingprfor a specific product or service included imwaitiple-element arrangement,
we use third-party evidence of selling price. Weedmine TPE based on sales of
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comparable amount of similar products or serviderefl by multiple third parties considering the iegof customization and
similarity of product or service sold.

 ESP - The estimated selling price represents flae pt which we would sell a product or servici ¥ere sold on a stand-alone
basis. When VSOE does not exist for all elememésdetermine ESP for the arrangement element lasesdles, cost and margin
analysis, as well as other inputs based on itsngrigractices. Adjustments for other market andh@any-specific factors are
made as deemed necessary in determining.ESP

We estimate and record a provision for amountsbtimated losses on sales, if any, in the perioti sates occur. We have not recorded
any estimated losses for the periods presenteavigiins for discounts and rebates to customerprangded for in the same period that the
related product sales are recorded based uponib@tdiscounts and rebates.

Clear Aligner

We enter into arrangements (“treatment plans”) ithvatlve multiple future product deliverables. Fotample, included in the price of
Invisalign Full, Invisalign Teen and Invisalign Asis we offer optional case refinement, which fn&shing tool used to adjust a patient's teeth
to the desired final position. Case refinement malected by the dental professional at any toreng treatment however it is generally
ordered in the last stages of orthodontic treatmémtisalign Teen also includes up to six optiorggdlacement aligners in the price of the
product and may be ordered at any time througheatrent.

We use VSOE adjusted by estimated usage ratesgerrefinements and replacement aligners to daterthe relative selling price. In
the absence of VSOE, we determine our best estiniatelling price, as if it is sold on a stand-adrasis, and take into consideration our
pricing and discounting strategies, market condgjas well as historical price. We regularly eswiour estimates of selling price and main
internal controls over the establishment and updbteese estimates.

We determined that our treatment plans, excepsatign Assist with progress tracking, are compriskthree possible deliverables that
represent separate units of accounting: singlelldtaligners, case refinement and replacementeaigniiVe allocate revenue for each
treatment plan based on each unit's relative gefiiite and recognize the revenue upon the deliokeach unit in the treatment plan.

For Invisalign Assist with the progress trackingtiee, aligners and services are provided to théatlprofessional every nine stages (“a
batch™). Beginning January 1, 2011, we were abikeliably estimate the number of batches whicheageected to be shipped for each case
based upon our historical experience. The amallusated to this deliverable are recognized onoagped basis as each batch is shipped.
to January 1, 2011, revenue was deferred upornirgidatch shipment and was recognized upon tla fiiatch shipment. The Vivera retainer
includes four shipments per year, and revenuecisgrized ratably as each shipment occurs.

Prior to January 1, 2011, we used VSOE as faireveduallocate revenue to the case refinement gridaement aligner deliverables. We
deferred the fair value of case refinement andaegrhent aligner deliverables based on estimateyeusses and recognized the residual
revenue upon initial batch shipment. The deferes#nue was subsequently recognized as the refirteand replacement aligners were
shipped.

Scanners and CAD/CAM Services

We recognize revenues from the sales of iTero @@intra-oral scanners and CAD/CAM services. CABXCservices include
scanning services, extended warranty for the iotedscanners, a range of iTero restorative ses\acel OrthoCAD services such as OrthoC
iCast, OrthoCAD iQ, and OrthoCAD iRecord. We seffa-oral scanners and services through both mactisales force and distribution
partners. The intraral scanner sales price includes one year of warrand for additional fees, the customer maycela unlimited scannir
service agreement over a fixed period of time ¢ercted warranty periods. Revenue, net of relaismbdnts and allowances, is recognized
when products or equipment have been shipped]lad@nd on-site training completed, when persuasiidence of the arrangement exists,
the price is fixed or determinable, collectabiigyreasonably assured, title and risk of loss lssgd to customers based on the shipping term
no significant obligations remain, and allowanaasdiscounts, returns, and customer incentiveseareliably estimated. Discounts are
deducted from revenue at the time of sale or wherdiscount is offered, whichever is later and frages or training is included as a
deliverable in the multiple-element arrangemenesssient. Returns of products, excluding warragigted returns, are infrequent and
insignificant.

ServicesService revenue, including iTero restorative ah@®athoCAD services are recognized upon deliveryatably over the contra
term as the specified services are performed.
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Extended WarrantiedVe offer customers an option to purchase extendedanties on certain products. We recognize negem these
extended warranty contracts ratably over the lifthe contract. The costs associated with thesendrd warranty contracts are recognized
when incurred.

When intra-oral scanners are sold with either dimited scanning service agreement and/or extemgedanty, we allocate revenue
based on each element's relative selling price.e8tienate the selling price of each element, @ssfsold on a stand-alone basis, taking into
consideration historical prices as well as ouripg@and discounting strategies. We will continoedview our estimates as we continue to
integrate Cadent into our business.

Revenues for unlimited scanning service agreen@mrmtsextended warranty are recognized ratably dwesérvice periods. If a customer
selects a pay per use basis for scanning senéce tlee revenue is recognized as the service védem.

For direct sales and sales to certain distributotsa-oral scanner revenue is recognized onc@the-oral scanner has been installed anc
on-site training is completed. For other distrdystwho provide installation and training to thetocuner, we recognize scanner revenue when
the intra-oral scanner is shipped to the distribatsuming all of the other revenue recognitioteda have been met.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling charges to customers araded in net revenues, and the associated costsedcare recorded in cost of
revenues.

Legal Proceedings and Litigations

We are involved in legal proceedings on an ongbiagjs. If we believe that a loss arising from sincttters is probable and can be
reasonably estimated, we accrue the estimatedityaibi our financial statements. If only a rangeestimated losses can be determined, we
accrue an amount within the range that, in our fjoelgt, reflect the most likely outcome; if none lod £stimates within that range is a better
estimate than any other amount, we accrue the taloéthe range.

Research and development

Research and development expense includes thenpetselated costs and outside consulting expessssciated with the research and
development of new products and enhancements $tirexiproducts, facility and facility related cqaterporate allocations and conducting
clinical and pre-commercialization trial and tegtifhese costs are expensed as incurred.

Advertising costs

The cost of advertising and media is expensedasried. For the years ended December 31, 2012, &d 2010 advertising costs
totaled $23.6 million , $21.2 million and $20.2 loih , respectively.

Common stock repurchase

We repurchase our own common stock from time te fimthe open market when our Board of Directofgraye a stock repurchase
program. We account for these repurchase undexcitreunting guidance for equity where we allocagetthial repurchase value that are in
excess over par between additional paid in capitdlretained earnings. All shares repurchasecetired.

Operating leases

We leases office spaces, automobiles and equipomeler operating leases with original lease perigr 7 years. Certain of these
leases have free or escalating rent payment pomgsWe recognize rent expense under such leasestomight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Certain leases have adjustments for mar&eispns.

Income taxes

We make certain estimates and judgments in det@rgiincome tax expense for financial statement pseg. These estimates and
judgments occur in the calculation of certain tageds and liabilities, which arise from differenagethe timing of recognition of revenue a
expense for tax and financial statement purposes.
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As part of the process of preparing our Consoldi&i@ancial Statements, we are required to estimatéincome taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which we operate. This processimes us estimating our current tax exposure uttdeapplicable tax laws and asses:
temporary differences resulting from differing tmaant of items for tax and accounting purposesseéltifferences result in deferred tax asset
and liabilities, which are included in our Consalied Balance Sheets.

We account for uncertain tax issues pursuant tiocaithtive guidance based on a two-step approackctgnize and measure uncertain
tax positions taken or expected to be taken ixagturn. The first step is to determine if the gigiof available evidence indicates that it is
more likely than not that the tax position will Bestained on audit, including resolution of anpted appeals or litigation processes. The
second step is to measure the tax benefit as fifpesteamount that is more than 50% likely to bdized upon ultimate settlement. We adjust
reserves for our uncertain tax positions due toghmy facts and circumstances, such as the cladingax audit, or refinement of estimates.
the extent that the final outcome of these matgedifferent than the amounts recorded, such diffees will impact our tax provision in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations in the péniechich such determination is made.

We assess the likelihood that we will be able tmver our deferred tax assets. Should there barmgehin our ability to recover our
deferred tax assets, our tax provision would ireeda the period in which we determine that it mrenlikely than not that we cannot recover
our deferred tax assets. We consider all availabigence, both positive and negative, includingadhnisal levels of income, expectations and
risks associated with estimates of future taxaideme and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planstiragegies in assessing the need for a
valuation allowance. If it is not more likely thant that we will recover our deferred tax assetswill increase our provision for taxes by
recording a valuation allowance against the defeta® assets that we estimate will not ultimatedyrécoverable. The available positive
evidence at December 31, 2012 included historipatating profits and a projection of future incosudficient to realize most of our remaining
deferred tax assets. As of December 31, 2012,stasasidered more likely than not that our defeteedassets would be realized with the
exception of certain foreign loss carryovers asaveeunable to forecast sufficient future profitsdalize the deferred tax assets.

Accounting guidance for stock-based compensatiohibits recognition of a deferred income tax agseéxcess tax benefits due to
stock option exercises that have not yet beenzezhthrough a reduction in income taxes payablefdl@v the tax law ordering method to
determine when excess tax benefits have beenedadiad consider only the direct impacts of awardemcalculating the amount of windfalls
or shortfalls.

Stock-based compensation

We recognize stock-based compensation cost forthnlse shares ultimately expected to vest on @btriine basis over the requisite
service period of the award. We estimate theviae of stock options using a Black-Scholes vadmaand Monte Carlo simulation model for
our market-performance based stock awards, whiphines the input of highly subjective assumptiansluding the optiors expected term a
stock price volatility. In addition, judgment itsa required in estimating the number of stock-bDaseards that are expected to be
forfeited. Forfeitures are estimated based oroticstl experience at the time of grant and reviffetgcessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. The agstions used in calculating the fair value of shiaased payment awards represent
management’s best estimates, but these estimatseérinherent uncertainties and the applicatiomahagement’s judgment. As a result, if
factors change and we use different assumptiomsstook-based compensation expense could be mibtelifderent in the future.

Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes all changesjirity during a period from non-owner sourcesom@rehensive income (loss),
including unrealized gains and losses on availfdniesale securities and foreign currency transtatidjustments, are reported net of their
related tax effect.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-GZporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumuta@ther Comprehensive Incol
("AOCI")" . This standard requires reporting, ineplace, information about reclassifications ouAGfCI by component. An entity is required
to present, either on the face of the financiakstents or in the notes, significant amounts rediad out of AOCI by the respective line items
of net income, but only if the amount is reclasslfin its entirety in the same reporting period: &mounts that are not required to be
reclassified to net income in their entirety, atitgris required to cross-reference to other cutyerequired disclosures that provide additional
detail about those amounts. The
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information required by this standard must be preskin one place, either parenthetically on thoe faf the financial statements by income
statement line item or in a note. This standard tvéleffective for our first quarter of 2013, and are currently evaluating the impact of this
pronouncement on our consolidated financial statésne

Note 2. Marketable Securities and Fair Value Measwgments

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the estimateddie of our short-term and long-term investmgditsssified as available for sale,

are as follows (in thousands):

Short-term

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2012 Cost Gains Losses Value
Commercial paper 4,64¢ 1 —  $ 4,64
Corporate bonds 18,76° 7 4 18,77(
U.S. dollar dominated foreign corporate bonds 5,06( 9 (D) 5,06¢
Total 28,47: 17 5) $ 28,48t
Long-term
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2012 Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. government agency bonds 2,06¢ 1 —  $ 2,07(
Corporate bonds 16,13: 16 @) 16,14:
U.S. dollar dominated foreign corporate bonds 3,03¢ 4 (D) 3,041
Total 21,23¢ 21 8 $ 21,25
Short-term
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
December 31, 2011 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Corporate bonds 4,13t — 12 $ 4,13¢
U.S. dollar dominated foreign corporate bonds 1,24¢ — (5) 1,24:
U.S. government agency bonds 2,01t 3 — 2,01¢
Total 7,39¢ 3 6) $ 7,39¢

We did not have any long-term marketable securégsf December 31, 2011 .

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 20dlize® losses were immaterial. Cash and cash dguaigavere not included in the

table above as the gross unrealized gains andslegs®e not material. We have no material short-t@riong-term investments that have been

in a continuous unrealized loss position for gnetitan twelve months as of December 31, 2012. Ansotatlassified to earnings from

unrealized gain or losses were immaterial in 201@22011.

Our fixed-income securities investment portfolimsists of corporate bonds, U.S. government ageaoygd) U.S. dollar dominated
foreign corporate bonds and commercial paper that la maximum maturity of two years. The corpodsbt and government and agency
securities that we invest in are generally deerndzbtlow risk based on their credit ratings from thajor rating agencies. The longer the
duration of these securities, the more susceptilelg are to changes in market interest rates and pields. As interest rates increase, those

securities purchased at a lower yield show a maukdrket
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unrealized loss. The unrealized losses are dueagtinto changes in credit spreads and interessrat/e expect to realize the full value of all

these investments upon maturity or sale. As of Biser 31, 2012, these securities had a weightechggeemaining duration of approximat
10 months (in thousands).

December 31,

2012
One year or less $ 28,48t
One year through two years 21,25:
$ 49,73]

Fair Value Measurements

We measure the fair value of our cash equivalemiswaarketable securities as the price that woultebeived from selling an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transantbetween market participants at the measuredanat We use the GAAP fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniquesd to measure fair value. This hierarchy reguamn entity to maximize the use of observabl
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inptitsn measuring fair value. The three levels ofitathat may be used to measure fair
value:

Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets consist of money market fundscammercial paper. We did not hold any Levehbilities as oDecember 31, 201
or 2011.

Level 2—Observable inputs other than quoted prices indudé_evel 1, such as quoted prices for similaetssr liabilities in active
markets; quoted prices for identical or similaredsr liabilities in markets that are not actigepther inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for subiathnthe full term of the asset or liability.

Our Level 2 assets consist of commercial papeparate bonds, U.S. dollar denominated foreign aatgabonds, U.S. government
agency bonds, and our Israeli severance fundsatkanhainly invested in insurance policies. We abthese fair values for level 2 investments
from our asset manager for each of our portfolias: custody bank and asset managers independeatiyrafessional pricing services to
gather pricing data which may include quoted mapkietes for identical or comparable financial instents, or inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable either directly or indirecligd we are ultimately responsible for these undeglgstimates.

We did not hold any Level 2 liabilities as of Ded®n 31, 2012 or 2011.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology #re supported by little or no market activityldhat are significant to t
measurement of the fair value of the assets ottitiab. Level 3 assets and liabilities includeske whose fair value measurements are
determined using pricing models, discounted cash {I'DCF") methodologies or similar valuation tedures, as well as significant
management judgment or estimation.

We did not hold any Level 3 assets or liabilitissoh December 31, 2012 or 2011.

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

During 2012, we recorded a goodwill impairment geaof $36.6 million related to our SCCS reportimgt @s an event occurred or
circumstances changed that led us to perform awilacthpairment analysis between the annual tesictvinequired us to determine the fair
value of the SCCS reporting unit (Refer to NoteTjese fair value measurements were calculated usiabservable inputs, using both the
income and market approach, which are classifidceael 3 within the fair value hierarchy. Inputs the income approach includes the ami
and timing of future cash flows based on our mesént operational budgets, strategic plans, tefrgioavth rates assumptions and other
estimates. The primary input for the market appinaaclude market multiples for guideline comparttest operate in a similar business
environment.

The following table summarizes our financial asse¢ssured at fair value on a recurring basis &ectémber 31, 2012 and 2011 (in
thousands):
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Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other
Balance as of Identical Assets Observable Inputs
Description December 31, 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2)
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 86,16¢ $ 86,16¢ $ —
Commercial paper 95( — 95(
Short-term investments:
Commercial paper 4,64 — 4,64
Corporate bonds 18,77( — 18,77(
U.S. dollar denominated foreign corporate bonds 5,06¢ — 5,06¢
Long-term investments:
U.S. government agency bonds 2,07( — 2,07(
Corporate bonds 16,14: — 16,14:
U.S. dollar denominated foreign corporate bonds 3,041 — 3,041
Long-term other assets:
Israeli severance funds 2,21¢ — 2,21¢
$ 139,07: $ 86,16¢ $ 52,90¢
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other
Balance as of Identical Assets Observable
Description December 31, 2011 (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2)
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 86,897 $ 86,897 $ —
Short-term investments:
Corporate bonds 4,13« — 4,13¢
U.S. dollar denominated foreign corporate bonds 1,24: — 1,24:
U.S. government agency bonds 2,01¢ 2,01¢
Long-term other assets:
Israeli severance funds 1,85¢ — 1,85¢
$ 96,15. $ 86,897 $ 9,25¢

Note 3. Balance Sheet Components
Inventories
Inventories consist of the following (in thousands)

December 31,

2012 2011
Raw materials $ 7,62¢ $ 4,54;
Work in process 3,88¢ 2,48¢
Finished goods 3,60¢ 2,37¢
$ 15,12 $ 9,40z

Work in process includes costs to produce our @dégner and intra-oral scanner products. Finisieads primarily represent our intra-
oral scanners and ancillary products that supportiear aligner products.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment consist of the followingtfiausands):
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December 31,

2012 2011

Clinical and manufacturing equipment $ 83,82. $ 59,99:
Computer hardware 22,70¢ 19,09¢
Computer software 20,34t 18,97:
Furniture and fixtures 6,80¢ 5,791
Leasehold improvements 12,38¢ 4,58¢
Building 1,86¢ 1,91
Land 1,162 1,162
Construction in progress 16,027 17,91
Total 165,12¢ 129,43:
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (85,939 (75,46%)
$ 79,19: $ 53,96!

As of December 31, 2012 , construction in progoesssisted primarily of costs for capital equipminbe placed in service in the next
year. Depreciation and amortization v$13.4 million , $12.1 million , and $11.4 milliorfar the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

Accrued liabilities
Accrued liabilities consist of the following (indbsands):

December 31,

2012 2011

Accrued payroll and benefits $ 39,62. $ 41,82°
Accrued sales rebate 8,33t 8,35¢
Accrued sales tax and value added tax 5,25: 7,052
Accrued sales and marketing expenses 4,08¢ 3,50¢
Accrued warranty 4,05( 3,171
Accrued accounts payable 2,86¢ 3,04¢
Accrued professional fees 2,34¢ 654
Unclaimed merger consideration 1,57¢ 4,02¢
Accrued income taxes 572 42¢
Other 5,54( 4,52¢
$ 74,247 $ 76,60(

Warranty

We regularly review the accrued balances and ugtase balances based on historical warranty tréxataal warranty costs incurred
have not materially differed from those accruedwideer, future actual warranty costs could diffemfrthe estimated amounts.

Clear Aligner

We warrant our Invisalign products against matatefbcts until the Invisalign case is complete. &erue for warranty costs in cost of
net revenues upon shipment of products. The anwfuatcrued estimated warranty costs is primarilyeloleon historical experience as to
product failures as well as current informationreplacement costs.

Scanners
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We warrant our scanners for a period of one yean fihe date of training and installation. We acdordhese warranty costs which
includes materials and labor based on estimatédriual repair costs. Extended service packageshmgurchased for additional fees.

Warranty accrual as of December 31, 2012 and 26tsists of the following activity (in thousands):

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2010 $ 2,607
Charged to cost of revenues 3,31¢
Assumed warranty from Cadent 34C
Actual warranty expenditures (3,089

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2011 3,171
Charged to cost of revenues 4,63
Actual warranty expenditures (3,769

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2012 $ 4,05(

Note 4. Business Combinations

On April 29, 2011, we completed the acquisitiorCaident for an aggregate cash purchase price obeippately $187.6 million ,
acquiring all of Cadent's outstanding common armdgored stock. Cadent is a 3D digital scannidgtsms for orthodontics and
dentistry. We believe that the combination ofghils and Cadent’s technologies and capabilitieatesegreater growth opportunities for Align
by bringing innovative new Invisalign treatmentl®tm customers and by extending the value of iated scanning in dental practices.

The following table summarizes the allocation & flurchase price as of April 29, 2011 (in thousgnds

Assets $ 15,74¢
Property, plant and equipment 3,62¢
Acquired identifiable intangible assets:

Trademarks (one to fifteen year useful lives) 7,10(

Existing technology (thirteen year useful life) 12,60(

Customer relationships (eleven year useful life) 33,50(
Goodwill 135,34¢
Liabilities assumed (20,330)
Total $ 187,58

In 2011, we incurred direct transaction costs g@ragimately $6.4 million that include investmeninking, legal and accounting fees, anc
other external costs directly related to the adtiois These costs were expensed as incurred asfpaunr operating expenses.

Goodwill of $135.3 million represents the excesshef purchase price over the fair value of the dgihgy net tangible and identifiable
intangible assets, and represents the expectedgsgs®f the transaction and the knowledge andréqpee of the workforce in place. None of
the goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. Inmection with the acquisition, we allocated appraadety $77.3 million of the goodwill from
the Cadent acquisition to our Scanner and CAD/CAdWiBes ("SCCS") reporting unit and approximate®@$ million to our Clear Aligner
reporting unit based on the expected relative gjjesmgenerated by the acquisition. During the thirdrter of 2012, we determined that
goodwill for our SCCS reporting unit should be ¢estor impairment between annual impairment tdstsesan event occurred or circumstar
changed that would more likely than not reducefélirevalue of our SCCS reporting unit below itsrgarg amount. We recorded a total
impairment charge of $36.6 million for the SCCS2612 after finalizing step two of our analysiseseINote 5 for discussion of our goodwill
impairment.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012 , Cadentilootetd net revenues of approximately $43.5 milbonl gross profit of approximate
$10.4 million respectively. During the period of 2011 through December 2011, Cadent contributédevenues of approximately $28.0
million and gross profit of approximately $6.5 riuh . Sales, marketing, development and adminigg&atctivities for our Clear Aligner and
SCCS reporting units were integrated during the-poguisition period, therefore the operating rissbelow gross profit are not available.

The following table presents the results of Aligmdaadent for year ended December 31, 2011 and 2d1#n unaudited pro forma
basis, as though the companies had been combir&dtas beginning of January 1, 2010. The pronfnfinancial information is presented for
informational purposes only and is not indicati¥éh® results of operations that would have bedmeaed if the acquisition had taken place at
the beginning of January 1, 2011 and 2010 or aflt@¢hat may occur in the future (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2011 2010
Net revenues $ 492,46¢ $ 425,02
Net income $ 62,11¢ $ 69,95:

Note 5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The change in the carrying value of goodwill foe trear ended December 31, 2012 by our reportablaesats, which are also our
reporting units, are as follows (in thousands):

Scanners and

CAD/CAM
Clear Aligner Services Total
Balance as of December 31, 2010 $ 47t $ — 3 47¢
Goodwill from the Cadent acquisition 57,96 76,93¢ 134,90!
Balance as of December 31, 2011 58,44" 76,93¢ 135,38
Adjustment to goodwill (1) 98 34¢€ 444
Impairment of goodwill — (36,599 (36,59
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 58,54 $ 40,69 $ 99,23¢

(1) Pursuant to the accounting guidance for bssimembinations, we recorded goodwill adjustmemtshie effect on goodwill of changes
to net assets acquired related our acquisitionaofe@t during the measurement period (up to onefyaarApril 29, 2011, the date of
our acquisition of Cadent). Goodwill adjustmentgeveot significant to our previously reported opiegresults or financial position.

Impairment of Goodwill

Interim Testing

We test our goodwill balances for impairment antyuath November 30th or more frequently if indicat@re present or circumstances
change that suggest an impairment may exist. Duhiedghird quarter of 2012, we determined thatgbedwill for our SCCS reporting unit
should be tested for impairment between annual immeant tests since an event occurred or circumstnbanged that would more likely than
not reduce the fair value of our SCCS reportind balow its carrying amount. These indicators ideld the termination of an exclusive
distribution arrangement with Straumann for iTertva-oral scanners in Europe, as well as the textioin of their non-exclusive distribution
arrangement for iTero intraral scanners in North America, together with madanditions and business trends within the SC@8rtang unit.
While we continue to expect revenue growth in oGCS business, our expectations for future growthgofitability rates projected for the
SCCS reporting unit are lower than our previousregtes primarily driven by overall lower than exfggtfinancial results.

72




Table of Contents

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

As a result, we performed step one analysis folISELES reporting unit, which consists of a comparigbthe fair value of the SCCS
reporting unit against its carrying amount, inchglthe goodwill allocated to it. In deriving therfaalue of the SCCS reporting unit, we utili:
a combination of both the income and market apgroabich are classified as level 3 within the fatue hierarchy. The income approach
provides an estimate of fair value based on disiabiexpected future cash flows. The market apprpaavides an estimate of fair value using
various prices or market multiples applied to tlgarting unit's operating results and then applireappropriate control premium in order to
reconcile to our market capitalization. As a restilbur step one analysis, we concluded that tesédue of the SCCS reporting unit was less
than its carrying value, therefore, we proceedguetform step two of the goodwill impairment an&ys

Step two of the goodwill impairment analysis measuhe impairment charge by allocating the repgrtinit's fair value to all of the
assets and liabilities of the reporting unit inygpdthetical analysis that calculates the impligdvalue of goodwill in the same manner as if the
reporting unit was being acquired in a businesshioation. This allocation process was performeq éol the purposes of measuring the
goodwill impairment, and not to adjust the carryiregues of the recognized tangible assets anditiabi Any excess of the carrying value of
the reporting unit's goodwill over the implied faalue of the reporting unit's goodwill is recordeslan impairment loss. Based on our anal
the implied fair value of goodwill was substantydtbwer than the carrying value of the goodwill fbe SCCS reporting unit. We recorded a
preliminary goodwill impairment charge during tiérd quarter of 2012 of $24.7 million and an aduigl $11.9 million during the fourth
quarter of 2012, representing a change in estioqada finalizing our 2013 annual budget processaftotal impairment charge of $36.6
million . None of the goodwill impairment charge ssédeductible for tax purposes.

Annual Impairment Test

In addition to our interim goodwill testing for 08ICCS reporting unit, we also performed our angoaldwill impairment test for both
our reporting units, Clear Aligner and SCCS, on d&laber 30th, in accordance with our accounting gpolit step one, we compare the carn
value of our reporting units to the estimated Yailue as determined by both the income and maggmbaches. For our Clear Aligner reporting
unit, we determined that the estimated fair valgaicantly exceeded its carrying value and therefwas not at risk for impairment.

For our SCCS reporting unit, we concluded thatcdmying value of this reporting unit exceedecegimated fair value, therefore, we
proceeded to step two of the goodwill impairmeralgsis. As a result, we performed step two of thedyvill impairment analysis to quantify
the amount of impairment, if any, based on ourysialas of November 30, 2012. In this step, thieneséd fair value of the entire SCCS
reporting unit was allocated to all of the assets la@bilities in a hypothetical analysis that eca&ted the implied fair value of goodwill in the
same manner as if the reporting unit was beingiesdjin a business combination. The allocation essavas performed only for purposes of
measuring the goodwill impairment, and not to adje carrying values of recognized tangible assetmbilities. Accordingly, we did not
record any impairment charge under our step twdysisaas the implied fair value of the allocateddwill exceeded the carrying value as of
November 30, 2012 by approximatcl0% . A change in any one of the key assumptiomeasribed below would result in an additional
impairment:

e A 1l.9percentage point decrease to the discount ratetasbatermine the fair value of our Customer relahip intangible ass

» A 12 percentage point increase in the costsippart new customers which is factored in thevaiue of our Customer relationship
intangible asset.

» A one percentage point decrease in the terngireabth rate assumption in the discounted cash flamdel used in the income
approach.

In conjunction with our goodwill impairment testevtested for recoverability of the SCCS asset gindpiding the carrying value of the
intangible assets and concluded the asset grouygling the intangible assets was not impaired &sragéned by the undiscounted cash flow
the asset group under the long-lived asset impaitigaidance. As such, no writedown of the intarg#dsets were recorded as of November
30th or during 2012.
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Although no impairment existed for the intangibssets, because the carrying value of intangibletegscluded in step one of the
goodwill impairment test are significantly highéah the hypothetical fair value of the reportingt'anntangible assets used in step two of the
goodwill impairment test, the SCCS reporting uniit eontinue to fail step one of the goodwill impaient test. We have determined that, for
the foreseeable reporting periods, the SCCS reyputiit will continue to fail step one of the godtiwnpairment test but may pass step two.

In fiscal years 2011 and 2010 we performed the ahgoodwill impairment testing during the fourthagter for our reporting unit(s) and
found no impairment as the fair value of our rejpgrunit(s) was significantly in excess of the garg value.

Acquired Intangible Assets

In conjunction with our goodwill impairment analysive tested our long-lived assets, including twuaed intangible assets, related to
the SCCS reporting unit during the third quarte2®12 and again as part of our annual impairmestt Based on the undiscounted cash flows
of each test, we determined that these assetsneermpaired. Information regarding our intangibksets either as a direct result from the
Cadent acquisition or individually acquired arengeamortized as follows (in thousands):

Gross Carrying Net Carrying

Amount as of Accumulated Value as of
December 31, 2012 Amortization December 31, 2012
Trademarks $ 7,10 $ (895) $ 6,20¢
Existing technology 12,60( (1,642 10,95¢
Customer relationships 33,50( (5,0072) 28,49¢
Other 12t 9 11€
$ 53,32t $ (7,549 $ 45,77

Gross Carrying Net Carrying

Amount as of Accumulated Value as of
December 31, 2011 Amortization December 31, 2011
Trademarks $ 7,10C $ (404 $ 6,69¢
Existing technology 12,60( (735) 11,86¢
Customer relationships 33,50( (2,039 31,46
$ 53,200 $ (3,179 $ 50,02:

Amortization of the acquired existing technologyésorded in cost of revenue, while the amortizatibacquired trademarks and
customer relationships are included in operatingeeses. The following table summarizes the anaditia expense of acquired intangible

assets for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

Year Ended

December 31, 2011

Amortization of acquired intangible assets

In cost of revenue $ 907 $ 73¢
In operating expense 3,464 2,44:
Total $ 4,371 % 3,17¢

The total estimated annual future amortization espdor these acquired intangible assets as ofrbleee31, 2012 is as follows (in

thousands):
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Fiscal Year

2013 $ 4,53
2014 4,49
2015 4,47(C
2016 4,47(
2017 4,47(C
Thereafter 23,33¢
Total $ 45,77

There were no impairments recorded in 2011.

Note 6. Litigation Settlements
Ormco

On August 16, 2009, we entered into three agreesneitih Ormco Corporation (“Ormco”), an affiliate Banaher Corporation
(“Danaher”): a Settlement Agreement, a Stock Pwselfsgreement, and a Joint Development, MarketingSales agreement (“Collaboration
Agreement”). The Settlement Agreement endedeaaiting litigations between the parties, and weedjte (1) make a cash payment of $13.2
million upon the execution of the agreement andq®)e a total of 7.6 million non-assessable shareemmon stock pursuant to the Stock
Purchase Agreement. The settlement value wasaddid between past infringement and future uskeopatent based on total case shipments
during the period of infringement. We attributeg®% million to past infringement claims, basedcase shipments from September 9, 2003
through August 16, 2009. This was recorded agalitbn settlement costs and included in our opegakpenses. Additional royalty costs
based on case shipments between August 17, 2088gthdanuary 19, 2010 totaling $7.0 million wemorded as prepaid royalties as of the
settlement date. We amortized $6.2 million of phepaid royalties to cost of sales for the yeardrndecember 31, 2009 and the remaining
$0.8 million was amortized during first quarter28f10. There was no litigation settlement during20r 2011.

OrthoClear Insurance Settlement

In June 2010, we received an $8.7 million insurasetdement under our general liability umbrellattivas not previously reimbursed by
our insurer related to the OrthoClear litigatiofhis insurance settlement was included in our 28d€rating expenses. There wasmsuranc
settlement during 2012 or 2011.

Leiszler

On May 10, 2010, Christopher J. Leiszler filed anptaint against us in the United States Districu@éor the Northern District of
California. The complaint alleged that we impletesl unfair and fraudulent requirements for thesgription of Invisalign through the
Invisalign Proficiency Requirements for minimum easibmission and continuing education credits requénts. In January 2010
Dr. Leiszler’s Invisalign provider status was susged for failing to meet the Proficiency Requiremse®r. Leiszler sued on behalf of himself
and all others similarly situated. The complaiotight a refund of the price paid to us for Invggatraining. On October 19, 2010, we entt
into a memorandum of understanding to resolvelitigstion, and on November 30, 2010, we executéamal Stipulation of Settlement. On
December 23, 2010, the Court granted preliminapraal of the proposed settlement and on April@, 2 granted final approval of the
settlement. The settlement took effect on May2t8,1. Under the terms of the settlement, clagaimees who did not elect to receive the ¢
remedy prior to the Court-ordered deadline willrbmstated to prescribe Invisalign treatment aftereffective date under certain
circumstances. In January 2011, we depositecbappately $8.0 millionnto an escrow account to pay eligible class memio elected tt
cash remedy, as well as legal fees and other cdsts.recorded a total litigation settlement chasfy§4.5 million during the third and fourth
quarter of 2010 for this settlement. In earlyg@011, payments were made from the escrow actowtdss members who elected the cash
remedy and the remaining balance of the escrovbéas refunded to Align, except for a nominal amaunich has been retained for
administrative purposes. As of December 31, 2042 have no further liability related to this matte

Note 7. Legal Proceedings
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Securities Class Action Lawsuit

On November 28, 2012, plaintiff City of Dearbornigfeis Act 345 Police & Fire Retirement System filethwsuit against Align,
Thomas M. Prescott (“Mr. Prescott”), Align's Presitiand Chief Executive Officer, and Kenneth B.larMr. Arola”), Align's Vice
President, Finance and Chief Financial Officethim United States District Court for the Northeristbct of California on behalf of a purport
class of purchasers of our common stock betweeit 2pr2012 and October 17, 2012 ( the "SecuritieBon™). The complaint alleges that
Align, Mr. Prescott and Mr. Arola violated Sectit@(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 anteR0Ob-5 promulgated thereunder, and
that Mr. Prescott and Mr. Arola violated Sectior{&0of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Speadif/, the complaint alleges that during
the purported class period our reported incomeeandings were materially overstated because dfiadao timely write down goodwill
related to the April 29, 2011 acquisition of Caddotdings, Inc., and that defendants made allegidiée statements concerning our forecasts
The complaint seeks monetary damages in an uriggeamount, costs and attorney's fees. The hearirthe motion for appointment of lead
plaintiff is currently scheduled for May 30th, 203dign intends to vigorously defend itself agaittstse allegations. Align is currently unable
to predict the outcome of this complaint and themeitannot determine the likelihood of loss noineste a range of possible loss.

Shareholder Derivative Lawsuit

On February 1, 2013, plaintiff Gary Udis filed aasbholder derivative lawsuit against several oA officers and directors in the
Superior Court of California, County of Santa Clarhe allegations in the complaint are similaritose presented in the Securities Action, but
the complaint asserts various state law causestiohaincluding claims of breach of fiduciary dutynjust enrichment, and insider trading,
among others. The complaint seeks unspecified desnaig behalf of Align, which is named solely as mahdefendant against whom no
recovery is sought. The complaint also seeks aeratilecting Align to reform and improve its corpte governance and internal procedures,
and seeks restitution in an unspecified amountscasd attorney's fees. Align intends to vigorpulgfend itself against these allegations.
Align is currently unable to predict the outcomelté complaint and therefore cannot determindikedihood of loss nor estimate a range of
possible losses.

In addition, in the course of Align's operationdigA is involved in a variety of claims, suits, #stigations, and proceedings, includ
actions with respect to intellectual property clajipatent infringement claims, government invesitga, labor and employment claims, bre
of contract claims, tax, and other matters. Regasdbf the outcome, these proceedings can hawdvansa impact on us because of defense
costs, diversion of management resources, and fattiars. Although the results of complex legalge@dings are difficult to predict and
Align's view of these matters may change in tharigs litigation and events related thereto unfaligin currently does not believe that these
matters, individually or in the aggregate, will maally affect Align's financial position, result$ operations or cash flows.

Note 8. Credit Facilities

On December 14, 2010, we renegotiated and amendezkisting credit facility with Comerica Bank. Uerdthis revolving line of credit,
we had $30.0 million of available borrowings uiitSl expiration on December 31, 2012 . The inter@® on borrowings ranged from Libor
plus 1.5% to 2.0% depending upon the amount of easimaintained at Comerica Bank. This creditlifigaiequired a quick ratio covenant
and also required us to maintain a minimum unrmsili cash balance of $10.0 million . Additionaltythe event our unrestricted cash
deposited was less than $55.0 million , the untizeitity fee would increase from 0.050% per quatte0.125% per quarter. As of
December 31, 2012, this credit facility expiredd ave had no outstanding borrowings under this tffadility and are in compliance with the
financial covenants.

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating leases
We rent our facilities and certain equipment anaobiles under non-cancelable operating leas@geraents. Facility leases expire at
various dates through 2017 and thereafter and gedferr pre-negotiated fixed rental rates duringtérens of the lease.

We have a facility in San Jose, Costa Rica usethfodigital planning of our clear aligner treatrtseand interpretation for our iTero
scanners. The facility comprises approximately 83,8quare feet of manufacturing and office spabe.monthly rent in 2012 for the Costa
Rica facility was approximately $87,000 . We need the lease in March 2008 for an additional fiear term, which commenced in October
2008 and expires in September 2013 .

76




Table of Contents

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

We also have a facility in Juarez, Mexico used smuofacture clear aligners and components of ota-imtal scanners. This facility
comprises approximately 68,000 square feet of nantufing and office space with a monthly rent i12@f approximately $32,000 . We
assumed the lease from International ManufactuBiolgtions in December 2008 and it will expire iyJ2013 .

For our Scanner and CAD/CAM Service, we lease 4y ffuare feet of manufacturing and office spaderiiyehuda, Israel, where we
produce our handheld intral scanner wand and have operations and gematadministrative functions. The monthly rent tlois facility is
approximately $90,000 and will expire in Octobel20

Our European headquarters are located in AmsterttentNetherlands. In 2011, the original lease agesg was amended to expand our
Amsterdam facility to approximately 26,000 squazetfof office space. This lease will expire in M2317 and the monthly rent in 2012 for the
Amsterdam facility was approximately $45,000 .

Our U.S. headquarters are located in San Josdofddi. The facility comprises of approximately 1230 square feet used for research
and development and administration. The lease agmeecommenced in June 2010 and expires in Audlist 2The monthly rent in 2012 for
our corporate headquarters was approximately $08Q,0

We recognize rent expense on a straight-line lms&@sthe lease period, and accrued for any rergresgincurred but not paid. Total rent
expense was $6.9 million , $6.1 million and $4.Tiani , for the years ended December 31, 2012, 201d12010, respectively.

Minimum future lease payments for non-cancelaldséds as of December 31, 2012 , are as followsdunseinds):

Fiscal Year Operating leases

2013 7,28¢
2014 6,381
2015 5,031
2016 4,75¢
2017 2,24,
Thereafter —
Total minimum lease payments $ 25,71¢

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2012, we had no off-balancetsdreangements that have, or are reasonably likehave, a current or future material
effect on our consolidated financial condition,ules of operations, liquidity, capital expenditugscapital resources.

Indemnification Provisions

In the normal course of business to facilitate $eamions in our services and products, we indenugfyain parties: customers, vendors,
lessors, and other parties with respect to centaitiers, including, but not limited to, serviceb®provided by us and intellectual property
infringement claims made by third parties. In aiddit we have entered into indemnification agrees&rith our directors and certain of our
officers that will require us, among other thingsindemnify them against certain liabilities tmaay arise by reason of their status or service ¢
directors or officers. Several of these agreemi@nisthe time within which an indemnification ctaican be made and the amount of the clain

It is not possible to make a reasonable estimatieeomaximum potential amount under these inderatifin agreements due to the
unique facts and circumstances involved in eactiqudarr agreement. Additionally, we have a limitadtory of prior indemnification claims
and the payments we have made under such agreehaaetsot had a material adverse effect on outtsestioperations, cash flows, or
financial position. However, to the extent thatidahdemnification claims arise in the future, frteggpayments by us could be significant and
could have a material adverse effect on our restikigperations or cash flows in a particular peridd of December 31, 2012, we did not have
any material indemnification claims that were pitaleaor reasonably possible.
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Note 10. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock Rights Agreement

The Preferred Stock Rights Agreement (the “Righgse&ment”) is intended to protect stockholders fuofair or coercive takeover
practices. In accordance with the Rights AgreentbetBoard of Directors declared a dividend disttion of one preferred stock purchase
right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of dommon stock to stockholders of record on Nover22e2005 . Each Right entitles
stockholders to buy one one-thousandth of a sHarardSeries A Participating Preferred Stock, palue $0.000per share, at an exercise pl
of $37.00, subject to adjustment. Rights willd@me exercisable upon the occurrence of certaintsyereluding a person or group acquiring
or the announcing the intention to acquire benafiswnership of 15% or more of the then outstandimgmon stock without the approval of
the Board of Directors. Each holder of a Right thvéve the right to receive, upon exercise, shafemmmon stock having a value equal to
two times the purchase price. The Rights will exmn November 22, 2015 or upon the exercise oRifhts, whichever occurs earlier.

Common Stock

The holders of common stock are entitled to recdivielends whenever funds are legally available whdn and if declared by the Bo:
of Directors. We have never declared or paid @inis on our common stock.

Stock-based Compensation Plans

Our 2005 Incentive Plan, as amended, provideshfogtanting of incentive stock options, non-staugiock options, restricted stock
units, stock appreciation rights, performance uaitd performance shares to employees, non-emptbgastors, and consultants. Shares
granted as an award of restricted stock, restristeck unit, performance share or performanceamitcounted against the authorized share
reserve as one and one-half(2) shares for every one (1) share subject towsrd, and any shares cancelled will be returnedeasame
ratio. An aggregate of 5,000,06Bares that would have been returned to our exgid@d Sock Incentive Plan as a result of optiomeeizd o
shares repurchased, can be added to the sharkbie/ander the 2005 Incentive Plan. As of Decen3de2012 , we have a total ©8,283,37!
shares authorized and reserved, of which 4,103&&s are available for issuance. This includ&g72616 shares that have been transferred
from the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. We issue neaveshfrom our pool of authorized but unissued shereatisfy the exercise and vesting
obligations of our stock-based compensation plans.

Stock-based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense is based ontitmates! fair value of awards, net of estimatedditures and recognized over the
requisite service period on a straight line badistimated forfeitures are based on historicakerpce at the time of grant and may be revise
if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual fionfes differ from those estimates. The stockebasompensation expense related to all of oul
stock-based awards and employee stock purchastsefgears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 283 dollows (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Cost of revenues $ 1,84 $ 1,81¢ $ 1,62¢
Sales and marketing 5,581 5,49¢ 4,43(
General and administrative 10,36: 9,09¢ 7,931
Research and development 3,69¢ 2,75¢ 2,08
Total stock-based compensation $ 21,48: $ 19,16 $ 16,07:

Stock Options

Options are granted for terms not to exceed seearsyand generally vest over four years with 25%ting one year from the date of
grant and 1/48th each month thereafter. Activitythe year ended December 31, 2012, under thk sefiiion plans are set forth below
(in thousands, except years and per share amounts):
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Stock Options
Number of Weighted Weighted Average
Shares Average Remaining Aggregate
Underlying Exercise Contractual Term Intrinsic
Stock Options Price per Share (inyears) Value
Outstanding as of December 31, 2011 6,19( 14.2:
Granted — —
Exercised (2,849 13.0:
Cancelled or expired (70 17.1¢
Outstanding as of December 31, 2012 3,27¢ $ 15.21 429 $ 41,08¢
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2012 3,25 % 15.1¢ 428 $ 40,87¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2012 2,73 % 14.6: 420 $ 35,90:

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théetléfnce between our closing stock price
on the last trading day in 2012 and the exercisg pmultiplied by the number of in-the-money opspthat would have been received by the
option holders had all option holders exercisedr thgtions on December 31, 2012 . This amount flvittuate based on the fair market value
of our stock. The weighted average grant datevidue of options granted in 2011 and 2010 wa6 $4#llion and $13.6 million , respectively.
The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdider the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 @bd &as $ 50.9 million , $23.7 millicemc
$9.2 million , respectively. The total fair valaéthe options vested during the years ended DeeeBih 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $5.0
million , $9.2 million and $7.0 million , respectly. There were no stock options granted in 2012.

The fair value of stock options granted was estéuhatt the grant date using the Black-Scholes optitning model with the following
weighted average assumptions:

2012 2011 2010
Stock options (1):
Expected term (in years) — 4.4 4.4
Expected volatility —% 60.€% 63.2%
Risk-free interest rate —% 1.7% 1.€%
Expected dividends — — —
Weighted average fair value at grant date $ — 1087 % 9.0¢

(1) There were no stock options granted in 2012.

The expected term of stock options represents #ighted-average period the stock options are eggdotremain outstanding. We usec
a mid-point model to determine the expected terstadk options based on our historical exercisef-pesting cancellation experience, and
remaining contractual term of our outstanding amio

We use our own historical volatility.

The risk-free interest rate is based on the impliett on a U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issue withnaaining term equal to the expected
term of the option.

We have not paid any cash dividends since inceptimhdo not anticipate paying cash dividends irfaheseeable future, therefore we
used an expected dividend of zero.

As of December 31, 2012 , there was $4.8 milliototdl unamortized compensation costs relatedatkstptions and these costs are
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedpof 1.5 years. For the year ended Decembge?®12 , the total recognized tax effect
from exercised options was $1.7 million .

Restricted Stock Units

The fair value of nonvested restricted stock ufiRSUs") is based on our closing stock price ondh&e of grant. A summary for the
year ended December 31, 2012, is as follows (inghnds, except years and per share amot
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Weighted
Average Grant Remaining Aggregate

Shares Date Fair Vesting Period Intrinsic

Underlying RSUs Value Price per Share (in years) Value
Nonvested as of December 31, 2011 1,20¢ 18.71
Granted 897 27.71
Vested and released (443) 17.5%
Forfeited (162) 23.4¢

Nonvested as of December 31, 2012 1,50C $ 23.9¢ 134 $ 41,63:

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (caltedaby multiplying our closing stock
price on the last trading day of 2012 by the nundferonvested RSUs) that would have been receiyatidunit holders had all RSUs been
vested and released on December 31, 2012 . Thuaranwill fluctuate based on the fair market vatdi@ur stock. During 2012, of the
443,312 shares vested and released, approxim&dlg Bvested shares were withheld for executive Rfstlimum statutory tax obligations,
resulting in a net issuance of 375,145 shares. patanents to tax authorities were $2.1 millioreDi2, reflected as a financing activity in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The total intrinsic value of RSUs vested and reddaduring 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $12.5 millio8.9 $nillion and $5.8 million,
respectively. The total fair value RSUs s vestednduthe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, @hd ®as $7.8 million , $5.8 million , and
$4.2 million , respectively. As of December 3112Q there was $25.2 million of total unamortizednpensation costs related to RSUs, and
these costs are expected to be recognized oveigatee average period of 2.5 years.

On February 18, 2011, we granted market-performaased restricted stock units (“MSU”) to our namnegdcutive officers. Each MSU
represents the right to one share of Align’s commstock and will be issued through our amended 206&ntive Plan. The actual number of
MSUs which will be eligible to vest will be based the performance of Align’s stock price relatieettie performance of the NASDAQ
Composite Index over the vesting period, genetaltyto three years , up to 150% of the MSUs ifitigkanted.

The following table summarizes the MSU performaasef December 31, 2012 :

Weighted Average

Number of Shares Remaining Aggregate
Underlying MSUs Vesting Period Intrinsic Value
(in thousands) (inyears) (in thousands)
Nonvested as of December 31, 2011 12¢
Granted 19¢
Vested and released (18
Forfeited (42
Nonvested as of December 31, 2012 26€ 154 $ 7,36¢

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total ptex intrinsic value (calculated by multiplying otiosing stock pric
on the last trading day of 2012 by the number af-mested MSUs) that would have been received by iteholders had all MSUs been ves
and released on December 31, 2012 . This amolirftueiuate based on the fair market value of stack. During 2012, of the 17,951 shares
vested and released, approximately 8,381 vestedshsere withheld for executive MSU tax paymergsuiting in a net issuance of 9,570
shares.

The total intrinsic value of MSUs vested and re¢ebguring 2012 was $0.5 million . The total faituaMSUs vested during the years
ended December 31, 2012 was $0.4 million . ABedember 31, 2012 , we expect to recognize $3&mibf total unamortized
compensation cost, net of estimated forfeiturdated to MSU over a weighted average period ofygdrs.

The fair value of the MSUs is estimated at the gdate using a Monte Carlo simulation that inclufdesors for market conditions. The
following weighted-average assumptions used irMbate Carlo simulation were as follows:
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Year Ended
December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Expected term (in years) 3.C 3.C N/A
Expected volatility 54.(% 58.2% N/A
Risk-free interest rate 0.4% 1.3% N/A
Expected dividends — — N/A
Weighted average fair value per share at grant date $ 294t $ 22.1: N/A

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “200&Hase Plan”) consists of consecutive overlappirenty-four month offering
periods with four six-month purchase periods inheaitering period. Employees purchase shares %t &5the fair market value of the
common stock at either the beginning of the offgperiod or the end of the purchase period, whiehevlower. The 2001 Purchase Plan
expired on January 31, 2011.

In May 2010, our shareholders approved the 2010I&map Stock Purchase Plan (the “2010 Purchase Rianéplace the 2001 Purchi
Plan. The terms and features of the 2010 PurdpPlaseare substantially the same as the 2001 Pwdéhans and will continue until terminated
by either the Board or its administrator. The maxin number of shares available for issuance um#e2®10 Purchase Plan is 2,400,000
shares. During the year ended December 31, 2PQ21, and 2010, we issued 336,382 , 482,542 , aBd B4 shares, respectively, at average
prices of $17.98 , $10.63 , and $7.21 , respegtivAls of December 31, 2012 , 1,899,845 sharesireavailable for future issuance.

The fair value of the option component of the PasghPlan shares was estimated at the grant datgthsi Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumyio

December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Employee Stock Purchase Plan:
Expected term (in years) 1.2 1.t 1.3
Expected volatility 49.7% 43.2% 55.8%
Risk-free interest rate 0.2% 0.4% 0.4%
Expected dividends — — —
Weighted average fair value at grant date $ 11.2C  $ 72¢ % 7.22

We recognized stock-based compensation expense®fdllion , $3.1 million and $1.8 million related our Employee Stock Purchase
Plans for the years ended December 31, 2012, 204 2@10, respectively. As of December 31, 2012relwas $0.8 million of total
unamortized compensation costs related to emplstgad purchases. These costs are expected tatgnieed over a weighted average pe
of 0.4 years.

Note 11. Common Stock Repurchase Program

On October 27, 2011, we announced that our BoaRirettors approved a stock repurchase progranupatto which we may
repurchase up to $150.0 million of common stockrcRases under the stock repurchase program mianatle from time to time in the open
market. This stock repurchase program is intendexdfset the impact of dilution from our equity cpemsation programs. During 2012, we
repurchased approximately 1.7 million shares of roam stock at an average price of $27.28 per shar@nfaggregate purchase price of
approximately $47.2 million including commissioriBhe common stock repurchases reduced additiomilipaapital by approximately $15.4
million and increased accumulated deficit by $3hiion . All repurchased shares have been retifedof December 31, 2012, there remains
$95.1 million under our existing stock repurchastnarization.

Note 12. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan
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In January 1999, we adopted a defined contributitinement plan under Section 401(k) of the InteRevenue Code for our U.S.
employees. This plan covers substantially all @r8ployees who meet minimum age and service regeinés and allows participants to defer
a portion of their annual compensation on a prebtsis. In 2009, our Board of Directors authorisedo match 50% of our employee’s salary
deferral contributions up to a 6% of the employesigible compensation effective 2010. We contiélsiapproximately $1.9 million , $1.8
million and $1.6 million to the 401(k) plan duri2®12, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Israeli Severance Funds

Under the Israeli severance fund law, we are requio make severance payments to dismissed emplaygieemployees leaving
employment in certain circumstances. The fundinggiculated based on the salary of the employdtptrad by the number of years of
employment as of the applicable balance sheet date.Israeli employees are entitled to one morghlary for each year of employment, or a
pro-rata portion thereof. We fund the liabilitydligh monthly deposits into severance funds, aad/#ttues of these contributions are recorde:
in other long-term current assets.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 the accrued sesefands liability was approximately $2.7 milliand $2.2 million , respectively.

Note 13. Income Taxes

Income before provision for income taxes consistitthe following (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Domestic $ 32,34. % 52,18: $ 57,14*
Foreign 51,95¢ 37,75 44 85¢
Total $ 84,29¢ $ 89,94 $ 102,00

The provision for income taxes consisted of théofeing (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Federal
Current $ — % 65 $ _
Deferred 22,38. 21,02¢ 23,19:¢
22,38: 21,09: 23,19:¢
State
Current 43¢ 224 38¢€
Deferred 1,48¢ 1,39¢ 2,91«
1,92¢ 1,61¢ 3,30(
Foreign
Current 1,17: 1,26: 1,197
Deferred 12¢€ (747) 60
1,29¢ 51€ 1,257
Provision for income taxes $ 25,60F $ 23,22 $ 27,75(

The differences between income taxes using thedédatutory income tax rate of 35% and our effectax rate were as follows:
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Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35.0( % 35.00 % 35.0( %
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 2.3¢€ 1.5¢ 2.91
Impact of differences in foreign tax rates (20.00 (14.99) (11.19)
Goodwill Impairment 15.1¢ — —
Stock-based compensation (1.15) 1.67 1.5¢
Non-deductible transaction fees — 1.2¢ —
Valuation allowance release — (0.19 —
Other items not individually material (2.02) 1.41 (1.19

30.3¢ % 25.82 % 27.2(%

U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxe®eaissed with the repatriation of earnings of foregubsidiaries were not provided for
on a cumulative total of $109.2 million of undibuited earnings for certain foreign subsidiariesfabe end of the year ended December 31,
2012. We intend to reinvest these earnings indefinin our foreign subsidiaries. If these earnimgse distributed to the United States in the
form of dividends or otherwise, or if the shareshaf relevant foreign subsidiaries were sold oentlise transferred, we would be subject to
additional U.S. income taxes subject to an adjustrfog foreign tax credit, and foreign withholditaxes. Determination of the amount of
unrecognized deferred income tax liability relatedhese earnings is not practicable.

In June 2009, the Costa Rica Ministry of Foreigadg, an agency of the Government of Costa Ricateplaa twelve year extension of
the tax incentives, which were previously grante@002. The incentive tax rates will expire in eas years beginning in 2017 . Under these
incentives, all of the income in Costa Rica duttimgse twelve year incentive periods is subjecettuced rates of Costa Rica income tax. In
order to receive the benefit of the incentivesmest hire specified numbers of employees and nmiaim@imum levels of fixed asset
investment in Costa Rica. If we do not fulfill tleesonditions for any reason, our incentive coupgséaand our income in Costa Rica would be
subject to taxation at higher rates, which couldeh@ negative impact on our operating results. Gbsta Rica corporate income tax rate that
would apply, absent the incentives, is 30% for 2@4a result of these incentives, income taxeeweduced by $21.8 million , $15.4 millign
and $12.7 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respebti The benefit of the tax holiday on net incopez share (diluted) was $0.26 , $0.19 ,
$0.16 in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011sigmficant components of our deferred tax asaetkliabilities were (in
thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss and capital loss carryforwards $ 37,18 % 36,66

Credit carryforwards 8,80¢ 8,07t
Reserves and accruals 19,70: 18,23¢
Translation gains 43 33
Stock-based compensation 9,90¢ 9,49(
75,64 72,49!

Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid expenses 34t 56(
Depreciation and amortization 9,90: 12,77¢
10,24¢ 13,33¢
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 65,39 59,15¢
Valuation allowance (27,05¢) (20,22¢)
Net deferred tax assets $ 38,33¢ 38,93t
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We assess the likelihood that we will be able tmver our deferred tax assets. We consider ailadola evidence, both positive and
negative, including historical levels of incomepegtations and risks associated with estimatestofd taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies in asseshmgéeed for a valuation allowance. |If it is narmlikely than not that we expect to recover
deferred tax assets, we will increase our provigdonncome taxes by recording a valuation allowaagainst the deferred tax assets that we
estimate will not ultimately be recoverable. Add&cember 31, 2012, we believed, except for thmstaoted in the subsequent paragraph, th:
it was more likely than not that the amount of defé tax assets recorded on the balance shedievi#talized.

The $27.1 million total valuation allowance prowidegainst our deferred tax assets at Decembel032, i2lates primarily to foreign net
operating loss carryforwards. The valuation alloesincreased by a net $6.8 million , due to a ##lBkon increase related to foreign net
operating loss carryforwards, offset by a decred$.7 million due to the statute of limitationaving lapsed with respect to certain capital
loss carryforward deferred tax assets.

At December 31, 2012 , we had net operating losyfcawards of approximately $78.7 million for fadé purposes and $62.1 millidar
California state tax purposes. If not utilized,dbearryforwards will begin to expire in 2026 fedéral purposes and 2013 for California
purposes. In addition, we had foreign net opegdtiss carryforwards of approximately $1.7 millioet of valuation allowances, which, if not
utilized will expire beginning in 2013.

Our net operating loss carryforwards associatel thig exercise of employee stock options totaled@fillion as of December 31,
2012. Our income taxes payable for federal purpbage been reduced by the tax benefits associathdhe exercise of employee stock
options during the fiscal year, and utilizationnet operating loss carryover applicable to stodioog. The benefits applicable to stock options
were credited directly to stockholders’ equity whiealized. We follow the tax law ordering methodlegermine when excess tax benefits hav
been realized.

We have research credit carryforwards of approxetga®5.0 million for federal purposes and $3.4 iwillfor California state tax
purposes. If not utilized, the federal credit gorwards will begin to expire in 2021. The Caliifiea state credit can be carried forward
indefinitely.

In the event of a change in ownership, as defimetbufederal and state tax laws, our net operédisgyand tax credit carryforwards
may be subject to annual limitations. The annumitéitions may result in the expiration of the nperating loss and tax credit carryforwards
before utilization.

The changes in the balance of gross unrecognizdoktaefits, which excludes interest and penalf@djscal years 2012, 2011, and
2010, is as follows (in thousands):

Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2009 $ 5,92¢
Tax positions related to current year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 2,74;
Tax positions related to prior year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 2,29(
Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2010 10,96:
Tax positions related to current year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 4,13:
Tax positions related to prior year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 37¢
Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2011 15,47:
Tax positions related to current year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 5,087
Tax positions related to prior year:
Additions for uncertain tax positions 8C
Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2012 $ 20,63¢
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We account for uncertain tax issues pursuant tocgiative guidance based on a two-step approaoéctegnize and measure uncertain
tax positions taken or expected to be taken ixagturn. We first determine whether it is moreelikthan not that a tax position will be
sustained upon audit. If a tax position meets theertikely-than-not recognition threshold it is theeasured to determine the amount of
benefit to recognize in the financial statements Tax position is measured as the largest amdbdrefit that is more than 50% likely to be
realized upon ultimate settlement. We adjust resefor our uncertain tax positions due to chanfgets and circumstances, such as the clc
of a tax audit, or refinement of estimates dueew mformation. To the extent the final outcometafse matters is different than the amounts
recorded, such differences will impact our tax jgmn in our Consolidated Statements of Operatinribe period in which such determination
is made.

During fiscal year 2012, the amount of gross ungeeed tax benefits increased by $5.2 million .e Total amount of unrecognized tax
benefits was $20.6 million as of December 31, 204lPof which would impact our effective tax rateecognized. We have elected to
recognize interest and penalties related to unrg@zed tax benefits as a component of income tarms@. We do not expect any significant
changes to the amount of unrecognized tax beneifitén the next twelve months.

We are subject to taxation in the U.S. and vargiates and foreign jurisdictions. All of our tasays will be open to examination by the
U.S. federal and most state tax authorities dumitanet operating loss and overall credit carrynavposition. With few exceptions, we are nc
longer subject to examination by foreign tax auities for years before 2006.

Note 14. Net Income per Share

Basic net income per share is computed using thghtesl average number of shares of common stockamding during the
period. Diluted net income per share is computéadguhe weighted average number of shares of conmstamk, adjusted for the dilutive effect
of potential common stock. Potential common stacknputed using the treasury stock method, incloggisns, RSUs, MSUs and our

employee stock purchase plan.

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted net income per share attributebtsmmmon stock (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Numerator:
Net income $ 58,69: $ 66,71¢ $ 74,25
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 80,52¢ 77,98¢ 75,82¢
Dilutive effect of potential common stock 2,511 2,30¢ 2,25¢
Total shares, diluted 83,04( 80,29 78,08(
Net income per share, basic $ 0.7 $ 08¢ $ 0.9¢
Net income per share, diluted $ 071 % 0.8: $ 0.9t

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ari26&k options, RSUs, MSUs and our employee spocghase plan totaling 0.1
million , 1.6 million and 3.0 million , respectiwelwere excluded from diluted net income per ste®ause of their anti-dilutive effect.

Note 15. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
The supplemental cash flow information consisttheffollowing (in thousands):
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Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Taxes paid $ 2,82t $ 1,95 $ 1,89/
Interest paid $ 27 % 51 % 19
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Fixed assets acquired with accounts payable ouaddiabilities $ 924C $ 1,611 $ 90¢€
Unclaimed merger consideration liability $ 1,57 $ 4,02¢ $ —

Note 16. Segments and Geographical Information

Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as componentseritarprise for which separate financial informat®available that is evaluated
regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker fOM”), or decision-making group, in deciding howathocate resources and in assessing
performance. Our CODM is our Chief Executive Offic&/e report segment information based on the mamagt approach. The managemen
approach designates the internal reporting used®®M for decision making and performance assessagtiie basis for determining our
reportable segments. The performance measures ofpartable segments include net revenues ana groféit.

We have grouped our operations into two reportabtgments which are also our reporting units: CAéigner segment and SCCS
segment.

. Our Clear Aligner segment consists of our Inggasystem which includes Invisalign Full, Expréste, Teen, Assist, Vivera
retainers, along with our training and ancillarggucts for treating malocclusion.

. Our SCCS segment consists of intra-oral scansystems and additional services available withiritra-oral scanners that
provide digital alternatives to the traditional tamdels. This segment includes our iTero scanneéGrthoCAD services.

These reportable operating segments are basedwouraCODM views and evaluates our operations dkaseallocation of resources
(in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

Revenue 2012 2011 2010
Clear Aligner
Invisalign Full $ 338,60( $ 302,39: % 264,75
Invisalign Express/Lite 51,48t¢ 42,50¢ 34,63:
Invisalign Teen 67,12 54,52¢ 52,83’
Invisalign Assist 28,70¢ 27,52 14,73¢
Invisalign non-case revenues 30,66: 24,757 20,17:
Scanners and CAD/CAM Services (1)
Scanners 20,05¢ 13,38 —
CAD/CAM Services 23,40: 14,64: —
Total $ 560,04: $ 479,74. % 387,12t
Gross profit
Clear Aligner $ 405,97C $ 354,70( $ 303,41
Scanners and CAD/CAM Services (1) 10,41¢ 6,58: —
Total $ 416,38t $ 361,28. $ 303,41

(1) Our Scanners and CAD/CAM Services reportable opgraegment was the result of our acquisition adéa on April 29, 201

Geographical Information
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Net revenues and long-lived assets are presented bg geographic area (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Net revenues (1):
United States $ 427,92¢ % 359,93t $ 290,84
the Netherlands 121,82t 109,83: 92,03
Other international 10,28¢ 9,97¢ 4,24
Total net revenues $ 560,04. $ 479,74. $ 387,12t

As of December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Long-lived assets:
United States $ 62,54: $ 4572( % 31,38:
Mexico 6,47 4,67: 262
the Netherlands 5,33t 1,72¢ 837
Other international 8,29/ 4,58¢ 1,65
Total long-lived assets $ 82,64t $ 56,707 $ 34,13}

(1) Revenues are attributed to countries based ondocat where revenue is recogniz

Note 17. Exit Activities

In October 2012, we completed the consolidatioawwfCAD/CAM services and intra-oral scanner-relaetivities for our SCCS
segment based in Carlstadt, New Jersey with ostiegimanufacturing and shared services organizaimorder to optimize efficiency,
consolidate customer-facing functions, and redysrating costs. All existing intra-oral scanneregsh and development and manufacturing
operations remain in Or Yehuda, Israel. The tréorsincluded the following activities:

» Consolidation of customer care for CAD/CAM sersg and intra-oral scanners into our existing shaeevices organization in San
Jose, Costa Rica;

» Transition of CAD/CAM services and intra-orabsoer distribution and repair to our Treat operetim San Jose, Costa Rica and our
new manufacturing facility in Juarez, Mexico; and

» Consolidation of accounting and finance functionswx corporate headquarters in San Jose, Cali

The consolidation of our New Jersey operationscivibiegan in the fourth quarter of 2011, resulted fatal reduction of 119 full time
headcount in Carlstadt, New Jersey. With the Nawsejeconsolidation completed, we expect to reaineualized net savings of approximately
$4.0 million per year.

Activity and liability balances related to this eactivity during 2012 and 2011 are as followstfinusands):

Severance and

Benefits
Beginning balance at December 31, 2010 $ —
Exit cost incurred during the period 1,08:
Cash payments (73
Balance at December 31, 2011 1,01C
Exit cost incurred during the period 76€
Cash payments (1,739
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 42
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During 2012, we incurred approximately $0.8 milliorexit costs of which approximately $0.5 milliarere recorded in our cost of
revenue and $0.3 million in operating expensesirigu2011, we incurred approximately $1.1 millioneixit costs of which approximately $0.8
million were recorded in our cost of revenue and@$0illion operating expenses.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand our Chief Financial
Officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness oftnsign and operation of our disclosure controtsaocedures (as defined in Rules 13de)
and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based thmirevaluation, our Chief Executive Officer ana @hief Financial Officer have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procesiare effective as of December 31, 2012 to pranddsonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reportsweafile or submit under the Exchange Act is accatad and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officed @ur Chief Financial Officer, as appropriateatiow timely decisions regarding requit
disclosure, and that such information is recorgedcessed, summarized and reported within the pen®ds specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Management's annual report on internal control ovéinancial reporting.
See “Report of Management on Internal Control dvieancial Reporting” of this Annual Report on Fot®+K.

Changes in internal control over financial reportin

Except as noted below, there have been no changes internal control over financial reporting ohgy the year ended December 31,
2012 that have materially affected or are reasgniikgly to materially affect, our internal controVver financial reporting.

*  During the year ended December 31, 2012, we tetegpbthe implementation of our control structuvercthe operations of Cadent
Holdings, Inc which was acquired in April 2011. Befo Note 4 of the Notes to our Consolidated FiierStatements for additional
information regarding this acquisition.

* Inthe fourth quarter of 2012, management conteédra reassessment of our internal control destgn@ur independent public
accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP (“Pyy@viewed certain controls regarding the adequditiie segregation of duties
for certain finance personnel, who had access tio treate and post journal entries in our accogrgiystems, as well as the
responsibility to review account reconciliationsahhgement reviewed the design of internal contreds journal entries and
determined that although journal entries were miynpeepared and approved by different individualsder the then existing control
structure, it would have been possible for cerimiance personnel to create and post unauthor@thl entries in the system,
thereby circumventing the manual journal entry appl process. Management concluded that the segpagd duties was
inadequate, and therefore, a material weaknestedxis our internal controls over financial repogtias of December 31, 2011.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, management nibddollowing changes to its internal controls ofieancial reporting to remedia
the material weakness as of December 31, 2012:

= Management has removed system access, wherdlpoési those finance personnel who previously thedability to create
and post journal entries and also had the respititystb review account reconciliations.

= Management changed the reviewers of reconcitiatfor the noted finance personnel and implemeatgdarterly control to
review their journal entries.

Management tested the newly implemented contralspancedures, found them to be effective and haneladed as of December 31,
2012 this material weakness has been remediated.

With regard to our financial statements for therysaded December 31, 2011 and the first three epsaof 2012, management performed
a review of all journal entries posted in fiscall2Gand 2012 by these specific finance individual$ eonfirmed that all posted journal entries
were authorized and appropriate. As a result ofreuiew, we have concluded that the noted matesmakness had no impact on our 2011 anc
2012 financial statements. Therefore, our constditiéinancial
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statements, fairly present in all material respedsfinancial condition, results of operations aadh flows for the periods presented.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI

Certain information required by Part Il is omitteBdm this Form 10-K because we intend to file &irdéve Proxy Statement for our
2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxyt&taent”) not later than 120 days after the endheffiscal year covered by this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, and certain information targuded therein is incorporated herein by refeeenc

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 401 of Regulati#iiK concerning our directors is incorporated bgrefice to the Proxy Statement
under the section captioned “Election of Directof$he information required by Item 401 of RegulatiB-K concerning our executive officers
is set forth intem 1—"Business” of this Annual Report on FormK.0-The information required by Item 405 of ReguatB-K is
incorporated by reference to the section entitleection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Comnpiie” contained in the Proxy
Statement. The information required by Item 40E)Mpf Regulation S-K is incorporated by referetwéhe Proxy Statement under the sectior
entitled “Corporate Governance—Board of Director€&mmittee Meetings—Audit Committee”.

Code of Ethics

We have a code of ethics that applies to all ofesaployees, including our principal executive dficprincipal financial officer and
principal accounting officer. This code of ethisposted on our Internet website. The Interndt@ss for our website isww.aligntech.com
and the code of ethics may be found on the “CotpdBvernance” section of our “Investor Relationgbpage.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirementeuriigm 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendmenbteyaiver from, a provision of
this code of ethics by posting such informatioroon website, at the address and location spedifiede, or as otherwise required by the
NASDAQ Global Market

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 402 of Regulat®K is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Stet® under the section captioned
“Executive Compensation”. The information requit®ditems 407(e)(4) and (e)(5) is incorporated dfgrence to the Proxy Statement under
the section captioned “Corporate Governance—CongtemsCommittee Interlocks” and “Compensation Cotteni Report”, respectively.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 403 of RegulatfnK is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Stet® under the section captioned
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownerslaanagement.”

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Dedwer 31, 2012 about our common stock that mayswedupon the exercise of
options and rights granted to employees, consugl@nmembers of our Board of Directors under alting equity compensation plans,
including the 1997 Equity Incentive Plan, the Enyele Stock Purchase Plan, the 2001 Stock Incentaredhd the 2005 Incentive Plan, each
as amended, and certain individual arrangements.

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for
to be issued upon exercise ~ Weighted average future issuance under
of outstanding options exercise price of equity compensation plans
and restricted stock outstanding (excluding securities
Plan Category units(a) options(b) reflected in column(a))
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérsld Q)
5,041,33(2) $ 15.21 4,101,65: (3)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechntglers — — —
Total 5,041,33. $ 15.21 4,101,65:
(1) This number reflects the number of securities tisbeed upon exercise of outstanding options astdicted stock units under the 1¢

Equity Incentive Plan, the 2001 Stock IncentivenPind the 2005 Incentive Plan. The 1,500,19@ice=d stock units included in tl
number have an exercise price of zero.
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(2) We are unable to ascertain with specificity the hanof securities to be issued upon exercise aftantling rights under the Emplo
Stock Purchase Plan or the weighted average eggrdise of outstanding rights under the EmployeelSPurchase Plan.

3) Please sedote 10 “Stockholders’ Equity” in the Notes to dhonsolidated Financial Statemeriits description of equity
compensation plans.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 404 and Item 40Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference ® ioxy Statement under the
sections captioned “Certain Relationships and Rdl&arty Transactions” and “Corporate Governanceedr Independence”, respectively.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 9(e) of Schedulé bf the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, dsiiporated by reference to the
Proxy Statement under the section captioned “Ratifin of Appointment of Independent Registeredliewtcountants.”
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statemer
1. Consolidated Financial Stateme

The following documents are filed as part of thisal Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomihéoyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&12011

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equitytlieryears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaed December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1B 13 18 14 18 15 1€
O 1o o N 1o 1o I~

2. The following financial statement schedulelsdf as part of this Annual Report on Form KO-
Schedule ll—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts anesBrves

All other schedules have been omitted as they atresguired, not applicable, or the required infation is otherwise included.

SCHEDULE II: VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Additions
(reductions) Reclass
Balance at to Costs Charged to from
Beginning and Write Other Other Balance at
of Period Expenses offs Accounts (1) Accounts End of Period
(in thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts and
returns:
Year ended December 31, 2010 $ 1,03 % 198§ (482) $ — 8 11y s 73E
Year ended December 31, 2011 $ 73t % 117 % (70) $ — 3 2 $ 78C
Year ended December 31, 2012 $ 78C $ 1,88¢ $ (169 $ — 8 (15 $ 2,48¢
Allowance for deferred tax assets:
Year ended December 31, 2010 $ 6,18. $ (103 ¢ — 3 — $ — % 6,07¢
Year ended December 31, 2011 $ 6,07¢ $ (680) $ — 14,82F % — 20,22/
Year ended December 31, 2012 $ 20,22¢  $ 8,507 $ (1,675 $ — 3 — 3 27,05¢
(1) For the year ended December 31, 2011, weasekthe valuation allowance in connection withu&egl deferred tax assets and non-

U.S. net operating losses, which resulted in aesponding increase to goodwill, related to the @adequisition.
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(b)

Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2
3.3

4.1
4.2

10.1t

10.2t

10.3t
10.4
10.5t

The following Exhibits are included in this Amal Report on Form 1K:

Description Form Date
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpamatf Form S4, as amende 12/28/2000
registrant. (File No. 333-49932)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrant. rmRBK 2/29/2012
Certificate of Designations of Rights, Prefexes and Form 8-K 10/27/2005
Privileges of Series A Participating Preferred tamgistrant.
Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate. rmE8-1, as amende 1/17/2001
(File No. 333-49932)
Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated Oct@bdretween Form 8-K 10/27/2005
the registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
Registrant’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. 81 12/28/2000
as amended (File
No. 333-49932)
Form of option agreement under Align’s 2@®4ck Incentive Form 10-Q 11/5/2004
Plan.
Registrant’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Form S-8 2/5/2001
Align’s 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan rmRa-K 5/25/2010
Form of Indemnification Agreement by andisstn registrant~orm S-1 as amended1/17/2001
and its Board of Directors and its executive office (File No. 333-49932)
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Number
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by reference
herein

3.1

3.2
3.1

4.1

4.1

10.13

10/13/2001

99.2
10.2
10.15

Filed

herewith




Exhibit
Number

10.6%

10.7t

10.8t

10.9t

10.10t

10.11¢t

10.12t

10.13t

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19tt

10.20t

10.21t
10.22%
10.23%
10.24

Description
Amended and restated 2005 Incentive Plaarfesnded May 19,
2011.

Form of restricted stock unit award agregmader registrant’s
2005 Incentive Plan (General Form; Officer Formrdotor Form).

Form of option award agreement under reggiss 2005 Incentive
Plan.

Form of restricted stock unit award agredgmader registrant’s
2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M. Prescott.

Form of restricted stock unit award agregrasmendment under
registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M.decdt.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreenaet dNovember
8, 2012 between Thomas M. Prescott and registrant.

Form of Amended and Restated Employmen¢érgent entered
into by and between registrant and each of exeeuwiificer (other
than CEO).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreenadat dNovember
8, 2012 between Timothy A. Mach and registrant

Lease Agreement dated February 26, 2003eketlPMG FIDES
(Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.A.A. and regrgtr

Omnibus Amendment to Lease and Service Aggaebetween
KPMG FIDES (Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.Al Afign
dated June 24, 2008.

Lease Agreement between Align and Carr Rréperties, L.L.C.
dated January 26, 2010

Settlement Agreement dated as if Augus2@69 between Align
Technology, Inc. and Ormco Corporation.

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of thedb§t of August by
and between Align Technology, Inc. and Danaher Gafon.

Joint Development, Marketing and Sales@grent entered in as Form 10-Q/A

of August 16, 2009 by and between Align Technoldgyg, and
Ormco Corporation

Summary of 2012 Incentive Awards for NarBgdcutive
Officers.

Form of Market Stock Unit Agreement (office
Form of Market Stock Unit Agreement (CEO)
Description of Executive Officer Incenti®kan

Agreement of Plan Merger between RegisaadtCadent
Holdings, Inc. amongst other dated March 29, 2011
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Form
Form 8-K

Form 10-Q

Form 10-Q
Form 10-K
Form 10-K
Form 10-Q

Form 10-Q

Form 10-Q
Form 10-Q

Form 8-K

Form 8-K

Form 10-Q/A

Form 10-Q

Form 8-K

Form 8-K
Form 8-K
Form 8-K
Form 8-K

Date

5/25/2010

11/5/2007

8/4/2005

3/12/2007

3/12/2007

5/8/2008

5/8/2008

11/9/2012

5/13/2003

6/26/2008

1/29/2010

2/24/2010

11/5/2009

2/24/2010

2/7/2013

2/23/2011

2/23/2011

2/23/2011
4/1/2011

Exhibit

Number

Incorporated
by reference Filed

herein herewith

10.1

10.1A,
10.1B,
10.1C
104
10.14C
10.14D
10.3

10.2

10.1
10.36

10.1

10.1
10.1
10.2

10.3

10.1

10.2
Item 5.02

10.1




Exhibit
Number

Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed

Number Description Form Date herein herewith
21.1 Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc. *

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Intigr# Registered
Public Accounting Firm.

31.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer guant to Exchange Act
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted purtu&@wection 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.

31.2 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer guant to Exchange Act
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted purtu&@wction 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and i€hFinancial Officer
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipat$o
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldgaDocument
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linklsa®ocument
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Datent
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation LagébDocument

*

T Management contract or compensatory plan ongement filed as an Exhibit to this form pursuanitéms 14(a) and 14(c) of
Form 10-K.

tt Portions of the exhibit have been omitted pamsto a request for confidential treatment. Thefidential portions have been filed
with the SEC.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyisthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized, on March 1, 2013 .

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

Thomas M. Prescott

President and Chief Executive Officer

Know All Men By These Presents, that each persooselsignature appears below constitutes and agpbiremas M. Prescott, his or
her attorney-in-fact, with the power of substitatiéor him or her in any and all capacities, tansémny amendments to this Report on FornkK10-
and to file the same, with exhibits thereto andeptiocuments in connection therewith, with the Siea and Exchange Commission, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that each of said at®ys-infact, or his or her substitute or substitutes, mayr cause to be done by virtue her

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and orlétes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT President and Chief Executive Officer March 1, 2013
Thomas M. Prescott (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ KENNETH B. AROLA Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, March 1, 2013
Kenneth B. Arola Finance (Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ DAvID E. COLLINS Director March 1, 2013
David E. Collins
/s/ JOSEPH L ACOB Director March 1, 2013

Joseph Lacob

/s/ C. RAYMOND L ARKIN Director March 1, 2013
C. Raymond Larkin

s/ _GEORGE J. MORROW Director March 1, 2013
George J. Morrow

/sl DAvID C. NAGEL Director March 1, 2013
David C. Nagel
/ s/ GREG J. SANTORA Director March 1, 2013

Greg J. Santora

/s/  WARREN S. THALER Director March 1, 2013
Warren S. Thaler
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Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2
3.3

4.1

4.2

10.1t

10.2%

10.3t
10.4
10.5%

Exhibit Index

Description Form Date
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpamatf Form S4, as amende 12/28/2000
registrant. (File No. 333-49932)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrant. rmRBK 2/29/2012
Certificate of Designations of Rights, Prefexes and Form 8-K 10/27/2005
Privileges of Series A Participating Preferred tamgistrant.
Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate. rm=8-1, as amende 1/17/2001
(File No. 333-49932)
Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated Oct@bdretween Form 8-K 10/27/2005
the registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
Registrant’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. 81 12/28/2000
as amended (File
No. 333-49932)
Form of option agreement under Align’s 2@®4ck Incentive Form 10-Q 11/5/2004
Plan.
Registrant’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Form S-8 2/5/2001
Align’s 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan rmRa-K 5/25/2010
Form of Indemnification Agreement by andasstn registrant~orm S-1 as amended1/17/2001
and its Board of Directors and its executive office (File No. 333-49932)
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by reference
herein

3.1

3.2
3.1

4.1

4.1

10.13

10/13/2001

99.2
10.2
10.15

Filed

herewith




Exhibit
Number

10.6%

10.7t

10.8t

10.9t

10.10t

10.11¢t

10.12t

10.13t

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19tt

Description
Amended and restated 2005 Incentive Plaarfesnded May 19,
2011.

Form of restricted stock unit award agregmader registrant’s
2005 Incentive Plan (General Form; Officer Formrdotor Form).

Form of option award agreement under reggiss 2005 Incentive
Plan.

Form of restricted stock unit award agredgmader registrant’s
2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M. Prescott.

Form of restricted stock unit award agregrasmendment under
registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M.decdt.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreenaet dNovember
8, 2012 between Thomas M. Prescott and registrant.

Form of Amended and Restated Employmen¢érgent entered
into by and between registrant and each of exeeuwiificer (other
than CEO).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreenadat dNovember
8, 2012 between Timothy A. Mach and registrant

Lease Agreement dated February 26, 2003eketlPMG FIDES
(Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.A.A. and regrgtr

Omnibus Amendment to Lease and Service Aggaebetween
KPMG FIDES (Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.Al Afign
dated June 24, 2008.

Lease Agreement between Align and Carr Rréperties, L.L.C.
dated January 26, 2010

Settlement Agreement dated as if Augus2@69 between Align
Technology, Inc. and Ormco Corporation.

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of thedb§t of August by
and between Align Technology, Inc. and Danaher Gafon.

Joint Development, Marketing and Sales@grent entered in as Form 10-Q/A

of August 16, 2009 by and between Align Technoldgyg, and
Ormco Corporation
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Form
Form 8-K

Form 10-Q

Form 10-Q
Form 10-K
Form 10-K
Form 10-Q

Form 10-Q

Form 10-Q
Form 10-Q

Form 8-K

Form 8-K

Form 10-Q/A

Form 10-Q

Date

5/25/2010

11/5/2007

8/4/2005

3/12/2007

3/12/2007

5/8/2008

5/8/2008

11/9/2012

5/13/2003

6/26/2008

1/29/2010

2/24/2010

11/5/2009

2/24/2010

Exhibit
Number
Incorporated

by reference Filed
herein herewith

10.1

10.1A,
10.1B,
10.1C
104
10.14C
10.14D
10.3

10.2

10.1
10.36

10.1

10.1
10.1
10.2

10.3




Exhibit
Number
Incorporated

Exhibit by reference Eiled
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
10.20t  Summary of 2012 Incentive Awards for Nargdcutive Officers. Form 8-K 2/7/2013
10.21t  Form of Market Stock Unit Agreement (office Form 8-K 2/23/2011 10.1
10.22t  Form of Market Stock Unit Agreement (CEO) Form 8-K 2/23/2011 10.2
10.23t  Description of Executive Officer Incenti®kan Form 8-K 2/23/2011 Item 5.02
10.24  Agreement of Plan Merger between RegisaadtCadent Form 8-K 4/1/2011 10.1
Holdings, Inc. amongst other dated March 29, 2011
21.1 Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc. *
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Int#g# Registered *
Public Accounting Firm.
31.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer guant to Exchange Act *
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted purtu&@wction 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.
31.2 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer puant to Exchange Act *
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted purtu&@wction 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and i€hFinancial Officer *
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnt$o
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.
101.INS XBRL Instance Document *
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document *
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldgaDocument *
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition LinklsaBocument *
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Datent *
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation LagébDocument *
t Management contract or compensatory plan ongemaent filed as an Exhibit to this form pursuanitéms 14(a) and 14(c) of
Form 10-K.
tt Portions of the exhibit have been omitted pamsto a request for confidential treatment. Thefidential portions have been filed
with the SEC.
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Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc.

The registrant’s principal subsidiaries as of Delsen81, 2012 , are as follows:

Align Technology De Costa Rica, SRL, CostasRi
- Align Technology, B.V., the Netherlands

- Aligntech de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.

- Cadent Holdings, Inc.

- Cadent, Ltd.



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-583020, No. 333-134477, No. 333-

143319, No. 333-161054, No. 333-82874, No. 333-1268l0. 333-125586, No. 333-168548, and No. 333t32p of Align Technology, Inc.
of our report dated March 1, 2013 , relating tofthancial statements, financial statement scheduid the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting, which appears in thismdr0-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
March 1, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas M. Prescott, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Align Technology, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;
The registrant’s other certifying officers drare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proesgjor caused such disclosure controls and proesdarbe designed under our
supervision to ensure that material informatiomatie to the registrant, including its consolidasedbsidiaries, is made knot
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this annual reportésny prepared;

Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control oveairfirial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntlis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal oboirer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisamtifole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 1, 2013

/s/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
I, Kenneth B. Arola, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornkKl®F Align Technology, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doégontain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and procetiutee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this annual retgsrbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbds report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers drare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inke$ management or other employees who have aisgmtifole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 1, 2013

/'s/  KENNETH B. AROLA

Kenneth B. Arola

Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finance



Exhibit 32

906 Certification

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF  FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2003

I, Thomas M. Prescott, certify, pursuant to 18 8.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectiorBbe: Sarbane®xley Act of 2003
that the Annual Report of Align Technology, Inc.Borm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31.22fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934 and that informationte@med in this Form 10-K fairly presents

in all material respects the financial conditio aasults of operations of Align Technology, Inc.

By: /s/ THOMAS M. PRESCOTT
Date: March 1, 2013 Name: Thomas M. Prescott
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

I, Kenneth B. Arola, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SS&ction 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section PO Garbanes-Oxley Act of 2003,
that the Annual Report of Align Technology, Inc.Borm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 81.22fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934 and that informationta@med in this Form 10-K fairly presents

in all material respects the financial conditio aasults of operations of Align Technology, Inc.

By: /'s/  KENNETH B. AROLA
Name: Kenneth B. Arola
Title: Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finance

Date: March 1, 2013



